
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer / Metin Halil 

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8379- 4093 / 4091 
Tuesday, 23rd April, 2013 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 
Venue:  Conference Room, 
The Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, Middlesex, EN1 3XA 
 

 Ext:  4093 / 4091 
 Fax: 020-8379-4455 
 Textphone: 020 8379 4419 
 E-mail:  jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

             metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Andreas Constantinides (Chairman), Ali Bakir, Lee Chamberlain, 
Ingrid Cranfield, Don Delman, Christiana During, Patricia Ekechi, Ahmet Hasan, 
Ertan Hurer, Nneka Keazor, Paul McCannah, Anne-Marie Pearce, Martin Prescott, 
George Savva MBE and Toby Simon 
 

 
N.B.  Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting 

should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm 
 

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 22/04/13 

 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT   
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members of the Planning Committee are invited to identify any disclosable 

pecuniary, other pecuniary or non pecuniary interests relevant to items on the 
agenda. 
 
 

4. MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 4 
MARCH 2013  (Pages 1 - 12) 

 
 To receive the minutes of the Special Planning Committee held on Monday 4 

March 2013. 
 

Public Document Pack



5. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 26 MARCH 2013   
 
 To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday 

26 March 2013. 
TO FOLLOW 

 
6. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING PANEL HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2013 - 

NORTH CIRCULAR ROAD APPLICATIONS  (Pages 13 - 24) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the Planning Panel held on Thursday 28 February 

2013 regarding application refs P12-03179PLA, P12-03177PLA, P12-
02858PLA and P12-02859PLA. 
 

7. REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (REPORT  NO. )  (Pages 25 - 26) 

 
 To receive the covering report of the Assistant Director, Planning and 

Environmental Protection.     (Report No. 212) 
 
7.1 Applications dealt with under delegated powers. 
 (A copy is available in the Members’ Library.) 
 
 

8. TP/10/0783 - HOLLY HILL FARM, 305, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN2 
8AN  (Pages 27 - 36) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Chase 
 

9. P12-02750PLA - 62, VERA AVENUE, LONDON, N21 1RL  (Pages 37 - 58) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: Refusal 

WARD: Grange 
 

10. P13-00338LBE - ELDON INFANT SCHOOL, ELDON ROAD, LONDON, N9 
8LG  (Pages 59 - 66) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions.  

WARD: Lower Edmonton 
 

11. P13-00435PLA - LAND SOUTH SIDE OF WHITEWEBBS LANE, 
INCORPORATING ROLEMILL SPORTS GROUND AND LAND REAR OF 
MIDDLETON HOUSE, BULLS CROSS, ENFIELD, EN2 9HA  (Pages 67 - 
78) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Chase 
 



12. P13-00551PLA - CRAIG PARK YOUTH CENTRE, LAWRENCE ROAD, 
LONDON, N18 2HN  (Pages 79 - 88) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Edmonton Green  
 

13. P13-00552PLA - LODGE DRIVE CAR PARK, LODGE DRIVE, LONDON, 
N13 5LB  (Pages 89 - 98) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions  

WARD: Palmers Green 
 

14. P13-00558PLA - 18, THE GREEN, LONDON, N21 1AY  (Pages 99 - 108) 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Winchmore Hill 
 

15. P13-00581PLA - RUSSETT HOUSE SCHOOL, 11, AUTUMN CLOSE, 
ENFIELD, ENI 4JA  (Pages 109 - 118) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town 

and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to condition.  
WARD: Southbury 
 

16. P13-00316PLA - 1-16 EAGLE COURT, 35, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 
2TF  (Pages 119 - 124) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Upper Edmonton  
 

17. P13-00317PLA - 101-132, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2SY  (Pages 125 
- 130) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions  

WARD: Upper Edmonton  
 

18. P13-00318PLA - 1-32, TRINITY COURT, 33, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, 
N18 2TE  (Pages 131 - 136) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions  

WARD: Upper Edmonton  
 

19. P13-00590PLA - 1-9A, ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY  (Pages 
137 - 142) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions 

WARD: Ponders End 
 



20. P13-00591PLA - 11-15A, ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY  (Pages 
143 - 148) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions  

WARD: Ponders End 
 

21. P13-00592PLA - 67-105, BOWOOD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7LL  (Pages 
149 - 154) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to conditions  

WARD: Enfield Highway 
 

22. P13-00615LBE - 161-167, GREEN STREET, ENFIELD, EN3 7LB  (Pages 
155 - 160) 

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to condition.  

WARD: Enfield Highway 
 

23. P12-03177PLA - 1-23, TELFORD ROAD, 233-237 BOWES ROAD, 
(KNOWN AS SITE 14), LONDON, N11 2RA   

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to completion of Section 106 

Agreement 
WARD: Southgate Green 
 
 

24. P12-03179PLA - 244-262, BOWES ROAD, AND, LAND REAR OF 194-242, 
BOWES ROAD, (KNOWN AS SITE 11), LONDON, N11 2RA   

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to completion of Section 106 

agreement. 
WARD: Southgate Green 
 
 

25. APPEAL INFORMATION   
 
 Monthly decisions on Town Planning Application Appeals. 

TO FOLLOW 
 

26. SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - MONITORING INFORMATION  (Pages 161 
- 190) 

 
 To receive the report of the Director of Regeneration, Leisure and Culture.  

(Report No.215) 
 
 

27. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 



for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 
(There is no part 2 agenda.) 
 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 583 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON MONDAY, 4 MARCH 2013 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Andreas Constantinides, Ali Bakir, Lee Chamberlain, Ingrid 

Cranfield, Dogan Delman, Christiana During, Patricia Ekechi, 
Ahmet Hasan, Ertan Hurer, Nneka Keazor, Paul McCannah, 
Anne-Marie Pearce, Martin Prescott and George Savva MBE 

 
ABSENT Toby Simon 

 
OFFICERS: Bob Ayton (Schools Organisation & Development), Linda 

Dalton (Legal Services representative), Bob Griffiths 
(Assistant Director, Planning & Environmental Protection), 
Andy Higham (Planning Decisions Manager), Aled Richards 
(Head of Development Management), Richard Laws (Planning 
Case Officer), Mike Hoyland (Senior Transport Planner), Giles 
Sutton (Biodiversity Officer) and Stephen Downing (Tree 
Officer) Jane Creer (Secretary) and Metin Halil (Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Approximately 240 members of the public, applicants, agents 

and their representatives 
Councillor Del Goddard, Cabinet Member for Business & 
Regeneration 
Ward Councillors: Lionel Zetter, Michael Lavender, Robert 
Rams, Andreas Ioannidis, Barry Evangeli, Joanna 
Tambouridies 

 
743   
WELCOME AND LEGAL STATEMENT  
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, and the Legal Services 
representative read a statement regarding the order and conduct of the 
meeting. 
 
744   
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
NOTED that apologies for absence were received from Councillor Simon. 
 
745   
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
NOTED that Councillor McCannah declared a disclosable pecuniary interest 
in the application under consideration, as he lived near the site and was 
consulted as a resident by the Planning Department. It was confirmed by the 
Legal Services representative that Councillor McCannah must therefore leave 
the room and take no part in the debate or the vote. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 584 - 

 
746   
P12-02266PLA  -  FORMER CAT HILL CAMPUS, MIDDLESEX 
UNIVERSITY, 182, CAT HILL, BARNET, EN4 8HU  
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introduction by the Planning Decisions Manager, including the 

following points: 
a.  Summary of the proposals. 
b.  Summary of the main differences from the previously refused 
application TP/11/0904. 
c.  Summary of the key planning issues for the current application. 
d.  Receipt of a petition containing 26 signatures from residents adjoining 
the site. 
e.  Receipt of 13 additional letters of objection raising concerns in respect 
of parking, infrastructure, crime, drainage, school places, transport, health 
facilities, out of keeping, ecology, Oak Hill nature reserve, woodlands, 
contamination, screening, quality of life, and use of site. 
f.  Receipt of additional points of objection on behalf of the Campaign for 
Cat Hill including that Block A had been improved in terms of massing, but 
was overwhelming and unsympathetic to the area; dissatisfaction with the 
pattern of materials; and heights of Blocks B – F should be reduced and 
set back. 
g.  Receipt of an additional letter on behalf of London Wildlife Trust – 
Barnet Group raising concerns including likely disturbance to protected 
species; some houses were too close to bats commuting along the 
western boundary; and loss of habitat for Great Crested Newts. 
h.  Receipt of one letter of support. 
i.  The following updates to the report: 
 1.  Paragraph 2.2 of the report proposal involves 57 and not 59 

Terraced houses. 
 2.  Paragraph 4.4.5 – Favourable conservation status of Newts not 

Bats. 
 3.  Paragraph 10.7 28% instead of 30% affordable rent / social rent and 

72% intermediate units instead of 71%. 
 4.  Paragraph 9.1.4 22nd January to read Tuesday instead of Thursday 

and 24th January to read Thursday instead of Tuesday. 
j.  Section 106 contribution and Mayors CiL of £1,739,160. 
 

2. The deputation of Dr Kim Coleman, on behalf of the Campaign for Cat Hill, 
including the following points: 
a.  The recommendation contained illegalities, in particular to wildlife 
issues, and had been subject to an illegal process with submissions not 
issued for public review and submissions issued too late for public review. 
b.  In response to previous refusal of planning permission, a few cosmetic 
changes had been made to the scheme, but it was still out of keeping with 
the character of the surrounding area and would be highly intrusive, over 
intensive, too big, too dense, dark and forbidding and architecturally bland, 
and contrary to the Council’s Core Strategy. 

Page 2



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 585 - 

c.  The northern pond and southern woodland should be excluded in 
density calculations. 
d.  Lack of full resolution of S106 payments and the Travel Plan. 
e.  There would be insufficient parking space, leading to overspill parking, 
and references to parking availability on Mansfield Avenue and Vernon 
Crescent were unacceptable, and not releasing survey details was illegal. 
f.  The new Transport Assessment was submitted too late for proper 
consultation. 
g.  Shocking number of trees to be felled 40% across the site, loss of 
ancient woodland and veteran trees, degradation of the woodland screen, 
and impact on retained trees with likely loss to be more than indicated, not 
in compliance with NPPF policies and Natural England note the impact on 
the western boundary and therefore the Local Planning Authority must 
refuse. Impact of increased soil levels on the site. 
h.  Inadequate bat surveys, not in accordance with Natural England 
recommendations or legal obligations. 
i.  Loss of habitat of Great Crested Newt and negative effect on the 
species with an inadequate and unlawful buffer zone from development. 
j.  Legal obligations in respect of protected species were not being met. 
k.  Flood risk concerns, especially effects on Vernon Crescent and Oak Hill 
Park, where events had been cancelled due to flooding. 
l.  Ongoing grave concerns regarding ground contamination including lack 
of testing for some substances, and presence of chemicals responsible for 
causing birth defects, and substances remaining from the 1940s. 
m.  The site was given in trust and should have remained for education 
use. Loss of educational facilities should be resisted, particularly at this 
time when school places were in such demand in the area. 
n.  Residents of Southgate and Cockfosters opposed these proposals and 
had given legitimate reasons for refusal of this application, and the 
Committee was urged to reject the application. 
 

3. The deputation of Mr Daniel Keane, local resident and leader of the 
Catholic Primary School Group at Cockfosters, including the following 
points: 
a.  There were unanswered questions, and concerns that were not fully 
resolved. 
b.  He questioned the decision to change the status of the land to housing 
and advised this site would be suitable for a school. 
c.  He questioned what happened to the Lottery fund for setting up the 
MODA museum. 
d.  The proposals were unsuitable in this woodland setting and buildings 
would be too high and the density too great. 
e.  There would be negative impacts caused by increased traffic on 
Cockfosters Road and increased demands on local services. 
f.  The extended woodland was important and the area should be used for 
limited or small scale housing only. The land was not inner city. Trees and 
natural habitats would be lost forever. 
 

4. The deputation of Ms Kathleen Levine, East Barnet resident and on behalf 
of the Chipping Barnet Labour Party, including the following points: 

Page 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 586 - 

a.  There were already traffic problems, especially coming out of Mansfield 
Road into Cat Hill, and making the R-hand turn this was not covered in the 
parking review, and concerns the volume of traffic would increase. She 
was horrified at the assumption Mansfield Avenue and Vernon Crescent 
were going to be used for overspill parking. 
b.  The flood risk report seemed to have reservations, and there were 
ongoing concerns from East Barnet Festival organisers and Vernon 
Crescent residents. Mitigations suggested that the development would add 
to the problems. 
c.  Biodiversity issues were not addressed properly. She welcomed 
additional research, but had not drawn the same conclusions. Concerns 
remained about Great Crested Newts and Bats, and legal issues. 
d.  High numbers of trees to be lost and no indication that more would be 
planted. 
e.  Impact of the blocks on people living in the area. These were five storey 
buildings with extra lift housing and did not fit in with the surrounding area. 
 

5. The statement of Councillor Lionel Zetter (Cockfosters Ward Councillor, LB 
Enfield) and on behalf of Mr David Burrowes MP (Enfield Southgate 
Constituency), including the following points: 
a.  He read a statement from David Burrowes MP, who sent apologies for 
not being present to speak in person due to business in Parliament. 
b.  In addition to drawing attention to paragraph 4.19.6 of the officers’ 
report, the following concerns were highlighted:  
 ●  The four storey buildings were out of keeping with the character of 

the local area in terms of style, height and massing and failed to link 
with existing houses and flats in Cat Hill. 

 ●  Despite reduction by 29 units, the stretched length of Blocks B to F, 
and ten blocks of terraced housing was still an over intensive form of 
development. 

 ●  The Committee’s previous objections had not been overcome, 
particularly in respect of impact on the environment. 

 ●  Whilst T48 veteran oak has been saved, its long term future had not 
been guaranteed due to its proximity to the new developments. 

 ●  The loss of about 40% of trees was not acceptable to the area. 
 ●  The Committee will note that the Mayor’s office wants confirmation 

that there is no ongoing or future demand for education use on the site. 
Given the demand for school places in Enfield, Barnet and London he 
urged the Committee to reconsider the principle of development. 
Enfield had limited primary schools plans and no plan to deal with 
future pressures on secondary schools. 

c.  Mr Burrowes urged the Committee to maintain their robust position and 
continue to defend the character and appearance of the local area and to 
refuse this unsustainable development. 
d.  Councillor Zetter remarked on the level of opposition to the proposals, 
which were too high, too dense and out of character with the area. 
 

6. The statement of Councillor Robert Rams (East Barnet Ward Councillor, 
LB Barnet) and on behalf of Rt Hon Theresa Villiers MP (Chipping Barnet 
Constituency), including the following points: 

Page 4



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 587 - 

a.  He read a statement from Rt Hon Theresa Villiers MP, who sent 
apologies for not being present to speak in person due to business in 
Parliament. 
b.  Changes to the scheme were little more than cosmetic. 
c.  The environment would be damaged, especially along the western 
boundary. Important wildlife habitats would be lost. 
d.  The buildings would be out of character with the low rise suburban 
surrounding area, it was too high and too dense. 
e.  There was not the necessary infrastructure to support such a significant 
number of dwellings. 
f.  Impact on traffic was a grave concern. Local roads were already 
congested. 
g.  Parking provision would be inadequate. This was a major concern for 
constituents. Suggestions about parking on nearby streets were 
unacceptable and it was understood the surveys had not been disclosed 
and there was concern about overspill parking in adjacent streets. 
 

7. The statement of Councillor Andreas Ioannidis (Brunswick Park Ward 
Councillor, LB Barnet), including the following points: 
a.  He was the closest Labour councillor in Barnet and was speaking on 
behalf of East Barnet residents, and on behalf of Andrew Dismore and 
Joanne McCartney (Barnet & Camden and Enfield & Haringey London 
Assembly Members) who sent their apologies. 
b.  Chipping Barnet Labour Party had sent objections in October and not 
all points had been addressed. 
c.  LB Barnet was directly affected with impact on services and 
infrastructure but it was unclear if they would receive S106 contributions. 
Impacts were not properly accounted for. 
d.  Parking would overflow into neighbouring roads. 
e.  Full steps were not being taken to ensure flooding was prevented. 
f.  The cost should be covered for a controlled parking zone or parking 
permits for all affected and for visitor parking. 
g.  Design of buildings would be out of character and blight the area. 
h.  There will be additional demand for services in Barnet. 
 

8. The statement of Councillor Barry Evangeli (East Barnet Ward Councillor, 
LB Barnet), including the following points: 
a.  He was speaking on behalf of the councillors for East Barnet ward 
which included Cat Hill, Mansfield Avenue and Vernon Crescent. 
b.  The height and density would be out of character with East Barnet and 
Cockfosters wards, which had mainly two storey family homes. 
c.  Loss of so many trees including mature trees was unjustified and 
unacceptable, and greenery would be pruned back which formed an 
important privacy screen to Mansfield Avenue and Vernon Crescent 
residents. Loss of important green habitat, questioned whether the thinning 
of trees to make garden space was acceptable. 
d.  There were fears of huge overspill parking. 
e.  Concerns regarding pressure on Barnet services, particularly schools, 
without any guarantee of S106 money to compensate. 

Page 5



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 588 - 

f.  Reductions from the previously refused scheme were minimal and there 
would be such detrimental effects that this application should be rejected. 
 

9. The statement of Councillor Michael Lavender (Cockfosters Ward 
Councillor, LB Enfield), including the following points: 
a.  The entire community of the area would be affected, across Enfield / 
Barnet boundaries. 
b.  The significant tree and shrub removal would degrade the woodland 
screen. That alone should be sufficient to reject the application. 
c.  The applicants were cramming too much development into the site, to 
cover their losses. 
d.  It seemed the Council wanted to pick and choose the planning 
guidance to justify the recommendation. 
e.  Paragraph 13.1.6 set out changes to education contribution figures 
further to adoption of S106 Supplementary Planning Guidance, but that the 
contribution had to have regard to the viability of the scheme so would only 
be £600k in this case, and similarly £400k for health provision. A £1.8M 
shortfall would not be provided for, and he questioned the governance of 
writing off this amount of public money. 
f.  This site should be used for educational purposes. As set out in 
paragraph 13.1.4, Government policy was that any new schools would 
now be either academies or free schools. The Council would not be 
interested in such provision as it would be outside their control. 
 

10. The response on behalf of L&Q, the applicant, including the following 
points: 
a.  Mr Simon Baxter, Project Manager, L&Q spoke on behalf of the 
applicant and advised that L&Q had been operating in Enfield for 50 years 
and owned and managed around 2000 homes including private and 
shared ownership and affordable rented homes catering for those in 
modest or average occupations. 
b.  The officers’ report dealt with all relevant policy issues, including the 
Local Plan and the London Plan and guidance. There had been detailed 
scrutiny and the application found to be in compliance with policy. 
c.  As illustrated by slides, the buildings on site at Cat Hill at the moment 
included concrete panelling, flues and asbestos, none of which would 
feature in this development. The GLA and officers had expressed 
satisfaction with the applicant’s design approach. 
d.  There would be a 25 year woodland management plan. 
e.  Ecological surveys had been supported by the Council and carried out 
to Natural England guidelines. 
f.  Heights had been reduced from six storeys to four storeys. 
g.  The housing tenure mix was confirmed as 162 for owner occupation, 50 
for shared ownership for first time buyers and 19 affordable or social rent. 
h.  There would be investment in local facilities through S106 and CiL 
contributions, and a local labour scheme would be instigated, and local 
suppliers and contractors would be used in construction. 
i.  He appreciated concerns regarding traffic, but previously 2,000 students 
and 200 staff used to visit the university. Surveys indicated a 1 to 2% 
increase in traffic. 

Page 6



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 589 - 

j.  Methodologies used met recommended guidelines. It was understood 
parking surveys regarding capacity in Vernon Crescent and Mansfield 
Avenue were carried out in response to points made at the Planning Panel 
that these roads were saturated already, not for consideration as overspill 
parking for the development. 
k.  The Environment Agency was a statutory consultee and had to be 
satisfied in respect of flooding and waste water issues. The site was not in 
a flood risk area and there would be no flooding caused by the 
development. Surface water attenuation meant that water would leave the 
site at a considerably slower speed so there should be a beneficial impact. 
l.  Mr Michael Derbyshire, Planning Director of Savills spoke as agent and 
planning consultant, with reference to reasons for refusal of the previous 
scheme and how these had been addressed. 
m.  There had not been objection to the principle of residential use on site 
or loss of education. 
n.  In response to the specific refusal in relation to T48 veteran oak, the 
road layout no longer passed next to the tree and was replaced by a 
pedestrian path. Conditions 28 and 29 also related to protecting this tree. 
o.  There were no objections on highways grounds from the Council or TfL. 
There would be a different type of movement in and out of the site than the 
previous university use with an increase of around 2% in traffic. This is not 
a significant increase. There was capacity in local roads but it was not the 
intention to encourage overspill. There would be S106 highway 
contributions including for pedestrian crossings and footway 
improvements, cycle paths and modelling on Cat Hill roundabout, a Travel 
Plan, and upgrading of four bus stops. 
p.  The drainage strategy was now amended. Existing foul and surface 
water pipes could be re-used with minimal impact upon the south west 
woodland. Significant improvements would be made to the pond and 
overall there would be a net ecological benefit. 
q.  Officers accepted some tree removal in the western boundary 
woodland compartment, and this would be good arboricultural practice. 
Significant new planting was proposed and a 25 year management plan. 
Distances were considerable, even if there was no screening, and all 
exceeded minimum standards, and taking into account ground levels. 
r.  The number of units had been reduced and the density level was at the 
lower end of GLA standards. Houses backing onto Vernon Crescent were 
now semi detached and there were gaps between terraces. There was 
also more traditional architecture. Heights in this location were entirely 
appropriate and not exceptional even in this area. 
s.  Education issues were covered in the report. Neither Enfield or Barnet 
supported a school on this site. A S106 contribution would be made. 
t.  A new homes bonus of £2.2M would also be gained by Enfield Council: 
an incentive proposed by government to encourage home building. 
u.  Mr Andrew Macarthy, a Technical Director from SLR Consulting, 
responded on ecology matters. He was a chartered environmentalist and 
licensed to survey bats and Great Crested Newts by Natural England. He 
dealt with European protected species regularly and had worked on a 
range of sites, including internationally important sites. He had become 
involved with this application in 2012 following the previous refusal. 

Page 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 590 - 

v.  The level of survey work had been proportionate given the nature of the 
site and type of habitats on this essentially brownfield site. The Council 
and Natural England were satisfied the survey work was adequate. 
w.  Tree loss would be offset by positive mitigation elsewhere on site. 
Woodland management would be covered by the 25 year plan. Positive 
mitigation measures would benefit Great Crested Newts, bats, 
invertebrates, and White Letter Hairstreak Butterflies. Licences would be 
obtained to ensure compliance with wildlife legislation and there was no 
reason to think that Natural England would refuse the licences. With the 
mitigation measures the application would preserve and enhance the 
ecological value of the site. The conclusion in the environmental impact 
assessment was there would be overall net gain. 
x.  Residual impact on the western boundary would be offset by work 
elsewhere and this would be conditioned. 
 

11. A brief comfort break adjournment was taken before the meeting resumed. 
 
12. Officers’ responses to points raised, including the following: 

a.  The Schools Organisation & Development Officer confirmed that when 
developing a strategy for additional school places it was necessary to look 
at areas where demand was greatest. This area was not the highest 
priority area in Enfield in this respect, but the impact of the proposal was 
recognised and Enfield and Barnet had been liaising on school expansion 
plans to ensure sufficient pupil places were available to meet projected 
demand across the area as a whole. In Enfield further reports to Members 
would come forward on future phases of primary and secondary school 
place provision to meet projected need. A school on this site would not 
address needs across the borough for either Enfield or Barnet. It could not 
be assumed that either a free school or academy would be approved in the 
area to meet demand, so the two Authorities could only plan to provide 
additional places in existing schools. However, should any free schools or 
academies be approved by the Secretary of State, they would be taken 
into account in developing future strategies. 
b.  The Planning Decisions Manager clarified calculation of the density, 
which was not just numeric, but took a whole site approach, and was 
considered compliant with the London Plan. 
c.  Ecological impacts (its strengths and weaknesses) had been 
acknowledged in the report. Policies concentrated on minimising harm. 
Natural England and the Environment Agency had not raised objections. 
Conditions were proposed to deal with issues raised. 
d.  Heights and densities had been reduced, but Members may take 
subjective views. 
e.  Ground contamination was covered by Condition 11. 
f.  The Council had adopted S106 supplementary planning guidance and 
secured appropriate contributions set balanced against viability. 
g.  The Senior Transport Planner confirmed the S106 contributions linked 
to highways issues were significant and would cover concerns 
appropriately and provide acceptable mitigation. Parking provision was tied 
to London Plan policies and this scheme’s parking provision was towards 
the top end of London Plan standards. Parking was not given as a reason 

Page 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 591 - 

in the previous refusal. An additional parking survey had been carried out 
to satisfy concerns raised. Surveys were public documents. The survey 
showed average 61% parking occupancy in Mansfield Avenue and Vernon 
Crescent: a level which did not cause concerns regarding unacceptable 
potential impact. S106 contributions would mitigate the highway issues. 
 

13. Members’ lengthy debate, including the following points: 
a.  Ongoing concerns regarding parking provision. Overflow parking onto 
other streets was felt to be unacceptable. Officers confirmed that the 
approach to car parking was set out in the London Plan which had clear 
policies; and the impact had been looked at. 
b.  In response to Members’ queries it was confirmed that the parking 
surveys referred to on page 45 of the report were carried out at 8:30pm in 
the evening on 22nd, 23rd and 24th January, when most residents were 
likely to be at home, and over a few days. 
c.  Parking provision included within the total 245 spaces was confirmed. 
This included the visitor and disabled spaces and those providing electric 
charging points. This provision is compliant with London Plan. The number 
of cycle spaces was confirmed as 353 in line with London Plan standards 
and these were distributed through the site. 
d.  Ongoing concerns regarding mass and density and that the proposals 
would be out of keeping with the locality. Members expressed that heights 
of blocks had not been reduced by enough. Officers clarified density 
calculations, which included the whole site area. 
e.  Costs to the community in terms of education and health provision had 
been suggested as £2.8M against which £1.8M would be contributed. A 
shortfall due to viability for the applicant was not considered acceptable. 
It was confirmed that officers had clear models, and were satisfied with 
contributions and the balance with promotion of sustainable development 
and housing provision. The NPPF promotes growth and housing. Advice 
had also been received from an external independent consultant on the 
scheme’s viability. Members commented that they would have liked to 
question the consultant on the robustness of the calculations. Confirmation 
was given that the new homes bonus was a central government scheme. 
This application also included a S106 contribution towards health provision 
as this issue had been raised at the Planning Panel as an important 
infrastructure need. 
f.  In response to Members’ queries regarding S106 contributions for 
health provision in particular, it was advised that there had been 
discussions with the health authority and the preference was for a single 
practice in a combined facility, and that active discussions were ongoing 
but that the S106 contribution would be held for health purposes. Officers 
confirmed that previous applications had not provided for health care 
provision but that this application responded to concerns raised previously. 
g.  Members highlighted concerns received relating to ground 
contamination and queried the wording of Condition 11. Officers agreed to 
review the condition to ensure it would investigate presence / mitigation of 
specific contaminants. 
h.  In response to Members’ concerns regarding potential detrimental 
effects of excavations on the site, it was confirmed there were three 

Page 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 592 - 

relevant conditions dealing with surface water drainage which were 
satisfactory to mitigate impact, further to discussions with the Environment 
Agency. 
i.  The comments of the Cabinet Member for Business & Regeneration in 
respect of S106 and CiL contributions and viability issues; the need for 
housing; and that the application was compliant with Enfield’s Core 
Strategy and the London Plan. 
j.  SUSPENSION OF COUNCIL CONSTITUTION – TIME OF MEETING 
AGREED that the rules of procedure within the Council’s Constitution 
relating to the time meetings should end (10:00pm) be suspended for a 
period of 30 minutes to enable the business on the agenda to be 
completed. 
k.  Officers confirmed that a standard condition prevented tree cutting 
during nesting periods, and that distancing standards met required 
guidance. 
l.  Members’ comments on the importance of working closely with 
communities affected by an application, and the high levels of opposition 
expressed by residents, councillors, MPs and GLA Members. 
m.  Confirmation that the GLA were a consultee, and that Enfield and 
Barnet had been clear the site was not appropriate for a school and would 
not best meet school places needs under existing programmes and 
emerging school places strategies. There were no current free school or 
academy applications for this area. 
n.  Members’ concern that demand for school places had grown recently; 
that sites for education were increasingly important and full consideration 
should be given to retaining sites for educational use in the borough. 
o.  Confirmation that the Environment Agency were satisfied with the 
application if conditions indicated were imposed, and that the landscaping 
plan indicated 161 trees would be replanted. 
p.  In response to concerns raised over flooding, officers responded that 
the Environment Agency was satisfied that drainage was sufficient. 
q.  In response to Members’ queries regarding facilities for children, it was 
confirmed there would be three play areas, two of which would be for 
under five year olds, and a trim trail. 
r.  Members’ comments on the poor existing state of the site, and 
welcoming the reduction of units while providing affordable homes to meet 
housing needs in the area. 
s.  Confirmation that crime prevention officers had been consulted on the 
proposed scheme, and their recommendations had been taken on board. 
t.  Confirmation that Officers considered that concerns leading to refusal of 
the previous scheme had been satisfactorily addressed but that certain 
issues and elements were subjective and it was for Members to reach their 
decision. 
 

14. The support of the majority of the Committee for the officers’ 
recommendation: 8 votes for and 5 votes against. 

 
AGREED that subject to the referral of the application to the Greater London 
Authority and the Mayor raising no objection to the recommendation, and the 
signing of the S106 agreement the Head of Development Management / 

Page 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 4.3.2013 

 

- 593 - 

Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to grant planning permission, 
subject to the conditions set out in the report and review of Condition 11 as 
above, for the reasons set out in the report. 
 
747   
MINUTES OF PLANNING PANEL 5 DECEMBER 2012  
 
NOTED the minutes of the Planning Panel meeting held on Wednesday 5 
December 2012. 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING PANEL 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 28 FEBRUARY 2013 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Ertan Hurer, Ingrid Cranfield, Ahmet Hasan, Martin Prescott 

and George Savva MBE 
 
ABSENT   

 
OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Planning Decisions Manager), Ray Reilly 

(Principal Planning Officer), David B Taylor (Traffic and 
Transportation) and Neeru Kareer (Planning Policy Officer) 
Jane Creer (Secretary) and Metin Halil (Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Applicant (Notting Hill Home Ownership) Representatives: 

  Ken Barnett – Notting Hill Housing 
  Karen Jones - CgMs 
  Martin Hughes - Polity 
  Ewout Vandeweghe – Stock Woolstencroft 
  JMP transport consultant representative 
MP for Enfield Southgate : David Burrowes 
Councillor Del Goddard, Cabinet Member for Business & 
Regeneration 
Ward Councillors: 
Councillor Alan Barker (Southgate Green Ward Councillor) 
Councillors Yasemin Brett and Alan Sitkin (Bowes Ward 
Councillors) 
And approximately 200 members of the public / interested 
parties 

 
1   
OPENING  
 
1. Councillor Hurer as Chairman welcomed all attendees to the meeting and 

introduced the Panel Members, the Council officers and the applicant’s 
representatives. 

 
2. The purpose of the meeting was to provide local residents and other 

interested parties the opportunity to ask questions about the applications 
and for the applicants, officers and Panel Members to listen to all the 
comments. 

 
3. A decision on the applications would be made by the full Planning 

Committee at forthcoming committee meetings. 
 
2   
OFFICERS' SUMMARY OF THE PLANNING ISSUES  
 

Agenda Item 6Page 13



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 2 - 

NOTED 
 
1. Andy Higham, Planning Decisions Manager, gave a brief outline of the 

proposals and the planning issues. 
 
2. This meeting was a further opportunity to express opinions on the 

proposed developments and was part of the ongoing consultation process. 
A large number of emails and comments had been received to date. 
Comments made at this meeting would be noted and would also form part 
of the overall assessment. A copy of the notes would be appended to the 
reports to Planning Committee. Residents would be notified of those 
Planning Committee meeting dates in advance. 

 
3. The sites were within the area of the North Circular Road Area Action Plan 

(AAP). The Local Plan and the Core Strategy had identified this wider area 
as suitable for 1300 homes to be provided (including Ladderswood 
Estate). 

 
4. Key planning issues raised were: height, design, internal standards, 

relationship to neighbouring properties, environmental impact, local 
infrastructure, access, traffic generation, parking, and sustainability. 

 
5. If people had further questions and comments these would be continued to 

be accepted up until Friday 8 March so that they could be taken into 
account and reported as part of the main assessment of the applications. 

 
3   
PRESENTATION BY THE APPLICANT / AGENT  
 
NOTED 
 
1. Ken Barnett, Project Manager, Notting Hill Housing Trust (NHHT) gave an 

introduction of the proposals: 
●  He had been working with NHHT since April 2009, when discussions 
started with Enfield Council and other parties, and as they had moved 
forward in taking over properties from Transport for London (TfL). 
●  There were a number of properties involved on a number of sites and 
there were four phases to the development. The first phase was 
refurbishment, which had now been completed for 257 homes, many of 
which were now occupied. The second phase covered smaller residential 
development sites: around 55 new homes had a resolution to grant 
consent. The third phase covered the proposals under discussion at this 
meeting – the larger residential development sites. The fourth phase would 
cover locations in Green Lanes / Ritz Parade, where there was more work 
to be done, taking the lead from the AAP, for mixed uses: no planning 
applications had been made yet on these. 
●  In relation to consultation, NHHT had been holding regular meetings 
with officers, local councillors and various stakeholders. 

Page 14



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 3 - 

●  There had been public consultation from July 2011 regarding Sites 11 
and 14. A good response had been received and a lot of changes had 
been made in revising the proposals. 
●  There had been public consultation from March 2012 regarding Site 6, 
and adjustments had been made to the submitted application. 
Subsequently, a number of points were being re-looked at, and the 
Planning Department would be re-consulting on Site 6 proposals. 
●  The original aim in the Core Strategy was 2000 new homes, but a total 
of 1300 was included in the emerging AAP, and NHHT were providing 
some of that housing need. 
●  NHHT were aware of concerns raised. In terms of density, the Greater 
London Authority’s (GLA) London Plan’s drive was to optimise use of land 
in London generally to provide more houses, and these proposals were 
within density levels set for this type of location. 
●  NHHT recognised the need for infrastructure facilities for existing and 
new residents and had not pushed forward with phase 4 as those were 
locations which could potentially accommodate additional facilities. 
Otherwise S106 agreements would provide contributions for facilities. 
South West Enfield Partnership (SWEP) had also been involved in these 
aspects. Site 11 proposals also included 230 sq.m. for a community use. 
●  The GLA policies set a minimum amount of new parking at less than 
one space per unit at this type of location. Where possible NHHT had 
created additional spaces, and a car club was also proposed. 
●  Studies of increase in traffic generated by these developments, by TfL, 
indicated in the morning peak for all three sites there would be an 
additional 24 cars. It was also worth noting that in the 2011 census 39% of 
households in the area around Sites 11 and 14 did not own a car. This was 
new build and new residents moving in would be aware of the restricted 
parking. People with cars would avoid these developments. 
●  Through demolition rather than piecemeal development on Site 6 there 
would be much more cohesive development, with new family housing. 
Across the three sites, 72 three and four-bed properties were proposed, as 
against the existing 26 family units. There would also be a mixture of 
tenures including private sale and shared ownership. There was also a 
need for one and two-bed units as well as family properties. 
 

2. Mr Ewout Vandeweghe, Stock Woolstencroft, as the architect provided 
more detail on the design and rationale, illustrated by slides: 
●  Proposals for Site 11 had been reviewed and were now for a six-storey 
development stepping down to two storey, and a mews development, and 
L-shaped building on the corner. Elevations and layouts were shown, 
including a shared surface around the mews. 
●  Proposals for Site 14 had been revised substantially with a reduction by 
20 units, and would provide a residentially friendly environment to the rear. 
●  Proposals for Site 6 a and b had been scaled down and reduced in 
height, and would be predominantly two and four-storey. 

 
4   
QUESTIONS BY PANEL MEMBERS  
 

Page 15



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 4 - 

NOTED the following questions and observations from Members of the Panel. 
 
1. Members asked about the following issues: 

a.  What would the child yield be from these development, and what 
proposals were there for additional school places for those children? 
b.  What was the size of the proposed community hall referred to, in 
comparison with other local halls? 
c.  In the London Plan, parking provision standards ranged from 1 to 2.5 
spaces for three-bed homes: had the developer worked on lower or higher 
range figures? 
d.  Considering that in Outer London, people were likely to want cars, 
would the developers consider raising the parking provision to at least 1 
space per unit? 
e.  How much total housing in volume would be for social housing? 
f.  What was meant by ‘mews’? 
g.  Were there sewage or flooding problems in the area? 
 

2. Responses were provided, including the following: 
a.  Officers did not have precise child yield figures available at the meeting, 
but the Council had clear policies in respect of calculating contributions for 
education under S106 agreements. A formula set out in the Local Plan 
was used to set the financial contribution which the Council put towards 
education in the borough. There was currently significant expansion of 
primary schools (including Garfield School) to meet existing and projected 
demand including for expected yield from these developments. 
b.  The applicants advised that the community hall in Site 11 would be 
equivalent to approximately 2/3 of the Trinity at Bowes hall being used for 
this meeting. There was potential in phase 4 to bring through such facilities 
which met people’s needs. More information was requested on the size of 
the community hall in comparison to the size of the development itself – to 
be added to the minutes. 

ACTION:  NHHT 
c.  At the upper end of their range, the maximum parking provision defined 
by the GLA was 1 space per one and two-bed property, and 1.5 to 2 
spaces for four-bed homes. 
d.  These developments were in an area which was highly accessible by 
public transport, with PTAL ratings of between 5 and 2. This was reflected 
in the parking ratios, which were higher for some of the sites than others. 
All properties three-bed and upwards were considered family units and 
each unit had a parking space. The lower parking provisions were for the 
smaller units. It was considered that first time buyers would be attracted to 
the one and two-bed units and many would not have cars. Discussions 
were also progressing on a car club, which would also discourage car 
ownership. 
e.  The proposals were for mixed tenure schemes, including for social rent, 
shared ownership, and private sale, with a minimum of 40% in line with the 
borough target being affordable. Within affordable housing it was 
envisaged 60% rental and 40% shared ownership. 
f.  A mews house was typically a small sized terrace, two or three storeys, 
with limited front garden, and accessed off a cobbled street. A 

Page 16



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 5 - 

characteristic of traditional mews housing was a shared surface. It was 
also confirmed that the developments on Site 11 adjacent to the school 
would have no windows facing the school boundary. 
g.  It was advised that no damp areas or sewage problems had been 
identified. The sites were not in a flood risk area and the developers had 
not been asked to do a flood risk assessment. 

 
5   
QUESTIONS BY WARD COUNCILLORS / MP  
 
NOTED the following questions and observations from Ward Councillors and 
MP: 
 
1. Councillor Alan Barker (Southgate Green Ward Councillor) asked about 

the heights of the buildings on both sides of the road and potential for the 
tall buildings to cause a wind tunnel effect and push vehicle exhaust 
emissions up to high levels. He suggested that a 3D model be provided to 
assist consideration at Planning Committee. 

 
In response it was advised that the landscaping proposals would break the 
transition from vertical to horizontal surface, eg. the line of trees alongside 
Site 14. Also, buildings had been designed so that clean air would be 
drawn to the backs of homes, away from the road. He did not envisage the 
problem to which the councillor referred. 

 
2. Councillor Alan Sitkin (Bowes Ward Councillor) made the following 

comments: 
a.  There had been concerns from the outset at the way the developments 
were being done on a piecemeal basis. 
b.  He would have liked to see an overall vision, and concrete plans in 
respect of social infrastructure, GP surgeries, etc.  
c.  An adaption to the schedule so phases 3 and 4 were not so far apart 
would be preferable and to confirm that the social infrastructure needed 
would be in place to mitigate the numbers of new residents. 

 
3. Councillor Yasemin Brett (Bowes Ward Councillor) made the following 

comments: 
a.  She agreed with points made by Councillor Sitkin, particularly regarding 
the phasing. 
b.  There would be loss of jobs in shops and businesses in Ritz Parade, 
which was unfortunate in these economically difficult times. 
c.  She shared residents’ frustrations at poor liaison and concerns about 
sewage infrastructure which was already inadequate and constant digging 
and works in the area. She urged consideration with TfL and Thames 
Water to minimise disruption to local people who have had to live with 
constant change in this area. 
d.  She appreciated that there was money allocated to be spent by 2014 
and that they were lucky to get new housing as people needed it, and 
officers had worked to improve sustainability. 
e.  She re-iterated the request that a 3D model be provided. 

Page 17



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 6 - 

 
In response it was confirmed that phase 4 would see additional facilities, 
and that the proposals tied in with the evolving AAP. Funding was 
controlled by the GLA and was part of the reason behind the phasing. The 
55 units previously referred to involved money needed to be spent by 
March 2014. The affordable element involved money to be spent by March 
2015, which meant construction should start on site at least by September 
this year. If phase 4 did not progress as envisaged, the Council would still 
gain S106 contributions. 

 
A huge range of organisations and Council departments had to be 
consulted before and after a planning application was submitted. The 
applicant would have to resolve any issues raised or appropriate 
conditions would be added to any planning permission granted. 

 
In respect of employment, it was advised the AAP brought out employment 
opportunities in the area. The SWEP had an Employment Sub Group. The 
developers also ran a construction employment initiative. It was also 
advised there was no employment on these sites, and these applications 
would not remove any employment land. 

 
4. David Burrowes MP (Enfield Southgate Constituency) made the following 

comments: 
a.  He stated an interest as he was a governor of Broomfield School. 
b.  He supported improved development and regeneration, and the 
opportunity should be taken for people to work together to gain improved 
roads, housing and infrastructure so they could get back a community. 
c.  He questioned if the committee would be able to take full account of the 
AAP in determining the appropriateness and sustainability of the 
development. 
d.  It was estimated over 400 cars would seek to negotiate the access to 
Wilmer Way from Site 11 and he was concerned how danger would be 
mitigated. 
e.  The proposals were of an intense and overbearing nature. 
f.  Proposals for Site 14 perpetuated the isolated nature of the site and lack 
of easy access to leisure space. 

 
5. Councillor Del Goddard, Cabinet Member for Business and Regeneration, 

highlighted the context and phasing of the proposals. The AAP could not 
be adopted until the overall Core Strategy had been approved. NHHT had 
to start the work on the properties in the meantime, and housing grants 
were a driver and a pressure. The draft AAP had now been approved for 
consultation and could be taken into account in the planning process. 

 
6   
OPEN SESSION - QUESTIONS AND VIEWS FROM THE FLOOR  
 
NOTED the following questions and observations from attendees: 
 

Page 18



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 7 - 

1. A Ritz Parade business tenant advised they were not aware of any recent 
meetings with the businesses, but that NHHT had served them with a 
notice to leave, and jobs would be lost as a result. She also asked for 
more information about Site 11, particularly the pathway serving the mews 
houses, no rear windows in those houses backing onto Broomfield School, 
and confirmation that there would be two way passing traffic, as drawings 
appeared unrealistic. A personal application for planning permission for a 
secondary access here in 2010 had been refused on grounds that it would 
lead to potentially dangerous vehicle stopping and slowing, and she did 
not feel such permission should be given to the developers. 

 
In response, the JMP traffic consultant advised that there was sufficient 
width for vehicles to pass each other and still sufficient width for 
pedestrians to move. People using this shared space would effectively act 
as a traffic calming measure. The idea of shared space was equal use by 
a mixture of traffic and pedestrians. A detailed transport assessment had 
been submitted to back up the application, and there had been discussions 
with TfL, GLA and the Council’s Traffic and Transportation Team. Parking 
provision here was for 32 new parking spaces, so two vehicles meeting 
would occur once in a while, but movements would be mainly tidal. Access 
for refuse and emergency vehicles had been tested and verified. 

 
It was also advised there was one small part of a business tenancy 
affected in Site 11, due to the impact on the yard area at the end of the 
proposed mews. 

 
2. A representative of Broomfield Home-owners and Residents’ Association 

advised that the association had circulated a sheet of nine questions for 
NHHT, and highlighted the following points: 
a.  Broomfield Road at the back of Site 6 would be directly impacted as it 
would be used for access and there would be a significant increase in 
traffic. 
b.  Broomfield Road was likely to experience overspill parking, and the 
proposals would take away around 50% of its existing on-street parking. 
c.  A lot of the trees which characterised the street would be lost, and the 
setting of the 150-year old cottages would be destroyed by a development 
of this scale and density. The blocks overlooking Broomfield Road would 
have a huge impact. 95 of the 125 new units would have a direct impact on 
their street of 25 units and would be quite overwhelming. It was recognised 
that the derelict sites needed to be developed, but this should be done 
without alienating the community. 
d.  Such proposals would not be considered acceptable in more affluent 
areas, and this scheme was out of character in this vicinity too.  
e.  Residents considered the designs ugly and not in context in the area. 
 
Applicants advised that the street parking was recognised as a potential 
issue, but this was informal parking now available due to the current 
situation in Broomfield Road. Councillor Hurer suggested opening dialogue 
to discuss a compromise. It was confirmed that the applicants would be re-

Page 19



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 8 - 

submitting an amended application including reduction of the development 
and parking at a higher ratio, and the Council would be re-consulting on it. 
 

3. The headteacher of Broomfield School raised the following concerns: 
a.  While recognising that redevelopment opportunities were positive, 
these proposals would damage the quality of the school environment in the 
view of the school’s management and governors. 
b.  The resulting inevitable increase in the number of children in the area 
would mean it was more important that the school was enhanced. 
c.  Focusing on Site 11, at the moment there was a playground area to the 
side of the school building. It was a light, quiet area with trees where 
children often sat to have lunch. The proposed development came right up 
to the school perimeter, with one side of the three storey mews houses 
having a blank wall facing the school. School representatives had several 
meetings, but NHHT had failed to adequately address the concerns. The 
school had been offered additional planting, but this was unlikely to thrive 
in what would become a gloomy claustrophobic playground. 
d.  S106 contributions would go towards education generally in the 
borough and may not come to this school. 
e.  Plans showed a red line running inside the school perimeter, and it was 
unclear what this meant. 
f.  There were concerns about greater danger for pedestrians as the 
roadway was confirmed to take traffic both ways, but would not have a 
pavement? 
 
The applicant confirmed meetings with the current and previous 
headteacher and there had been sunlight studies on the impact. The red 
line on the plans was technical and related to works to be done behind the 
mews houses. There were bits of land they would like to give to the school. 
At the moment there was a poor quality access road and a poor quality 
boundary to the school. There was a desire to reach something that would 
work for both parties. There were continuing discussions in relation to the 
shared surface: there would be no pavement but there may be distinction 
by colour. This had worked very successfully in other schemes elsewhere. 
 

4. An attendee raised concerns in relation to Site 14 and that the proposal 
would introduce 62 flats in blocks up to six storeys in height in what had 
been a service road. This would be against the Core Strategy. 

 
5. An attendee was concerned about taking of garden space from residents 

who were already NHHT residents and loss of trees to facilitate the 
development at Site 11. He also questioned the introduction of hundreds of 
homes at the busiest junction of the busiest road in London. 

 
6. Questions were raised about the S106 contributions, and that money for 

education and health facilities could be made available before the start of 
phase 4: the Council was urged to take monies that were being offered as 
early as possible. The Planning Decisions Manager advised that S106 
contributions were based on looking at all the sites together, and adequate 
infrastructure provision for all the developments. Trigger points were 

Page 20



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 9 - 

incorporated at varying stages for the payments, and discussions were 
ongoing on the size of contributions. 

 
7. Residents questioned the siting of 62 units at Site 14 in a land-locked area 

with the only access through a cul-de-sac. Not enough consideration had 
been given to the existing residents, especially those in Pevensey Avenue, 
and Bexhill and Hastings Roads who would be affected by increased 
traffic. 

 
8. Attendees highlighted that population densities in Bowes Ward were 

already above the borough average, and these proposals would raise the 
population enormously, without the infrastructure to serve them. Density 
issues were highly relevant and should not be dismissed. 

 
9. Attendees stated that a lot of people liked to live here due to the area’s 

suburban character of mostly two storey homes. These developments 
would lead to loss of trees and green spaces, and demolition of Victorian 
villas which were not beyond repair. High rise blocks would change the 
nature of the area. The AAP also opposed back garden developments, but 
that is what the mews houses were. 

 
10. Attendees requested more detail about the expected child yield from the 

developments, which would introduce many more children into the area, 
and how the demand for school places would be met. 

 
11. A residents’ association member queried the references to housing grants 

driving the timing, and felt that adequate time should be taken to get the 
development right, and it should not be accepted as imperative to begin 
construction by September. The developments would also be built before 
the AAP was ratified, and many new residents would be brought into the 
area where there would never be facilities to support them. These 
residents would also need cars as east-west travel was very difficult 
without a car. The level of concern was apparent in the numbers attending 
this meeting. 

 
12. Attendees expressed dissatisfaction with images of the proposed 

developments produced by the applicant, particularly pictures showing 
mature trees in front of the buildings and it was questioned whether such 
aged trees would be planted. Residents would also like to see a scale 
model of all phases. 

 
13. An attendee stated that Ritz Parade was a lovely historic parade and 

should be preserved. Residents feared it may be demolished, and that a 
slice of Broomfield School playing fields opposite may be lost. 

 
14. An attendee asked how much S106 monies were expected, their timing, 

and assurance that all S106 contributions would be ringfenced and utilised 
for the benefit of the community affected. 

 

Page 21



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 10 - 

The Planning Decisions Manager advised there was no final figure, but the 
contributions would be ringfenced to the AAP area, and focused to this 
area. There were S106 agreements linked to each of the applications. 
Contributions to education provision had already been secured from 
applications granted, and there were more significant elements to come. 
 

15. A resident of Westminster Drive commented that their road had been 
identified as at high flood risk. It sat low down and in line with Site 6. The 
residents also felt they would be eclipsed by the development which would 
cut their light and privacy. 

 
16. A resident of Seafield Road commented that this was also considered a 

high flood risk area, and surely nearby Site 11 would be too. 
 
17. An attendee quoted paragraphs of the New Southgate masterplan 

guidance which should also be applied in this case and were inconsistent 
with these proposals. These developments would not improve the 
neighbourhood, or respect the context of the area, and the flats would lead 
to high population turnover. It was questioned why NHHT was acting like a 
private developer and seemed motivated by maximising the return on their 
investment above balancing what was good for the community, and why 
the Council was prepared to go along with that strategy. 

 
18. In response to a resident’s query it was confirmed that 40% of the 

development would be social housing. Details of the full mix of housing 
type were requested. The Chairman asked that these details and other 
written answers be appended to the minutes and published on the 
Council’s website. 

FOR ACTION 
 
19. At the close of the meeting, all attendees confirmed by show of hands that 

they were not in principle opposed to regeneration of the area, but no-one 
was supportive of the applications under consideration. 

 
 
7   
CLOSE OF MEETING  
 
NOTED 
 
1. The Chairman thanked everyone for attending and contributing to the 

meeting. 
 
2. Notes taken at this meeting would be appended to the Planning Officers’ 

reports to be considered by the Planning Committee when the applications 
were presented for decision at a future meeting. 

 
3. A full report for each application would be prepared by Planning Officers 

for Planning Committee. This would form part of the agenda for the 

Page 22



 

PLANNING PANEL - 28.2.2013 

 

- 11 - 

meeting and would be published on the Council’s website at least a week 
before the meeting. 

 
4. There was a deputation procedure whereby involved parties could request 

to address the Planning Committee meeting: details on the Council 
website www.enfield.gov.uk or via the Planning Committee Secretary 020 
8379 4093 / 4091 jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk or metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk 
and residents could also ask ward councillors to speak on their behalf. 

 
 
 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2012/2013 - REPORT NO   212 
 

 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
23.04.2013 
 
REPORT OF: 
Assistant Director, Planning 
and Environmental Protection 
 
Contact Officer: 

Planning Decisions Manager 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 
 
 
7.1 APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS INF 
 
7.1.1 In accordance with delegated powers, 171 applications were determined 
between 13/03/2013 and 09/04/2013, of which 149 were granted and 22 refused. 
 
7.1.2 A Schedule of Decisions is available in the Members’ Library. 
 

Background Papers 
 
To be found on files indicated in Schedule. 

 
7.2 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 

 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 
respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP). 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 
 
 
 

ITEM 7 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 

 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



  

 
7.3 APPEAL INFORMATION  INF 
 
 The Schedule attached to the report lists information on town planning 

application appeals received and also contains information on decisions taken 
during the specified period. 

Page 26



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Chase

Application Number :  TP/10/0783 Category: Change of Use

LOCATION:  HOLLY HILL FARM, 305, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN2 8AN

PROPOSAL:  Change of use of Unit 7 from redundant cattle housing to canine training 
and exercising (RETROSPECTIVE). 

Applicant Name & Address:
D Williams and Co  
Cattlegate Farm,
Cattlegate Road,
Enfield,
EN2 8AU 

Agent Name & Address:
Jane Orsborn,
Jane R Orsborn Associates 
121, Queen's Road 
Hertford
SG13 8BJ 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.  

Agenda Item 8Page 27



Application No:-  TP/10/0783

Holly Hill

Silos

Farm

3

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 11:00 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 28



1. Site and surroundings 

1.1 Holly Hill Farm is a Council-owned agricultural holding located on the northern side of 
The Ridgeway, approximately 460m west of the small settlement known as Botany 
Bay village. 

1.2 There is a 2-storey brick built farmhouse (Listed grade II) approximately 8m to the 
west of the barn. 

1.3 The site is bounded by the M25 to the north and surrounded on all other sides by 
agricultural land. It lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt and within an area 
designated as an Area of Special Character. 

2. Proposal 

2.1 Retrospective permission is sought for the change of use of Unit 7 from redundant 
cattle housing to canine training and exercising. 

2.2 The planning statement confirms the following:  

 The business has been operating since August 1st 2009 and is concerned with 
dog training and dog care.  

 The training and exercising of the dogs takes place at Holly Hill Farm while dog 
sitting and walking takes place from clients’ homes. 

 The proprietor collects dogs each day from owners and transports them to the 
farm in a transit van, where they are then exercised within Unit 7. 

 The maximum number of dogs on site is 20. 

 Hours are limited to 10:00 to 16:00, Monday to Friday with no weekend or 
overnight operation. 

 Occasional overnight boarding is offered as a service but not at the farm. 

3. Relevant planning history:  

3.1 LBE/92/0018 - Provision of new steel framed barn and re-erection of Bentalls wet 
grain bin and intake pit presently situated at North Lodge Farm. – granted 
12/11/1992. 

3.2 LBE/90/0032 - Erection of cattle building and conversion of existing grain store to 
cattle housing together with landscaping. – granted 19/12/1990. 

3.3 LBE/01/0014 - Change of use of part of site from agricultural to residential use. – 
granted with condition 20/11/2001. 

3.4 TP/10/1640 - Change of use of part of farm yard to a recycling facility for imported 
green waste to create compost (RETROSPECTIVE). – granted with conditions on 
16/08/2011. 

4. Consultation 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees 

Traffic & Transportation

No objections are raised. 

Page 29



Environmental Health

It is advised that there are no objections and that the premises must hold a Boarding 
Establishment licence. 

4.2 Public response 

4.2.1 Due to the isolated nature of the site, two immediately adjoining residential occupiers 
were notified. No comments have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 allowed 
local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for the full 
implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local planning authorities 
could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the Core Strategy, which was 
adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period has now elapsed and as from 28th 
March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and Core Strategy policies will be given due 
weight in accordance to their degree of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been prepared under 
the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission version DMD document 
was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for submission to the Secretary of 
State for examination. Examination and subsequent adoption is expected later this 
year. The DMD provides detailed criteria and standard based policies by which 
planning applications will be determined. 

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in assessing the 
development the subject of this application. 

5.4 The London Plan

Policy 2.6 Outer London: Vision and strategy 
Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage 
Policy 5.14  Water quality and wastewater infrastructure 
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
Policy 6.9 Cycling 

 Policy 6.10 Walking 
Policy 6.12 Road network capacity 
Policy 6.13 Parking 

 Policy 7.4 Local character 
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology 
Policy 7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 

 Policy 7.16 Green Belt 
 Policy 7.22  Land for food 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment 
CP31: Built and landscape heritage 
CP33: Green Belt and countryside 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

Page 30



(II)G6 Areas of Special Character 
(II)G11 To ensure that new developments in the green belt do not have a 

detrimental impact on the surrounding landscape.  
(II)G22 To support and foster the needs of farming in the Green Belt 
(II)GD3 Aesthetics and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic 
(II)GD8 Site access and servicing 

5.7 Submission version DMD

DMD45 Parking Standards 
DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing 
DMD68 Noise 
DMD82 Protecting the Green Belt 
DMD84  Areas of Special Character 
DMD89 Previously developed sites in the Green Belt 

5.8 Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 
Design Manual for Roads and Bridges 

6. Analysis 

6.1 Principle of development

6.1.1 At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is the presumption in 
favour of sustainable development. Paragraph 20 of the NPPF confirms the positive 
approach to sustainable new development in rural areas. 

6.1.2 Within the NPPF, the London Plan, and the Enfield Plan Core Strategy there is a 
general presumption against inappropriate development in the Green Belt unless it is 
proven that very special circumstances exist to justify that inappropriate 
development. Inappropriate development is, by definition, “harmful to the Green Belt. 
It is for the applicant to show why permission should be granted. Very special 
circumstances to justify inappropriate development will not exist unless the harm by 
reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other 
considerations”. 

6.2 Impact on the Green Belt

6.2.1 There are five purposes for including land in the Green Belt (para.80 NPPF). These 
are:

to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; 
to prevent neighbouring towns from merging into one another; 
to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 
to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 
to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other 
urban land. 

6.2.2 In addition, paragraph 90 of the NPPF confirms that the re-use of buildings is not 
inappropriate in the Green Belt providing that it is of a permanent and substantial 
construction. 

Page 31



6.2.3 The building is of a permanent and substantial construction and the proposal does 
not involve any external alterations to it. It is therefore considered that the 
development does not further harm the open character and nature of the Green Belt 
due to the activity taking place within the building referred to as ‘Unit 7’. In addition, 
the use of the land to park the single transit vehicle will not have an unacceptable 
impact on the Green Belt. 

6.3 Impact on Amenity

6.3.1 There are two dwellings located on Holly Hill Farm, the Farm House (grade II listed) 
which is located approximately 8m to the west and south of Unit 7, and a further 
dwelling located approximately 50m south west of the building. 

6.3.2 The development, as discussed above is considered not to have a visual impact on 
the Green Belt. There is the potential however for noise and disturbance arising from 
up to 20 dogs on site at any one time. However, they will be contained within the 
building. The applicant has advised that the hours of opening would be Monday to 
Friday 10:00 hours to 16:00 hours. It is considered that the proposed hours are not 
unreasonable as they are within what can be considered to be normal working hours. 
Conditions could be imposed to restrict the number of dogs on the premises and the 
hours of operation to ensure that the amenity of the neighbouring residential 
occupiers is not unduly affected. 

6.4 Transportation

6.4.1 The access road to the site is a typical farm access of a single vehicle width and 
would naturally restrict the number of vehicles able to enter / exit the farm at any one 
time, particularly as there are no waiting bays within the site or along The Ridgeway.  

6.4.2 The use of one transit van used to collect / deliver the dogs would not in itself have 
an unacceptable impact on traffic conditions along The Ridgeway. However, regard 
must also be given to the other uses of the site, for example, the approved mulching 
operation (ref: TP/10/1640). This use, it was advised (and therefore restricted by 
condition), generates a total of 30 vehicle movements per day directly attributable to 
the delivery of the mulch and a further 8 movements per week attributable to the 
machinery being hired out. A condition could therefore potentially be imposed to 
ensure that dogs are not delivered to site by owners but are collected by the 
proprietor of the business or employees of the business.   

6.5 Other Matters

6.5.1 An area of paddock to the side of the dwelling has been set up with equipment to 
provide outdoor training. This does not form part of the current application and a 
further application would be required should this use be continued. A Directive would 
advise the applicant of this. 

6.5.2 The Planning Statement refers to policy (II)G23 of the Unitary Development Plan as 
being not saved. This is incorrect, although it is not relevant to this site as it is not 
within the Crews Hill Defined Area. 

7. Conclusion 

7.1 The proposed re-use of an existing farm building is considered acceptable in Green 
Belt terms and will; not further harm the openness of the Green Belt. 

Page 32



7.2 Approval is recommended for the following reasons: 

1. The re-use of an existing redundant agricultural building (identified as Unit 7 on 
the submitted plans) for a canine training and exercising facility, will not unduly 
harm the openness of the Green Belt or the character of the Enfield Chase Area 
of Special Character, having regard to Policy (II)G6 of the Unitary Development 
Plan, Core Policy 33 of the Core Strategy, Policies 82, 84 & 89 of the Submission 
version DMD, Policy 7.16 of The London Plan, and with guidance contained with 
the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 9). 

2. The change of use of an existing agricultural building (identified as Unit 7 on the 
submitted plans) to a canine training and exercising facility, will not unduly impact 
on the existing amenity of nearby residential occupiers in terms of noise and 
disturbance, having regard to Policies (II)GD3 & (II)GD6 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, Core Policy 33 of the Core Strategy, Policy 68 of the 
Submission version DMD, Policy 7.15 of The London Plan, and with guidance 
contained with the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular sections 3 & 
9).

3. The development benefits from an existing access and site layout that is 
appropriate for the development given the scale and level of vehicular 
movements associated with the operation taking place on the site having regard 
to Policies (II)GD6 & (II)GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policies 45 & 47 of 
the Submission version DMD, advice contained in the Design Manual for Roads 
and Bridges, Policy 6.3 of The London Plan, and with guidance contained with 
the National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 4). 

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

1. C60 Approved Plans 

2. NSC1 Restriction on Deliveries 
There shall be no transportation of dogs to and from the site in 
connection with the canine training and exercising facility other than 
by the applicant or any person directly employed in connection with 
the canine training and exercising facility. 

Reason: To ensure that (i) the daily number of vehicle movements 
taken together with other lawful uses on the site does not lead to 
conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety of pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic on the adjoining highway; (ii) the level of vehicular 
activity remains appropriate to the size of the junction and access 
road; and (iii) having regard to the amenity of neighbouring residential 
occupiers.

3. NSC2 Restriction of Operating Hours 
The canine training and exercising facility hereby approved shall only 
be open between the hours of 10:00 hours to 16:00 hours Monday to 
Friday only and not at all on weekends and Bank Holidays. 

Reason: Having regard to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. 

4. NSC3 Restriction of Overnight Boarding 

Page 33



There shall be no overnight boarding of dogs without the prior written 
approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: Having regard to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. 

5. NSC4 Restriction on Number of Dogs 
There shall be no more than 20 dogs on the site at any one time 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: Having regard to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. 

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Ms L.Dye Tel: 020 8379 1203

Ward: Grange

Application Number :  P12-02750PLA Category: Dwellings

LOCATION:  62, VERA AVENUE, LONDON, N21 1RL

PROPOSAL:  Redevelopment of site involving demolition of existing dwelling and 
erection 1 x 4-bed detached single family dwelling, accommodation in roof space with 
front balconies at first floor and rear balconies at first floor and roof level, roof lights and 
solar panels to roof, integral garage and off street parking to front. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Murat Aydemir,  
Intelliarch Ltd  
30, PEMBROKE AVENUE,  
ENFIELD,
EN1 4HB 

Agent Name & Address:
Murat Aydemir,  
Intelliarch Ltd 
30, PEMBROKE AVENUE 
ENFIELD
EN1 4HB 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That planning permission be REFUSED.

Note for Members: 

Members should note that at the Planning Committee meeting on 26 March 2013 the 
determination of this planning application was deferred until the April meeting pending a 
site visit.  The date of the site visit is to be confirmed.

Agenda Item 9Page 37



Application No:-  P12-02750PLA

6
8

1

6

1

49.8m

10

1
4

VERA AVENUE

1
07

93

50.5m

64

CRANLEIGH GARDENS

42

13

81

2

30

6617

20

78

56

1

1
8

52.9m

CADOGAN G
ARDENS

LB

15

G
IB

S
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

154

142

M
A

X
IM

 R
O

A
D

132

10

9

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 09:45 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 38



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 A two-storey semi-detached single family dwelling situated on the southern 
side of Vera Avenue.  The area is characterised by a mix of two storey 
detached and semi-detached residential properties, the only exception to this 
being a bungalow on the opposite side of the road.  

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site involving the 
demolition of the existing dwelling and erection of a 4-bed detached single 
family dwelling with accommodation in the roof space, first floor balconies at 
the front and rear, as well as second floor balconies in the rear.  There would 
also be rooflights and solar panels to the roof, an integral garage and off-
street parking to the front of the site.  

2.2 The proposed development would have a modern design that would 
incorporate features including first and second floor glazed bi-folding doors 
and balconies, 21 solar panels over the standing seam metal roof and powder 
coated aluminium window openings to complement the rendered exterior.   
The proposed 4/5 bed dwelling (the playroom could serve as bedroom 5) 
would be set out over three floors with room in the roof as well as a large rear 
extension that would be 9 metres in depth.  The rear extension would be fully 
glazed and would serve as the dining/living area of the dwelling. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 The planning history at the site is as follows:  

3.1.1 TP/11/0602 – Redevelopment of the site involving demolition of existing 
building and erection of 6-bed detached dwelling house incorporating 
basement and accommodation in roof space with front and rear balconies and 
association car parking was refused in September 2011 for the following 
reasons:

 The proposed new dwellinghouse by virtue of its size, siting, design, bulk, 
and appearance would result in a form of development entirely out of 
keeping and character with its immediate surroundings, detrimental to the 
appearance of the street scene and surrounding area. This would be 
contrary to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Core Policy 
30 of the Core Strategy, as well as Policy 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, 
PPS1 and PPS3. 

 The proposed new dwellinghouse due to its size, siting and proximity to 
the common boundary with No.60 Vera Avenue would lead to the creation 
of a terracing effect within the street scene through a closing of the first 
floor separation between properties. This would be detrimental to the 
appearance of the area and contrary to Policies (II)GD3 and (II)H14 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, and Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy. 

 The proposed new dwellinghouse, due to its size, siting and excessive 
depth, would result in an unduly prominent and overbearing form of 
development detrimental to the residential amenities of this property 
through a loss of light and outlook to the rear windows and rear amenity 

Page 39



space at the adjacent properties Nos 60 and 62, that would adversely 
affect the residential amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjacent 
properties, contrary to Policies (II)GD3, and (II)H12 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, and Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy. 

 The proposed new dwellinghouse having regard to the extensive 
balconies would give rise to conditions through overlooking and a loss of 
privacy, adversely affecting the residential amenities enjoyed by the 
occupiers of the adjacent properties, contrary to Policies (II)GD3 and 
(II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

3.1.2 On appeal, the decision was upheld with the Planning Inspector concluding 
that :

“While the proposal would accord with policy 7.6 of the London Plan as being 
architecture of a high quality, it would not complement local architectural 
character or be acceptable in terms of its impact upon the residential 
amenities of neighbours; other important strands of that same policy. Further 
it would not have regard to the pattern and grain of this part of Vera Avenue 
as required by policy 7.4. It would also fail, contrary to the views of the 
appellant, to have full and proper regard to its surrounding as required by 
policies (II)GD3, (II)H12 and (II)H14 of the UDP and policy CP30 of the CS.  
Considerable harm would be caused to the living conditions of neighbouring 
occupiers as a result of significant loss of privacy from overlooking; thereby 
being at odds with UDP policy (II)H8. 

The objections to the proposal are compelling and it would seriously conflict 
with the aims and provisions of the development plan. For the above reasons, 
and having taken all other matters raised in the representations into account, I 
conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.” 

3.3 A copy of the appeal decision is attached in Appendix 1 and the refused plans 
are attached in Appendix 2 of this report.  

4.  Consultations 

4.1 External and Internal Consultees

4.1.1 Biodiversity 

The Bat Survey submitting with the application (carried out in August 2011) 
revealed that no bats were seen to emerge from the building (although they 
were seen in the general vicinity of the area) therefore there are no ecological 
constraints to this development.  However, any approval should be subject to 
the following condition: 

Should development not commence prior to August 2013 an updated bat 
survey is to be undertaken (by an appropriately qualified ecologist) and the 
results submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Should bats or evidence of bats be found no development is to commence 
until the relevant licence(s) have been obtained from the Statutory Nature 
Conservation Organisation (Natural England).

Page 40



Reason: To ensure that bats are not adversely impacted upon by the 
development, in accordance with Policy 36 of the Core Strategy.     

4.1.2 Landscape

No specific comments on the proposals.  

4.1.3 Thames Water

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to 
make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable 
sewer. In respect of surface water it is recommended that the applicant 
should ensure that storm flows are attenuated or regulated into the receiving 
public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to connect 
to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and 
combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not 
permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to 
discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer 
Services will be required. They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777. Reason - 
to ensure that the surface water discharge from the site shall not be 
detrimental to the existing sewerage system.  

There are public sewers crossing or close to the development to the 
development site.  Approval should be sought from Thames Water where the 
erection of a building or an extension to a building or underpinning work 
would com within 3 metres of a public sewer. 

Thames Water would advise that with regard to sewerage infrastructure and 
water they would not have any objection to the planning application. 

4.1.4 Traffic and Transportation

No objections to the proposal on the grounds that appropriate provision for 
access, refuse storage and car parking would be made, having regard to 
Policies (II)GD6, (II)GD8, (II)T13 of the UDP, Policy 6.13 of the London Plan 
and the NPPF.

4.2 Public

4.2.1  Consultation letters were issued to 5 neighbouring properties. In addition, a 
notice was also displayed at the site.  

4.2.2 Two letters of representation has been received which raise concerns on the 
basis of the planned rear balcony which would overlook the adjoining 
neighbouring properties and gardens, resulting in a loss of privacy.  There is 
support for the contemporary and innovative design, but concerns over the 
footprint of the ground floor building which extends well beyond the building 
line (i.e. without extensions) along the properties from No. 56 to 64 Vera 
Avenue as well as the bulk and massing of the building also seems large for 
the plot size and the rear balconies are significant.  

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 

Page 41



the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March 2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

5.4 The London Plan

Policy 6.13  Parking 
Policy 7.4  Local character 
Policy 7.19  Biodiversity and access to nature 
Policy 8.3  Community infrastructure levy 

5.5 Local Plan - Core Strategy 

SO10  Built environment 
CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
 CP36   Biodiversity 

5.6 Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Policies

(II)GD3  Character and Design 
(II)GD6  Traffic Generation 
(II)GD8  Site Access and Servicing 
(II)T13   Creation and Improvement of Access 
(II)H8   Privacy 
(II)H9   Amenity space 
(II)H12  Residential extensions 
(II)H14  Continuous facade 

5.7 Submission version DMD

Draft DMD1 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
Draft DMD3 Sustainable Design and Construction Statements 
Draft DMD10 Residential Character 
Draft DMD12 General Standards for New Residential Development 
Draft DMD13 Amenity Space 
Draft DMD46 Parking Standards 
Draft DMD48 Access and Servicing 
Draft DMD50 Energy Efficiency Standards 

Page 42



Draft DMD78 Nature Conservation 

5.8  Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 

6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle of Development

6.1.1 The principle of a replacement dwelling has been established. Consideration 
therefore turns to the impact of the proposed development on the character 
and appearance of the surrounding area, neighbouring amenity and other 
matters.

6.2 Effect on Character and Appearance of the Surrounding Area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan seeks to ensure that a high 
standard of design is achieved in all development. Furthermore, Policy 7.4 of 
the London Plan indicates that developments should have regard to the form, 
function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and orientation of 
surrounding buildings.  Section 7 of the NPPF also attaches great importance 
to the design of the built environment and states that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and 
should contribute positively to making places better for people.  The Planning 
Inspector’s report also stresses the need to support rather than stifle 
innovative and distinctive modern design. 

6.2.2 The previous officer report and Planning Inspector’s decision acknowledged 
that there are distinctive groups of properties along Vera Avenue that combine 
to form pockets of uniformity that contribute to the appearance of the 
neighbourhood. One such grouping comprises Nos. 60 to 64 Vera Avenue.  
These were originally constructed as matching two storey detached houses 
on fairly narrow plots with limited separation between buildings.  Whilst it is 
noted that No.66 has been extended to the side, it still clearly forms part of the 
distinctive character of the aforementioned properties. The application 
property is the centre of these three properties and the current proposal seeks 
a new dwelling that would be a full three storey in height with modern features 
which consist of large glazed elements at first and second floor level, 
accentuating the upper floors.  It is considered that the scale of development, 
together with its bulky metal roof and long flank elevations would result in a 
form of development entirely at odds with the row of properties of which it 
forms a part. The development would therefore be out of keeping and 
character with the surrounding area, and at odds with the prevalent street 
scene, contrary to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan as well as 
Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy.   

6.2.3 The Planning Inspector’s report acknowledges that as a piece of stand-alone 
architecture, the proposal would be a well designed large house with 
innovative features and good sustainability credentials. Notwithstanding its 
intrinsic merits, the proposed dwelling would fail to respond satisfactorily to its 
immediate context. 

6.2.4 The revised proposal would also have a significantly larger footprint than the 
existing dwelling, increasing from approximately 110 to 176 sq.m which would 

Page 43



exacerbate the visual incongruity of the development within the street scene. 
The proposed dwelling would also abut the site boundary adjacent to No. 60 
Vera Avenue at first and second floor level.  This would not meet the minimum 
requirements set out in the UDP in terms of spacing to side boundaries, and 
as a result would have the potential to create a continuous façade. This is of 
particular concern having regard to the three storey nature of the proposed 
dwellinghouse and bulky roof design and thus, it is considered the proposal 
would be contrary to Policy (II)H14.  When viewed from the street, this 
shortfall would result in a demonstrable harm to the street scene, having 
particular regard to the existing situation where the distances between 
properties are often at the minimum considered appropriate; a fact 
demonstrated by the nature of extensions in the surrounding area being to the 
front and rear as opposed to the side.  A clear gap should be maintained 
between the application property and the adjacent property, and a continuous 
façade would be out of keeping with the character of the area. 

6.2.5 The revised scheme would retain the proposed balconies at first and second 
floor across front and rear elevations.  This again would result in features and 
an overall appearance, out of keeping with and detrimental to the character of 
the neighbouring properties and surrounding area, especially when the  
traditional appearance of surrounding properties with their heavily feature bay 
windows, are taken into account. The proposal is therefore considered  
contrary to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan and Core Policy 
30 of the Core Strategy. 

6.3 Neighbouring amenity

6.3.1 In respect of the refused scheme, the Planning Inspector considered that the 
building would have a substantial and overbearing presence when viewed 
from the neighbouring properties and associated garden areas. The 
enjoyment to be derived from these relatively modest garden areas would be 
considerably eroded by the oppressive scale of the proposed dwelling and its 
juxatapositioning with adjoining curtilages.

6.3.2 The adjacent property No.60 Vera Avenue has a part single storey, part two 
storey rear extension. The proposed new dwelling would extend beyond the 
rear of the No.60 by approximately 5 metres and would break a 45 degree 
line taken from the neighbours nearest ground floor window, contrary to 
Policies (II)GD3 and (II)H12 of the Unitary Development Plan.  Whilst the 
adjacent property No.64 Vera Avenue benefits from a single storey rear 
extension, the proposed dwelling would still extend beyond the rear of No.64 
by approximately 9 metres and would significantly break a 45 degree line 
taken from the neighbours nearest ground floor window, contrary to Policies 
(II)GD3 and (II)H12 of the Unitary UDP. Furthermore, it is considered that the 
overall scale and form of the proposed building, particularly the second floor 
and bulky roof design, would result in a significant presence when viewed 
from the rear windows of No.64 and the amenity space immediately to the 
rear of the dwelling.  The proposed development would fail to respect to 
amenities of adjoining neighbouring occupiers and would result in a loss of 
light and outlook to the rear windows and rear amenity space at the adjacent 
properties Nos. 60 and 62.  

6.3.3 The proposed development has not sought to reduce the level of glazing 
within the rear elevation and the proposed balconies would be within 1 metre 
of the adjoining neighbouring properties.  This it is considered, would result in 

Page 44



substantial overlooking leading to a loss of privacy for the residents of the 
adjoining properties, contrary to Policy (II)H8 of the Unitary Development 
Plan.

6.4 Access and parking arrangements

6.4.1 The proposed development would make use of the existing access 
arrangements and off-street parking provision within the site.  As such, the 
overall access, parking and servicing arrangements for the proposed 
development are considered acceptable and will not give rise to unacceptable 
on street parking conditions that would either be prejudicial to the availability 
of existing on street parking spaces or result in conditions that may have a 
negative impact on the free flow of traffic and highway safety conditions, 
having regard to Policies (II)GD6 and(II) GD8 of the Unitary Development 
Plan and Policy 6.13 of The London Plan.    

6.5 Other matters

6.5.1 The Council’s Ecology Officer comments that there are no ecological 
constraints to the proposed development, however, in the event of approval of 
the application a relevant condition.  The Council’s Tree Officer has also 
commented that the proposed development would not have implications 
concerning loss of trees and officers consider that any approval could be 
subject to relevant landscaping conditions.  

6.5.2 Policies 3.8 and 5.2 of the London Plan and Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy 
seeks to ensure that all new homes are built to exceed Level 3 of the Code 
for Sustainable Homes.  In addition, 10% of all new homes completed in the 
Borough should be designed to Lifetime Homes standards.  Lifetime Homes 
standards would ensure that new housing would meet the requirements of a 
wide range of households, including families with push chairs, wheelchair 
users and allow for adaptability in future. 

6.5.3 The applicant’s pre-assessment statement indicates that the proposals would 
achieve a minimum Code Level 3. In addition, the residential flats have been 
designed to meet Lifetime Homes requirements.  The proposed development 
would therefore meet an acceptable standard in accordance with the 
Council’s Policies and overall the proposals are sustainable in their design 
and construction demonstrated by the achievement of a minimum code Level 
4 and the requirements of Lifetime Homes. The proposals therefore comply 
with Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy and Policies 3.8 and 5.2 of the London 
Plan 2011. 

6.6 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

6.6.1 The proposed development would be subject to the Mayoral CIL which was 
introduced in London to fund strategically important infrastructure.  The 
contribution towards the Mayoral CIL for the proposed development has been 
calculated at £3632.04.  

7.  Conclusion

7.1 Having regard to the refused planning application and dismissed appeal 
under LPA reference TP/11/0602, and those considerations outlined above, it 
is considered that the proposal is unacceptable 

Page 45



8. Recommendation 

8.1 That planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed new dwellinghouse by virtue of its size, siting, design, bulk, 
and appearance would result in a form of development entirely out of 
keeping and character with its immediate surroundings, detrimental to the 
appearance of the street scene and surrounding area. This would be 
contrary to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Core Policy 
30 of the Core Strategy, as well as Policy 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan 
and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

2. The proposed new dwellinghouse due to its size, siting and proximity to 
the common boundary with No.60 Vera Avenue would lead to the creation 
of a terracing effect within the street scene through a closing of the first 
floor separation between properties. This would be detrimental to the 
appearance of the area and contrary to Policies (II)GD3 and (II)H14 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, and Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy. 

3. The proposed new dwellinghouse, due to its size, siting and excessive 
depth, would result in an unduly prominent and overbearing form of 
development detrimental to the residential amenities of this property 
through a loss of light and outlook to the rear windows and rear amenity 
space at the adjacent properties Nos. 60 and 62, that would adversely 
affect the residential amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of the adjacent 
properties, contrary to Policies (II)GD3, and (II)H12 of the Unitary 
Development Plan, and Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy. 

4. The proposed new dwellinghouse having regard to the extensive 
balconies would give rise to conditions through overlooking and a loss of 
privacy, adversely affecting the residential amenities enjoyed by the 
occupiers of the adjacent properties, contrary to Policies (II)GD3 and 
(II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 46



��

�
�����������	�
�����	

�����������	�������
�����

�

�

�

�

����������	
	���
�����
����������
����������������


��������������������	�����������

�����
�����������	�����
�����������������������������������	�	�
������������� ��������

���	
	�������!�"����	��#$%#�

�

����������!����&'()$$&�&%%&#%*("(+�
*#�,����� ����-��������.#%�%���

�� ������������������������������
�����
�������
������� 
����!�"������	�#����$$��

�	�����������������
�	������������	���������
���
�� �������������������%!�������#!�������	����������������
��
������ 
������
������&
��
��

'
�
�	��
��(��������
�� �������������
��)����"�����*��+������������!�����+�������������%!��
������������,�

������%���������

�� ������
��
��������
�
�����������
��
������
���������

�
��	����
����
��
���-�����	�
%������	�����������
��
��*.%�������������������	����
��
�����	�%������������

���
��
����
������

���������������
������������%���
������������
�����������������	��
�

�

���	
	���

��� �������������������������

��	���

���

��� ������������
���������������������������/�

�� �����������
��������
�
�����������	���
�������������������������������
��

�����
�����!�

�� �������������
��������
��	��
�����
���
������
���������
�����	�%
����	�

��
���������

���
��
�

�������������	
�

0�� ������
��
������������
������������1�����!�2�
��
������"�����$$3�412"5+�

���� 
���������	!������4 �5���������&
��
��"����������'
������� 
����������

���������������������
������%���
���
�����������������
����������6�����������

�������
��������
������
������������
��������
��
��������
�%��
����	��7�����!+�

����	�����������
���
������������	�����
��������
���-�+������
������������������

����
����������
�������
��	��
�����
���
�����	�%
������

��� �������
��������������������������!���%�������8���
����"������	�"
���!�

9�����
���4����9�����
��5�����������������
������12"������
��
���
����	����

:
��
���������
��
������������
�����������
�����
����������������
��
�������

��������
��
���
������������������

���
���
������9�����
�����9
�����������
��

�������������	���
�����������������������������9�����
����
����
���������!�
����

�������������������
����%��������������	��������������
�����
�������
������


������
����
��
������������

Page 47



#������2�����
��#""�;,0���#������*,3,��

�

�

�����������	�
�����	

�����������	�������
�����������������


����	����������������	��

,�� <��������!�
�������
�������
��%�����������������=����#
������������������


�����������������
�����������
������%��%�����������������������������������

��
����������������
��������	���������!����%����
�������
�������������	������

�����
��
��%������	�����������������������>�	�
��	����

����������
����!�
��

������������#���
����%!����� 
����������������������%������������
���
������
��

����������
�������	��!������������������	����8
�*�����������������
���
��������

�������
.��
��!��
�������#���
�	��
���
���!��-������+��
��
����������������

��������
�%������	���%�!�+��
��������
?�����	����	�+��������	�%��������	�������

�

���
���	�
���
�������!���������
�!��
�����������������������������

*��  
���"
���!�0��
��������
����� 
���������	!�����������
���!�4665�@20+���
�	�


�������

���
���
��������
��
����������+���������
��
���������������	��

���������
������	�����������������
����
�������
���-����6���!�
��������%�
���

����
����
��������
��
���������������
�����
�������������������������

���
��

�������������
���
���������	���� �
����-�������
��
�������������
�A��������
�����

��������
�����������
�������8
�,��������!���
����
��������
���������
������

���������
�����%�������������������+�����
�	���7����!���������������������
�A��

�������	���������������������������
��������������������%������	��
�%���������������

��� #����������
�������.��
����������������������
�
�����
����%�������������	����

���	���
������������

���
���������������	

����������%����!���������������6��

�����������������
�����
����%�����
���������� ����7����������
��3B�%���

��

��
���������������%
�
�	�������
��������������!����� ����������%����!�

	������������:
��
��+������������������������������
��8
�*������7���������������

��
����
������8
�,�������
������������	���������������������+�������
�
����

�������	��
����������
�����
������������
���!��
����������������
���-����

��� �����������	�����8
��*�.*3����������
�����
-����!��
�
�����
������������

������
���������������������������������������
�!��������������
��
�������������

��������<�����������
�
����%������	��
������
�����

���������	������������
�

���	�%
����	����	��+����
���%���
�������������������������������
������������

�����-�����	���
��������	�%
��+������

������������������
����������!����
�����

���
�������������?�����+�������
���?�-���
����
��
������%������	���
����
��!�

��	���	����������
�	����!�
��������
�
��������	������������������������
���-���

$�� 9�
�����������������%������	��
������������������������������
��!����������>�����

��
��!�	��C�����������	�����������

������������	������

�������
���������


�������!�����.�����������
����������������

���������������

����	�������������	�

������!����������
��������������
��
����%������	�
����	���������!�	�������������

�������
���
����������������<����������������������
�����	��

����!���������!�

����%�������������
.��
��!��
���
���������	�%
���+��

�������%������	���
�����

	�
���������%!�
������!��������	���������������������������	�����������	�

%������������������	�+��������������������7�����!��-�������
����
���������

��

��
�����D
������������
�
��������	���������������������������
����������������

���	�%
���+����������!����������
����
������������
���
��+�������������������	�

����������%���������������
�!�
�����������������������������
����!+���!��������

��	�����
���������������
��
��������	��������������������������
��

�����
������+����������!��%

������	�
������

�����

�������!��-�������
��
���������������������������
��%��������%��
��������

:
��
��+����������������������
���������
�
���+�6���	���������
���-��
������������


��=����#
������
�%��������
��������������
����������������
��
����������������

6����
���������
�
�����������	��
�����
��%������	��7�����!+�����	�.��������
����

Page 48



#������2�����
��#""�;,0���#������*,3,��

�

�

�����������	�
�����	

�����������	�������
���������������0�

�
�����������������
���-����8
���
������������������������
��������
�����
��

���

���
������
�����
��
���������������������������
��������9
������������
���6�

%����
������
����%�����������
������������������������������
�������������

��������

�������
����������

����#����������������	�����8
��*�.*�+���������
��	����������������%������	�������
��

�����������
.��
��!����������
������%������	�+���
�������%�����-�������


���
���!���������������������	�����
��!�������
���������	����������������+�����

����������%������
��������������
��������
� ��
	���@������+������
����
�����

��������
���������
�������
������������

��������

������%������
���
��������
�
�����������	��-��������%���������!���������

���
�������
���
����������������������������
������6��������	��
�����%�������

��������������
������%�������������
�
����%������	�������
���
������������������

��%�������������	�������
�������������!�����������D����������������
�
����

����������������!��
��
����
����
�
�����

���������������
���
������������
���
�

��
���
�����������������<��������������������%������	��
����%�����������������
�����

��������������������
��!���������

��������������������.��
��!������
���
����

��
?������	���������!�%�!
��������������������
��������
.��
��!���������
��8
�

*������������!��������	�����
��!������
��
������%������	+���������	�����E�����	�����

���������F���
���������������
�������
��	���������������
������������

��%���������!��-���������%������
���

��������%

��������������������������
����

%������������
�������
��
��%
�����!�
��8
�*3������������
������%
�����!�

�����8
�*�����������
���
����������	����
��������
���
?�����%

�������-�����	�

��������'
����������������
�����

���

����
������
�����	��%���
��������
���

�����
������������
������%������	���

�0��<���
�������%�������
���������
�����
�������
��������	��������������
�����

	�������
��8
��*������*3��������
���
���%����
�%��������������
���+�
���
������

�-����+�����������������������
��#���-�#����
������12"��
����%��
��������

�	��������:
��
��+��
������
���	��
��������%���	��
���
������������
���������

��
����
������������	����
���

���������	�%
����	���
�������+�����%������	�

�
������
������%�������������

��%�����	���������������
��������
������

���	�%
����	���
���������������
�������	��������������������?
!������
�%��

����
�����
��������������
��!��
�����	�������������
����%���
�������%�!�

��
����%!�����
�������
��������
��������
�
�����������	���������

?�-����
����
���	��������?
����	��������	�����9����������	�%
����	�	������+�

��������	���
������ ��
	���@������+��
����%�����������!��-�
�����
�
������
��

�������	��%���
�!���������
�
�����������
���������
��

���

���	������
���
��

���
��!�������������
����������!��������
����%����%�����������6�����
��

��������������������������
���7������
��������
��
�������������
����%��

���������
���!�����	�����%!��
�����
���	�������������
���
����������	���

�3��6���
������
��������
���6��
����������������

������7�����!�
������������������

��
��
�������
����
���������	�%
����	���
���������
����%����%���������!�

�������������������
��
�������
�	
�������������������
��	��
�����
���

���������!��������������%�!�����������


��	���������

�,��<�����������
�
�����
�������
���������
���!���*�
������&
��
��"�������%���	�

�������������
������	��7�����!+�����
�����
���
����������
������������������

����������
��%���������%������������
���������������
����������������������������

Page 49



#������2�����
��#""�;,0���#������*,3,��

�

�

�����������	�
�����	

�����������	�������
���������������3�


�����	�%
���>�
��������
��������������
�������������
���!��9�����������
����

�
����
����	�����
�����������������	�����
������������
��=����#
��������

��7������%!��
���!���3���6���
�������
�����+��
�����!��
�����
�����
������

���������+��
���
�������������
������	�����
���������
�����	������7������%!�

�
�������4665@20+�4665:�������4665:�3�
������12"������
���!� "0��
������ ����

 
�������%���������
����%����������
�������
��	��
�����
���
�����	�%
����	�


���������������������
����	����������
���
�����
��!���
��

���

���	>������%!�

%���	����
���������12"��
���!�4665:�����

�*������
%?����
����
�������
�
���������
�������	���������
��������
���!��
�������

��������������������

���
���
��������
��
�������������9
�������%

������
��+�

������
��	�����������
���������������������������������������
������
����
���+�6�

�
�������������������������
����%�������������

�

����������	
���

68�"( �D)�

�

�

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr P. Higginbottom Tel: 020 8379 
3927

Ward: Lower 
Edmonton

Application Number :  P13-00338LBE Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  ELDON INFANT SCHOOL, ELDON ROAD, LONDON, N9 8LG

PROPOSAL:  Variation of condition 18 under ref:LBE/03/0004 to allow pedestrian access 
onto Woodland Road. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Julie Messer  
ELDON INFANT SCHOOL,  
ELDON ROAD,  
LONDON,
N9 8LG 

Agent Name & Address:
John Keefe,  
Ream Partnership 
Wickham House 
464, Lincoln Road 
EN3 4AH 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions.  

Agenda Item 10Page 59



Application No:-  P13-00338LBE

E
L

D
O

N
 R

O
A

D

22

House

ST MARY'S ROAD

34

CUMBERLAND ROAD

70

Playing Field

28

C
O

N
IS

T
O

N
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

Graham

1
b

2
5

Cumberland

WOODLANDS ROAD

12

1
d

20

1
 t

o
 4

5

2

4

204

192

184

13

25

37

49

61

73

15

58

1
1
c

46

M
A

1
 t
o

 4
5

3
8

1
3

1
a

Eldon Infant School

Ward Bdy

CR

Eldon Junior School

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:05 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 60



1 Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises the Eldon Infant school and Eldon Junior 
School.  The site is located on Eldon Road and surrounded by Woodland 
Way to the north and St Peter’s Road to the west.

1.2 The main access to the site is Eldon Road from the south which provides both 
vehicular and pedestrian access.  Pedestrian access is available from St 
Peters Road.  Staff and service vehicles currently have access via 
Woodlands Way.  

1.3 The site is not within a conservation area nor does it contain any listed 
buildings.

2 Proposal 

2.1 The proposal is for the variation of condition (18) under ref: LBE/03/0004 to 
allow pedestrian access onto Woodland Way.   

2.2 Condition 18 of permission granted under LBE/03/0004 states that “The 
vehicular access onto Woodland Road hereby approved shall be used solely 
by staff to access the parking area and service vehicles attending the school 
and shall not be used to provide general access to the school by pupils. 
Details of a scheme to prevent general access by pupils shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter implemented 
prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved” . The reason for 
the imposition of this condition was “in the interests of safeguarding the 
residential amenities of properties along Woodlands Road.” 

3 Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 LBE/03/0004 - Erection of replacement early years unit with associated play 
space together with construction of new site access to Woodlands Road and 
provision of car parking. (Outline).  Granted subject to conditions on 08 
October 2003. 

3.2 LBE/03/0004/1 - Submission of reserved matters for design, external 
appearance and landscaping pursuant to conditions 01, 02 and 03 together 
with submission of details of phasing, surfacing, levels, enclosure, 
parking/turning, loading/unloading, access roads/junctions – Approved 

4 Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation – No objection subject to a condition regarding the 
implementation of parking restrictions (zig-zag lines) at the entrance of the 
school on Woodland Road. 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to the occupiers of 97 neighbouring 
properties.  The consultation period elapsed on 12 March 2013 and 3 

Page 61



responses have been received together with a representation on behalf of 30 
local residents.  The following issues were raised: 

 Condition 18 was attached to protect residential amenities 

 Parking would be more of a problem 

 Increase in pollution 

 Further obstructions on the pavement 

 Parking restrictions would affect residences 

 Impact on disabled access 

 Impact on visiting carers/dial a ride 

 Impact on health 

 Traffic risk to children from accidents 

 Increased congestion 

 Objection to concern of vehicular access through the site 

 Concern on increased opening hours. 

5 Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application." 

5.4  The London Plan

Policy 7.1 Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
Policy 7.4 Local character 

5.5 Local Plan - Core Strategy

CP8 Education 
CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 Aesthetics and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic impact 

Page 62



(II)GD8 Servicing and access 

5.7  Submission version DMD

 DMD Policy 47 – New roads, access and servicing 

5.8  Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework 

6 Analysis  

6.1 The main issues for consideration in the determination of the application are 
the impact on the character of the surrounding area, the impact on nearby 
residential amenities and the effects on the local highway network. 

6.2 Character and Appearance

6.2.1 The proposed use of the entrance of Woodlands Road for pedestrians will not 
involve any physical alterations as the existing entrance has a separate 
pedestrian gate which is currently locked.  The proposal is therefore 
considered to respect the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
and street scene with regards to Core Policy 30 of the Enfield Plan Core 
Strategy and Policy (II)GD3 of the UDP. 

6.3   Impact on residential amenity

6.3.1 The proposal will involve the use of the existing entrance for pupils and 
parents of the nursery to access the site without having to cross the school 
playgrounds.  The existing entrance is currently used for staff and service 
vehicles.  It is recognised that the use of the Woodlands Road access by 
pedestrians has the potential for temporary increases in the level of traffic and 
demand for off-street parking along Woodlands Road.  However, the dropping 
off and collection of pupils from the entrance, although in proximity to 
residential properties will only occur at two periods of the day which is not 
considered to significantly impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers 
of nearby adjacent properties with regards to Policy (II)GD3 of the UDP. 

6.3.2 A number of residents have objected to the proposal, indicating the increase 
in traffic and pedestrian movements will disrupt local residents.  Whilst it is 
noted that there will likely be an increase in both vehicular and pedestrian, the 
increase is not considered to be significant.   

6.4 Impact on local highway network

6.4.1 The proposal to allow pedestrian access to the school via Woodland Road is 
likely to result in pupils being dropped off and picked up via Woodland Road. 
It would increase temporary parking demands during drop off and pick up 
periods given that there are no parking restrictions on Woodland Road. On 
the other hand, allowing pedestrian access via Woodland Road would 
redistribute parking demands and vehicular and pedestrian traffic throughout 
the surrounding highway network. This would therefore be beneficial for traffic 
flow. However, a mitigation measure, parking restriction (zigzag lines), would 
have to be implemented during school hours at the entrance of the access on 
Woodland Road to ensure road safety. This would prevent parking at the 

Page 63



entrance, which would otherwise cause conflict of movements for pedestrians 
and vehicles entering and leaving the site.  

6.4.2 The proposal is not considered to give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free 
flow and safety of traffic using the adjoining highway, including pedestrian 
traffic, having regard to Policies (II) GD6, (II) GD8 and (II) T13 of the Unitary 
Development Plan and Submission version DMD policy 47. 

7 Conclusion 

7.1 The proposed variation of condition 18 of planning permission ref: 
LBE/03/0004 to allow pedestrian access onto Woodland Way is not 
considered to be detrimental to the character of the surrounding area, nor 
impact on nearby residential amenities or the local highway network. 
Accordingly it is recommended that the proposal is approved for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposed variation of condition 18 under ref: LBE/03/0004 to allow 
pedestrian access onto Woodland Road is considered to respect the 
character of the surrounding area and not cause undue harm to the 
residential amenities of nearby properties with regards to Core Policy 30 
of the Enfield Plan Core Strategy and Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary 
Development Plan.  

2. The proposal is not considered to give rise to conditions prejudicial to the 
free flow and safety of traffic using the adjoining highway, including 
pedestrian traffic, having regard to Policies (II) GD6, (II) GD8 and (II) T13 
of the Unitary Development Plan and Submission version DMD policy 47. 

8.  Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be  
GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which forms part 
of this notice. 

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The use of the access shall not be available other than for staff and 
service vehicles attending the school until such time as parking 
restrictions in the form of zig-zag lines have been implemented at the 
entrance of the school on Woodland Road. 

Reason:  To ensure that the development complies with Unitary 
Development Plan Policies and does not prejudice conditions of safety or 
traffic flow on adjoining highways. 

3. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision 
notice.

Page 64



Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Chase

Application Number :  P13-00435PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  LAND SOUTH SIDE OF WHITEWEBBS LANE, INCORPORATING 
ROLENMILL SPORTS GROUND AND LAND REAR OF MIDDELTON HOUSE, BULLS 
CROSS, ENFIELD, EN2 9HA

PROPOSAL:  Proposed extension to ecological area and associated re-contouring of the 
site known as the 'Western Field'. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address:
Richard Serra,
Savills
Ground Floor 
City Point 
29 King Street 
West Yorkshire 
Leeds
LS1 2HL 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That planning permission be GRANTED subject to conditions.  

Agenda Item 11Page 67



Application No:-  P13-00435PLA

Keepers Cottage

Tennis Court

W
HIT

EW
EBBS

Sports Ground

LANE

T
ra

ck

The

38.6m New Bungalow

Track

Development Control

Scale - 1:2500
Time of plot: 15:13 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 300m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 68



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 An open field bordered by Whitewebbs Lane to the north, the Tottenham 
Hotspurs training facility to the west and Archer’s Wood to the south. 

1.2 The entire site falls within the Green Belt, the Forty Hill Conservation Area, 
and the Enfield Chase Area of Special Character (AoSC). Archer’s Wood is 
designated as a Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation 
(SMINC).

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the proposed extension of the existing ecological 
area and associated re-contouring of the site known as the 'Western Field'. 

2.2 The development will involve the re-contouring of the field through the 
provision of an earth bund of approximately 2m in height around the perimeter 
of the field, with planting over. 

2.3 The proposal does not seek to bring the Western Field within the Training 
Centre.

2.4 The existing ecological area within the Western Field will be extended from 
0.9ha to 2.06ha. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 TP/07/1623 - Construction of a football training centre comprising a building 
incorporating training and associated facilities, ancillary buildings and plant, 
external pitches, access roads, parking, pathways, fences and external 
lighting. – Granted at Planning Committee on 11/04/2008. 

3.2 TP/07/1623/DP5 - Details of Ecological Management Plan and Ecological 
Construction Method Statement submitted pursuant to condition 15 of 
approval under Ref:TP/07/1623 for construction of a football training centre. 
Granted on 08/09/2008. 

4.  Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

 Traffic & Transportation

4.1.1 It is advised that there are no objections. 

 Biodiversity Officer

4.1.2 It has been advised that the site may be inhabited by reptiles and additional 
survey work will be required to establish the presence or otherwise of any 
protected species. 

 Conservation Advisory Group

Page 69



4.1.3 Objections are raised against the proposed development. In addition the 
following points have been raised: 

 One of the main motivations appears to be to further conceal the training 
ground from public footpaths.  

 The bunds will reduce views across the countryside here and make the 
footpaths quite enclosed. This was not considered to be an improvement 
to the character of the area.  

 The chain link fence should be replaced with something that retains views 
through it. Why the applicants have applied for this now (rather than with 
the initial applications) is questioned.  

 The Biodiversity Officer should be consulted on whether the planting 
scheme is in accordance with the permissions. 

4.2  Public response 

4.2.1 Letters were sent to six neighbouring occupiers in addition to site publicity. 
One letter of objection has been received raising the following points: 

 The Western Field is the only piece of land taken by Spurs that has 
not been altered. 

 It is already an ecological zone in that it is a rare habitat in this area – 
grassland.

 It would be far better managed as a wild flower meadow, which is the 
habitat we are short of in this area. 

 Putting raised bunds around the edge if the field is just a way for 
Spurs to extend their recycling area and keep it hidden from view. 

 Spurs do not have much interest in conservation – if they had they 
would not have planted laurel bushes around the perimeter of the site. 

 The Western Field is attractive to look at. It gives a sense of space as 
one looks across it. 

 It is part of the land of the Forty Hall Estate. 

 Walking along Whitewebbs Lane or along the new footpath through 
the woods, outlook will be blocked by a raised bund. 

 The development is inappropriate for the area and will be detrimental 
to its overall appearance.  

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 

Page 70



criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

5.4 The London Plan

Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation  
Policy 5.13  Sustainable drainage 
Policy 5.14  Water quality and wastewater infrastructure 

 Policy 7.4 Local character 
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology 

 Policy 7.16 Green Belt 
Policy 7.18 Protecting local open space and addressing local deficiency 

 Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
 Policy 7.21 Trees and woodlands 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

CP31: Built and landscape heritage 
CP33: Green Belt and countryside 
CP34: Parks, playing fields and other open spaces 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)G6 Areas of Special Character 
(II)G11 To ensure that new developments in the green belt do not 

have a detrimental impact on the surrounding landscape.  
(II)GD3 Aesthetics and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic 
(II)GD8 Site access and servicing 

5.7 Submission version DMD

DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing 
DMD71 Protection and enhancement of Open Space 
DMD78 Nature conservation 
DMD79 Ecological enhancements 
DMD81 Landscaping 
DMD82 Protecting the Green Belt 
DMD84  Areas of Special Character 
DMD89 Previously developed sites in the Green Belt 

5.8 Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 
Enfield Characterisation Study (2011) 
Forty Hall Conservation Area Character Appraisal 

6.  Analysis 

Page 71



6.1  Principle

6.1.1 Condition 15 of the original approval for the construction of a football training 
centre (Ref: TP/07/1623) required the submission of details of an Ecological 
Management Plan (EMP). The approved EMP (ref: TP/07/1623/DP5) created 
a woodland habitat strip along the northern boundary of the Western Field, 
fronting Whitewebbs Lane with the remainder of the field to be used for green 
waste recycling. 

6.1.2 The approval of a smaller area of land to be used for green waste recycling 
(ref: P12-01774PLA) has resulted in the ability to provide further ecological 
enhancements. This is accepted in principle, providing that there are no 
further impacts on any protected wildlife. 

6.2 Green Belt Considerations

6.2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) confirms that the 
fundamental aim of the Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by 
keeping land permanently open and that the essential characteristics of 
Green Belts are their openness and their permanence (para.79).  

6.2.2 The purposes of including land in the Green Belt are to: 

 check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas; 

 prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; 

 assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 

 preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and 

 assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
other urban land. 

6.2.3. It also confirms that inappropriate development is harmful to the Green Belt 
and should only be approved in very special circumstances (para.87) and 
substantial weight must be given to any harm to the Green Belt. Very special 
circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by 
reason of its inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by 
other considerations (para.88). 

6.2.4 The proposal is not inappropriate development in Green Belt terms as it does 
not involve any built development or a material change of use of the land. 
Planning permission is however, required for the earthworks. 

6.2  Impact on Character of Conservation Area / AoSC

6.2.1 The site falls within an area described within the Enfield Characterisation 
Study as “2B - Whitewebbs Park and Forty Hall”. The three areas that make 
up this sub area (Whitewebbs, Forty Hall and Myddelton House) are 
described as being surrounded by agricultural land and small woodlands 
which provide a rural setting to those landscaped areas. The Study, written 
whilst the training Centre was under construction, also noted that the Training 
Centre was creating a more urban and institutional character.  

6.2.2 Additional landscaping and ground re-profiling is considered to not harm the 
overall appearance of this part of the Conservation Area. The bund will help 
to provide a soft visual screen of the built structures that form the Training 

Page 72



Centre. In addition, a large central area within the Western Field will remain 
open.

6.2.3 It is considered that the development will not detract from the Conservation 
Area and AoSC and will ensure that the rural character is not undermined but 
strengthened. 

6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

6.3.1 The nearest residential dwelling, Keepers Cottage, is sited approximately 
80m from the nearest part of the any element of the proposed bund. The 
development will not have any detrimental impact on the amenity of the 
adjoining occupier. 

6.4  Highway Safety

6.4.1 The development does not raise any additional highway safety concerns. 
Access for maintenance purposes will continue from the existing western 
entrance to the wider site. 

6.4.2 It is proposed that the works are carried out in accordance with the approved 
construction methodology for the Training Centre. This secures details such 
as hours of work, wheel cleaning and storage of materials. These will be 
secured by an appropriately worded condition. 

6.6  Biodiversity

6.6.1 The application site is suitable habitat for reptiles, such as slow worm, adder 
and grass snake, and the proposals, which involve significant alterations to it,  
including the construction of a large bund around the perimeter of the site, 
would impact upon reptiles if they were present.  The ecological report 
identified habitat suitable for reptiles on the site but no reptile survey was 
undertaken, although it was noted that these areas would be cleared of 
reptiles prior to works being undertaken. It is likely, unless proved otherwise, 
that reptiles inhabit the site. 

6.6.2 All species of reptile are protected under the 1981 Wildlife and Countryside 
Act as amended and are also a species of principle importance for the 
conservation of biodiversity included in the England Biodiversity List 
published by the Secretary of State under section 41 of the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.  This means that they are a 
priority species as defined in the NPPF and as such are a material 
consideration in the planning process. 

6.6.3 The applicant is currently undertaking the additional surveys of the site which 
will be made available to the LPA prior to the Committee meeting.  Members 
will be updated at the Committee meeting. 

6.6.4 The presence of reptiles does not necessarily mean that the development 
could not proceed. The applicant would need to obtain a Licence from Natural 
England and the LPA is confident that such a Licence would be granted given 
the previous works on the wider site. 

6.6.5 In relation to works being undertaken near to existing flora, the applicant 
advises that the contouring has been designed to ensure that there will be no 

Page 73



impact upon existing trees and hedgerows. Whilst this assurance is 
welcomed, a condition will be imposed to secure details of such measures. 

7.  Conclusion

7.1.1 The proposed development is considered to not have any greater detrimental 
impact on the openness of the surrounding Green Belt or on the historic 
setting of the surrounding Conservation Area and AoSC. 

7.1.2 The proposed development would result in a net gain of ecological 
enhancements to the site and surrounding area. 

7.1.2 That subject to confirmation that there are no reptiles on site or are that 
appropriate mitigation measures are to be put in place, planning permission 
be approved for the following reasons: 

1 The proposed development, will not detrimentally impact on the purposes 
of including land within the Green Belt and will not harm the openness of 
the Green Belt, or the setting of the Forty Hall Conservation Area and 
Enfield Chase Area of Special Character, having regard to Policy (II)G6 of 
the Unitary Development Plan, Core Policy 33 of the Core Strategy, 
Policies 82, 84 & 89 of the Submission version DMD, Policies 7.8 & 7.16 
of The London Plan, and with guidance contained with the National 
Planning Policy Framework (in particular sections 9, 11 & 12). 

2 The proposed development will not unduly impact on the existing amenity 
of nearby residential occupiers in terms of noise and disturbance, having 
regard to Policy (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Core Policy 33 
of the Core Strategy, Policy 68 of the Submission version DMD, Policy 
7.15 of The London Plan. 

3 The development will not lead to conditions detrimental to highway safety 
on Whitewebbs Lane having regard to Policies (II)GD6 & (II)GD8 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, Policy 47 of the Submission version DMD, 
Policy 6.3 of The London Plan, and with guidance contained with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (in particular section 4). 

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions: 

1. C60 Approved Plans 
2. C51A Time Limited Permission 
3. NSC1 Construction Methodology 

The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
submitted Construction Methodology, unless otherwise 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure that the implementation of the development 
does not lead to damage to the existing highway and to 
minimise disruption to neighbouring properties and the 
environment 

4. NSC2 Ecological Management Plan 
The development shall be carried out and maintained in 
accordance with the approved Ecological Management Plan, 

Page 74



unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the ecological interest of the site is 
maintained and enhanced. 

5. NSC3 Tree / Hedgerow Protection 
Prior to the commencement of the development details of 
measures to protect existing trees and hedgerows shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved measures shall be introduced prior to the 
commencement of works and shall be maintained throughout 
the building period. 

Reason: To protect existing planting in the interests of amenity. 

 6  C17 Details of landscaping  

Page 75



W
H

IT
E

W
E

B
B

S
L
A

N
E

3
8
.5

0
0

L
E

G
E

N
D

E
x
is

tin
g

c
h
a
in

lin
k

fe
n
c
e

 to
 b

e

re
ta

in
e
d

ro
a
d

3
8
.5

0
0

G
ro

u
n

d
s
m

a
n
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

a
n
d

s
e
rv

ic
e

a
c
c
e

s
s

e
n
tra

n
c
e

w
ith

 e
le

c
tric

 g
a
te

s

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
T

E
A

M
T

R
A

IN
IN

G

P
IT

C
H

F
T

4

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

A
R

E
A

2
 m

 h
ig

h
w

e
ld

m
e
s
h

s
e
c
u
rity

fe
n
c
e

to
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f

th
e

s
ite

2
m

 h
ig

h
 w

e
ld

m
e

s
h

s
e

c
u

rity
fe

n
c
e

a
d
ja

c
e
n

t to
 ro

a
d
 e

d
g
e

lo
w

le
v
e
l
tim

b
e
r

ra
il

B
A

L
L

S
T

O
P

N
E

T
S

P
IT

C
H

P
E

R
IM

E
T

E
R

F
E

N
C

E

2
m

H
IG

H
W

E
L

D
M

E
S

H
P

E
R

IM
E

T
E

R
F

E
N

C
IN

G

5
0
0

m
m

 H
IG

H
S

Q
U

A
R

E
T

IM
B

E
R

B
A

R
R

IE
R

R
A

IL

E
le

c
tric

g
a
te

s
lin

k
e
d

in
to

n
e
w

ra
ilin

g

fe
n
c
in

g
to

s
ite

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

E
x
te

n
t o

f
S

e
c
2
7
8

w
o
rk

s
.

P
la

n
n
in

g
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
M

B
2

2
.0

6
.1

2
-

F
irs

t
T

e
a

m
P

itc
h
e
s

P
a
d
d
o
c
k

-

K
E

E
P

E
R

S

C
O

T
T

A
G

E

P
e

rim
e
te

r h
e
d

g
e

p
la

n
tin

g

P
la

n
te

d
 b

u
n
d

C
a
p
e

l
M

a
n
o

r
5

m
 w

id
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 g

a
te

E
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l
A

re
a

-
W

o
o

d
la

n
d

H
a

b
ita

t a
s

p
e
r

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p
p

ro
v
e
d

E
P

M

G
re

e
n

W
a
s
te

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

A
re

a

Drawingnumber
Revision

Datechecked
Checked by

Projectnumber

Datedrawn
Drawn by

Filereference
Sevenoaks
7 BlighsWalk
SevenoaksTN131DB
T+44(0)2079072222
F+44(0)1732467841

Figured dimensionsonly aretobetakenfrom
this drawing.  Do not scalethis drawing.

All dimensions arein millimetersunlessotherwise stated.All dimensions shall bechecked
on site priorto workscommencing.Any discrepancies shall bereportedtoKSS.

Drawingtitle

Client

Project

Revisions

ScaleatA3

London
1JamesStreet
LondonW1U1DR
T+44(0)2079072222
F+44(0)2079072299

Allrightsreserved.KSS assertsitsrightsundertheCopyright, Designs and PatentsAct
1988(Unlessotherwise agreedin writing).

Tottenham
HotspurFootballClub

Tottenham
HotspurFootballTrainingCentre

SitePlan(WesternField)
1:200

06242/M00-WF

MB
18.06.12

JB
22.06.12

06242
101-WF

A

NORTH

P
la

n
te

d
 b

u
n
d

1
8
x
6
m

w
id

e
c
o

n
c
re

te
s
la

b
fo

r
o
p
e
n

s
to

ra
g
e

 b
u

n
k
e
rs

6
F

2
 a

g
g

re
g
a
te

h
a
rd

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 a

re
a

2
 m

 h
ig

h
w

e
ld

m
e
s
h

s
e
c
u
rity

fe
n
c
e

to
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f

th
e

s
ite

A
P

P
L
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
IT

E
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

L
A

N
D

IN
A

P
P

L
IC

A
N

T
S

C
O

N
T

R
O

L

2
 m

 h
ig

h
w

e
ld

m
e
s
h

s
e
c
u
rity

fe
n
c
e

to
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f

th
e

s
ite

B
o
u
n
d
a

ry
lin

e
 a

n
d
 b

u
n

d
la

y
o
u
t
a

m
e
n
d
e
d

M
B

2
4
.0

8
.1

2
A

5
m

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 g

a
te

1
0
m

le
n
g
th

 g
a

s
c
ro

s
s
in

g
 p

o
in

t.

C
o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
a
s

p
e
r e

x
is

tin
g

c
ro

s
s
in

g

p
o
in

ts

Page 76



Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel:020 8379 3841 

Mr C Ahmet Tel: 020 8379 3926

Ward: Edmonton 
Green

Application Number : P13-00551PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  CRAIG PARK YOUTH CENTRE, LAWRENCE ROAD, LONDON, N18 
2HN

PROPOSAL: Installation of two temporary storage containers

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Stefan Cadek
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 51  
Civic Centre 
Silver Street
Enfield
Middlesex
EN1 3XB 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Andrew Lloyd 
Curl la Tourelle Architects
80 Lamble Street
London
NW5 4AB 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 12Page 79



Application No:-  P13-00551PLA

b

Centre

12.2m

78

4
a

8
6

PCs

4
6

2
2
5

St Mary's

5
3

135

9
6

1
0

0

36

Tennis Courts

9
2

28

(Recreation Ground)

9
4

12.1m

72

10

B
R

E
T

T
E

N
H

A
M

 R
O

A
D

Playground

c

1

Craig Park

82

TCB

8
4

2
0

Centre

2

2

D Fn

67

32

1
8

17

11.8m

40

Paddling Pool

69

2

BRETTENHAM ROAD

13

LAWRENCE ROAD

1
1
8

34a

12.3m

28

8
4

1
1

Laundry

LAWRENCE ROAD

291

1
0
2

1
2
4

3
0

47

7

Rushleigh House

BENJAFIELD CLOSE

4
3

139

1
4

8

1
2
2

4

11

273

LB

C
R

A
IG

 P
A

R
K

 R
O

A
D

71

60

76

Craig Park

9
8

28

1

3
6

5
6

38

12.4m

B
A

X
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

9

6

2
8

34

48

5

1

4

R
O

S
E

 M
E

W
S

11.9m

46

1
 t
o
 1

2

B
u

rre
n

 C
o

u
rt

C
la

d
d

a
g

h
 C

o
u

rt

Y
e

a
ts

 C
o

u
rt

1
 t
o

 1
2

1
 t
o

 1
2

30b
30a

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:10 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 80



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises the recently extended and upgraded Craig 
Park Youth Centre buildings and associated grounds, located in the 
Edmonton Green ward of the Borough. The immediate surrounding area is 
primarily composed of residential land uses. The site and its grounds are not 
designated within a Conservation Area nor are they statutorily listed.  

2. Proposal 

2.1 The application seeks temporary planning permission to locate two metal 
storage containers (side by side) to the northwest corner of the recreation 
grounds of the youth centre. Members should note that the grounds are not 
designated Metropolitan Open Land or Local Open Space. The applicant has 
indicated that they expect the containers to be in situ for no more than two 
years.

2.2 Each container would be sited on timber railway sleepers to provide a level 
surface, measuring approximately 6m (d) x 2.4m (w) and 2.6m (h). The 
containers are metal in construction. The containers would provide ancillary 
storage for the youth centre.  

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 LBE/10/0033: Part 2-storey, part 3-storey extension to south elevation 
involving demolition of a single storey building and refurbishment of external 
facade involving new recessed windows, translucent polycarbonate covering 
to external walls at first and second floor level and new boundary fence. 
Approved 25 Jan 2010.  

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Environment Agency: No objections to the proposals.  

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Notification letters have been sent to 19 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
a site notice was displayed at the site. The period for comment expired on the 
4th April 2013. No representations were received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

Page 81



5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

5.4 The London Plan

7.1  Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
7.4  Local character 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30 - Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 - High standard of functional and aesthetic design 

5.7 Submission Version – Development Management Document (DMD)

DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 

5.8 Other relevant policy 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

6. Analysis 

6.1 The principle issue for consideration is the impact on the recreation function 
of the grounds; the character and appearance of the surrounding area 
including neighbouring residential amenities.  

6.2 Impact on recreation function 

6.2.1 The grounds to the front of the building, part of which comprises the 
application site, provides recreational space for users of the centre. The siting 
of two metal containers within a discreet corner of the grounds on a 
temporary basis would not cause harm to this provision.  

6.3 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area 

6.3.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments. Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context. In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 

Page 82



the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.     

6.3.2 The size of the containers would not be of a nature that would be readily 
noticeable beyond the immediate perimeter of the site. Their siting in the 
northwest corner of the site also serves to reduce their prominence.  

6.3.3 In order to meet the centre’s temporary needs as well as ensuring that the 
visual integrity of the containers is maintained, it is recommended that 
planning permission should be restricted to two years only.    

6.3.4 Overall, the impact of the metal containers on the character and appearance 
of the surrounding area is considered negligible and would therefore comply 
with Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Policy 
37 of the DMD.

6.4 Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties

6.4.1 The use of the containers for storage, including their scale and siting relative 
to existing residential uses would not cause harm to amenity.     

7. Conclusion 

7.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposed scale and siting of the containers 
together with their intended purpose would not have a harmful impact on the 
recreational value, character and/or appearance of the area nor existing 
residential amenities. Planning permission is accordingly recommended for 
approval for the following reason: 

 1. The proposed containers would not adversely impact on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area having regard to Policy (II) GD3 of the 
Unitary Development Plan, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy, Policy 37 of the 
Submission version DMD and Policies 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan.    

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject 
to conditions:   

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The containers shall be painted in a colour to be agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before installed onsite.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance. 

Page 83



3. The containers shall only be used for storage purposes ancillary to the 
activities directly associated with the Craig Park Youth Centre and 
shall not be used for any other purpose.  

Reason: To ensure that the use remains strictly incidental to the 
existing operations onsite.    

4. This permission is granted for a limited period expiring on 25 April 
2015 when the use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the 
buildings hereby permitted removed and the land reinstated. 

 Reason: To ensure that the buildings and their use are properly 
controlled.

Page 84



P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 H
A

R
D

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

:
D

a
rk

 M
ix

 (
D

4
8

) 
b
y
 P

e
te

rs
e

n
 T

e
g
l,

la
id

 i
n

 h
e
rr

in
g
b
o
n
e

 p
a

tt
e

rn
 a

s
 d

ra
w

n
.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 T
A

R
M

A
C

 (
b

la
c
k
)

T
R

E
E

:
A

c
e

r 
P

a
lm

a
tu

m
 'A

tr
o
p
u
rp

u
re

u
m

',
a
 d

e
c
id

u
o

u
s
 m

a
p
le

 w
it
h
 r

e
d

-p
u

rp
le

 l
e

a
v
e

s
 a

n
d

b
u
s
h
y
 h

a
b

it
. 
T

o
 b

e
 1

4
-1

8
c
m

 g
ir
th

 w
h

e
n
 p

la
n

te
d

.

B
IK

E
 R

A
C

K
:

H
e

a
v
y
 D

u
ty

 S
te

e
l 
1

-U
p

 1
-D

o
w

n
 S

ta
n

d

D
E

N
O

T
E

S
 P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 L

E
V

E
L

D
E

N
O

T
E

S
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 L

E
V

E
L

New surface laid to meet existing 

levels along edge of MUGA

NEW FENCE

NEW FENCE

N
E

W
 F

E
N

C
E

1
8

1
7

1
6

1
5

1
4

1
3

1
2

1
1

1
0

9
8

7
6

5
4

3
2

1

5696

2420

3695

2690

3500

4300

3050

1016.103 E

1021.766 E

1027.860 E

1033.578 E

5
0

2
7

.8
5

8
 N

5
0
2
5
.4

3
8
 N

5
0
2
1
.7

4
4
 N

5
0
1
9
.0

5
4
 N

5
0
1
5
.5

5
4
 N

5
0

1
1

.2
5

4
 N

5
0

0
8

.2
0

4
 N

7085

5
6

6
3

6
0
9
3

5
7

1
8

1016.103 E

1020.441 E

1021.766 E

1027.860 E

1029.241 E

1033.578 E

1
3

2
6

1
3

8
1

4
3
3
7

4
4
0
0

4
4
0
0

3
0
7
4

3
0
1
9

1024.841 E

5
0
3
3
.5

5
4
 N

230

JB C D E F G H

7

A

JB C D E F G HA

4
3
3
7

2
4

6
1

3
1

7
5

9
0

0

L
a
m

p
 p

o
s
t

1
8

1
7

1
6

1
5

1
4

1
3

1
2

1
1

1
0

9

R

G
F

-0
9

S
h

o
w

e
r

2
.7

0
 S

.M
.

SO: 1026SO: 910

415

460

855

C
T

R
L

.

G
F

-2
1

C
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 S

ta
ir
s

6
.6

0
 S

.M
.

L
P

L
P

12.08
12.19

12.17

1
2

.1
5

1
2

.4
8

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

U
G

A
 f
e
n
c
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

u
g
a
 f

e
n

c
e

existing MUGA fence

line of building above

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 Z

o
n
e

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

re
a

E
X

T
E

R
N

A
L

A
R

E
A

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

U
G

A

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 Z
o

n
e
 /

 M
u
lt
i 
P

u
rp

o
s
e

 H
a
ll

3
4
.7

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
1

G
F

-0
2

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 Z
o

n
e
 /

 M
u
lt
i 
P

u
rp

o
s
e

 H
a
ll

3
6
.1

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-2
0

R
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e

0
9
.5

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
9

E
n
tr

a
n
c
e

8
.7

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
3

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

p
a

c
e

1
3

8
.0

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
4

C
ir
c
u

la
ti
o

n
 F

o
y
e

r

3
7
.3

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
2

K
it
c
h
e
n

1
4

.5
0

 S
.M

.

G
F

-1
0

D
ry

 S
to

re

1
.8

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
7

A
c
c
 W

C
/S

h
o
w

e
r

6
.0

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
6

C
h
a
n
g
in

g
5

.9
0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
7

H
y
d
ra

u
lic

 L
if
t

4
.1

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-1
8

In
fa

n
t 
U

n
is

e
x
 W

C

6
.4

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
4

In
te

rn
a
l 
C

lim
b

in
g

 C
a

v
e

2
7

.0
0

 S
.M

.

G
F

-0
3

M
u
lt
ip

u
rp

o
s
e

 H
a
ll

3
3

.8
6

 S
.M

.

G
F

-2
2

P
la

n
t 

ro
o

m

2
1

.0
0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
5

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 S

ta
ir
w

e
ll

1
0

.5
0

 S
.M

.

G
F

-1
5

W
C

2
.0

0
 S

.M
.

L
o

c
k
e

rs

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8

G
F

-1
6

W
C

2
.0

0
 S

.M
.

G
F

-0
8

S
h

o
w

e
r

2
.7

0
 S

.M
.

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

S
T

O
R

E

BLIND

F
F

L
 1

2
 4

8
0

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

1
2
.1

7

EXISTING CLIMBING WALL

220

F
F

L
 1

1
.2

8
5

SINK

830

4
0
8

STORE

BLINDS

BLINDS

B
L
IN

D
S

B
L
IN

D
S

B
L
IN

D
S

B
L
IN

D
S

BLINDS

BLINDS

S
T

O
R

E
S

T
O

R
E

fr
e
e

 w
e
ig

h
ts

S
T

O
R

E
T

a
b
le

 T
e

n
is

S
T

O
R

E

1
0

2
6

1
8

0

950

3
3
5

1370

9
1

1
.5

7
7
1
.5

140

7701

220

548

5
9
4
5

6
7

0
6

3
0

LOUVRE

SERVICE RISER
ABOVE

L
O

U
V

R
E

4
7
5
.3

1
1

1
9

0
0

6
0

0

SO: 3050

289

O/H
LOUVRE

H
IG

H
 L

E
V

E
L

H
O

L
E

 F
O

R
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

R
R

R

R

TWTW

T
W

TW TW

P2
3

5

P

3
9
9
5

7
0
5

H
IG

H
 L

E
V

E
L

H
O

L
E

 F
O

R
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

3
7
6
0

5600

24652910 225

685(+/- 100) 2180

198 100 100STORESTORESTORESTORE

8
0

440

S
O

: 
4
5
0
0

FWP

R
W

P

R
W

P

FWP

R
W

P

RWP

FWP

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 P
A

V
E

D
 F

O
O

T
P

A
T

H

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
, 
N

E
W

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 K
E

R
B

 I
N

S
T

A
T

E
D

 
T

O
 L

A
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
S

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.3
8

1
2
.1

9
0

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.1
1

4

1
:5

5
1

:2
9
 a

p
p

ro
x
.

1
2

.4
8

1
2
.3

8

1
2
.3

8
1

2
.3

8
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 F

E
N

C
E

EXISTING FENCE

NEW GATE

1
2

.3
8

2012

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.1
7

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
B

F
ir
e
 c

u
rt

a
in

RRR

RAISED ALLOTMENT BED

2450

2
0

0
0

2
3
5
5

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

1
2

.4
8

2
7

9
7

1
0

0

41 125

9
9
8

1
6

2

166 615

1
6

1
2

5
1

1
8

5

166 2400
124

245

1
0

2
0

2
9

5
1

0
2

0
1

0
0

1
2

0
5

9
61
0

0
2

4
2

0
1

0
0

1
6

2
1

100 2590 126

140
303879 100 1220 125 2420

925 100

9
61
1

2
3
7
9

1
0

01
6

0
9
0
1

1
2

0
9

1
0
01
5

7
9

0
0

2
2

2

6
5

9
6

5
0

7
3
11
0

0
0

2
3

10301030
100

1030 1030 1336 5
5

9
1

0
0

1
7
6

945 1000 1555100 1245 100 1120

1
1

1
3

1
0

0
5

8
5

1
0

0
2

3
9

1
1

0
0 2

9
7

2
3

2
0

1
0

0
2

3
2

0

1000

2
3

1
0

2
.5

1
2

5

165 636 116
116

8
9

2
1

0
5

5
8

5
0

3
2

0
1

0
0

0
1

2
0

9
0

0
7
2
1

2015 150 150 2015Linear grille SO: 

FWP

6
2

0
1

0
0

1
:2

5
 a

p
p

ro
x
.

1
:2

1
 a

p
p

ro
x
.

1
:2

0
 a

p
p

ro
x
.

1:73 approx.

1:76 approx.

1
:5

9
 a

p
p

ro
x
.

1
:2

1
 a

p
p
ro

x.

FWP

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
, 
N

E
W

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 K
E

R
B

 I
N

S
T

A
T

E
D

 
T

O
 L

A
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
S

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S

3
0
0
H

3
5
0
H

b
a

b
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e

O
LP
H

J
 
4
1!
8

K
w
 
5
4
p

O
LP
H

J
 
4
19
9

O
LP
H

J
 
4
1!
5

K
w
 
5
4
p

K
w
 
5
4
p

F
W

FWP

FW

EX.
FW

E
X

.
F

W

E
X

.
S

W

N
E

W
F

W

F
W

S
W

S
W

50mm!

Y
G

Y
G

F
A

L
L

Requirement for 
Grease Trap 
on Kitchen outlet TBC

R
O

D
D

A
B

L
E

 
F

G
1
0
0
m

m
!

50mm!
SVP

75mm! WVP TB 
WITH VENT TO 
ROOF

100mm! 
SVP

100mm! 
SVP

250

1
5

6
2

FWP

FWP

50mm!
FWP

R
O

D
D

A
B

L
E

 
F

G
1
0
0
m

m
!

R
O

D
D

A
B

L
E

 
F

G
1
0
0
m

m
!

100mm! 
SVP

RODDABLE 
FG
100mm!

75mm!
SVP

S
W

E
X

.
S

W

EX.
FW

R
W

P

R
W

P

R
W

P

S
W

S
W

FWP

R
W

P

E
X

.
S

W

T
re

e
P

it

C
R

A
IG

 P
A

R
K

BAXTER ROAD

L
A

W
R

E
N

C
E

 R
O

A
D

Channel Drain

Channel Drain

N
e

w
T

re
e

N
e

w
T

re
e

N
e

w
T

re
e

4
2
7
3

49695035

12000

1
5
0
0

2734 6224

T
re

e
P

it

N
e

w
T

re
e

3249

1
6

5
1

1290

2
8

0
5

E
x
is

ti
n
g

 t
re

e
E

x
is

ti
n
g

 t
re

e

E
x
is

ti
n
g

 t
re

e

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 f
u
tu

re
 

s
to

ra
g
e
 

L
o
c
a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

fu
tu

re
 s

to
ra

g
e
 

8
0
  

 L
A

M
B

L
E

  
 S

T
R

E
E

T
T

E
L
  

0
2

0
 7

2
6

7
 0

0
5

5

�
C

o
p

y
ri
g

h
t 

 C
u

rl
 l
a

 T
o
u
re

lle
 A

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

N
O

T
E

S
:

A
ll 

d
im

e
n

s
io

n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

.

A
n
y
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g
 w

it
h
 o

th
e

r 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r 
fo

r 
c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
.

L
O

N
D

O
N

  
 N

W
5

F
A

X
  

0
2

0
 7

2
8

4

C
lie

n
t

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

J
o

b

S
c
a
le

D
rg

. 
N

o
.

D
a

te
Is

s
u

e
d R

e
v
.

L
o
n
d
o
n

 B
o
ro

u
g
h

 o
f 
E

n
fi
e

ld

C
ra

ig
 P

a
rk

 Y
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

e

1
0

0

1
0

.1
0

.2
0

1
1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

F
8

8
8

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
D

ra
w

n

H
M

R

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 I
S

S
U

E

re
v
  
 d

a
te

  
  
  
 b

y
c
o
m

m
e
n
t

w
w

w
.c

lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

1
0

6

H
M

R
P

M

B
A

X
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

N
1

8
 2

H
N

@
1

:
A

1

m
a
il@

c
lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k

C
U

R
L
  

 L
A

 T
O

U
R

E
L

L
E

  
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 c
h

e
c
k
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 s
it
e

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 f
o
r

a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
. 
A

n
y
 d

is
c
re

p
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 t

o
 t
h
e

 a
rc

h
it
e

c
t.

x
x
.x

x
x

x
x
.x

x
x

A
  
  

 2
1

.1
0

.2
0

1
1
  
H

R
  
 T

A
R

M
A

C
 N

O
T

E
 A

D
D

E
D

C
  

  
 2

1
.0

9
.2

0
1

2
  
H

R
T

re
e
 p

it
s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t,
 f
e

n
c
e
 u

p
d

a
te

d

D
  

  
 3

0
.1

1
.2

0
1

2
  
H

R
Is

s
u

e
d
 f
o

r 
B

R
E

E
A

M
  
 

K
E

Y

E
  
  

 1
9

.1
2

.2
0

1
2
  
H

R
Is

s
u

e
d
 f
o

r 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
n
d
id

ti
o
n
s
 

F
  

  
 0

3
.0

1
.2

0
1

3
  

H
R

Is
s
u

e
d
 f
o

r 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
n
d
id

ti
o
n
s
 

Page 85



J

B

C

D

E

G

H

A

F

S
to

ra
g
e

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

rs
 o

n
 t
o
p
 

o
f 

ra
ilw

a
y
 s

le
e

p
e

r 
o
r 

p
a

d
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
fl
o
o
r

2
4

4
0

2
4

4
0

2600

8
0
  

 L
A

M
B

L
E

  
 S

T
R

E
E

T
T

E
L
  

0
2

0
 7

2
6

7
 0

0
5

5

C
o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 
 C

u
rl
 l
a

 T
o
u
re

lle
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

N
O

T
E

S
:

A
n
y
 d

is
c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

to
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r 
fo

r
c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
.

L
O

N
D

O
N

  
 N

W
5
 4

A
B

F
A

X
  

0
2

0
 7

2
8

4
 0

8
6

0

C
lie

n
t

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

J
o

b

S
c
a
le

D
rg

. 
N

o
.

D
a

te
Is

s
u

e
d R

e
v
.

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
E

n
fi
e

ld

C
ra

ig
 P

a
rk

 Y
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

e

5
0

2
0

.0
2

.2
0

1
3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
A

S
T

8
8

8

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
D

ra
w

n

M
W

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 I
S

S
U

E

re
v
  
 d

a
te

  
  
  
 b

y
c
o
m

m
e
n
t

w
w

w
.c

lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

1
2

2

M
W

E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

W
IT

H
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

B
A

X
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

N
1

8
 2

H
N

@
1

:
A

1

m
a
il@

c
lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k

C
U

R
L
 °

 L
A

 T
O

U
R

E
L

L
E

 °
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

1
:1

0
0
  
  

  
 @

 A
3

Page 86



5
1

7
2

4
6

3

S
to

ra
g
e
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
rs

 o
n

 t
o
p
 o

f 
ra

ilw
a
y
 s

le
e

p
e

r 
o
r 

p
a

d
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

le
v
e

l 
fl
o
o
r

6
0

2
0

2600

8
0
  

 L
A

M
B

L
E

  
 S

T
R

E
E

T
T

E
L
  

0
2

0
 7

2
6

7
 0

0
5

5

C
o
p
y
ri
g
h
t 
 C

u
rl
 l
a

 T
o
u
re

lle
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

N
O

T
E

S
:

A
n
y
 d

is
c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 d
ra

w
in

g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

to
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

r 
fo

r
c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
.

L
O

N
D

O
N

  
 N

W
5
 4

A
B

F
A

X
  

0
2

0
 7

2
8

4
 0

8
6

0

C
lie

n
t

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

J
o

b

S
c
a
le

D
rg

. 
N

o
.

D
a

te
Is

s
u

e
d R

e
v
.

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
E

n
fi
e

ld

C
ra

ig
 P

a
rk

 Y
o

u
th

 C
e

n
tr

e

5
0

1
9

.0
2

.2
0

1
3

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N

8
8

8

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
D

ra
w

n

M
W

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 I
S

S
U

E

re
v
  
 d

a
te

  
  
  
 b

y
c
o
m

m
e
n
t

w
w

w
.c

lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

1
2

3

M
W

W
IT

H
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

B
A

X
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

N
1

8
 2

H
N

@
1

:
A

1

m
a
il@

c
lt
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
.u

k

C
U

R
L
 °

 L
A

 T
O

U
R

E
L

L
E

 °
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
S

1
:1

0
0
  
  

  
 @

 A
3

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel:  020 8379 3841 

Mr C Ahmet Tel: 020 8379 3926

Ward: Palmers 
Green

Application Number : P13-00552PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  LODGE DRIVE CAR PARK, LODGE DRIVE, LONDON, N13 5LB 

PROPOSAL: Installation of a temporary library building to south of site involving a loss of 
24 car parking space. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Mr Doug Ashworth  
Enfield Council 
PO Box 50 Civic Centre  
Silver Street 
Enfield
Middlesex
EN1 3XA 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr T Nadaraju 
Enfield Council 
PO Box 50 Civic Centre  
Silver Street 
Enfield
Middlesex
EN1 3XA 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 13Page 89



Application No:-  P13-00552PLA

2
1
0

2
1

2

1b

48 6

2
5
7

2
7

1

1

3

LB

2

12

2
8
1

2
9
3

303

2
6
1

PCB

Bank

The

LB

Bank

6 4

1 4

2

36.9m

Triangle
31

5 
to

 3
17

Ruth Winston House

Car Park

1
9
6

55

for Girls (Upper)

264to282

33
1

260

1
9

0

2
3

6

Bank

286

31
9

7
5

2
2

4

262

2
0
2

10

77

20

28

2
3
8

2
2

6
2
0

6

288

St Anne's

284

2
5
4

Bank

37.8m

2
5
6

2
3

0

TCBs

2
3
2

2
2

8

6
5

2
4
0
 to

 2
4

4

T
h
e
 T

ri
a
n
g
le

E
l S

u
b

 S
t a

2
4
6

Catholic High School

PCs

36.0m

LODGE

HILL

2
0
8

2
5

8

ALDERMAN'S

2
1

TRADE CLOSE

2

1
7

1
8
6

28b

28a

1 to 14

New Crompton Court

1
1
 to 15

1
9
 to

 23

8
 to

 10

E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

 G
A

R
A

G
E

S

305

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:15 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 90



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises part of Lodge Drive Car Park in the Palmers 
Green ward of the Borough. The site is owned and run by the Council as a 
pay and display car park providing 159 spaces in total. The car park is 
currently accessed off Lodge Drive via a shared service road.     

1.2 The surrounding area is composed of a mix of commercial and residential 
land uses. To the northeast and east, the site is adjoined by two storey 
residential properties and their gardens; St Anne’s Catholic High School 
including grounds to the south; and to the west and northwest three/four 
storey commercial buildings within the Palmers Green shopping area.     

2. Proposal 

2.1 The application seeks planning permission to install a single storey pre-
fabricated building to serve as a temporary library before commencement of 
the proposed refurbishment works at the existing Palmers Green Library and 
Southgate Town Hall. No dedicated parking has been provided for library staff 
as part of the proposal.   

2.2 The applicant has indicated that the facility would be required for a temporary 
period of no more than two years.  

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 No relevant planning history  

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 Traffic and Transportation do not object to the proposals.   

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Notification letters have been sent to 88 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
a site notice was displayed at the entrance to the site. The period for 
comment expired on the 4th April 2013. No representations were received.  

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 

Page 91



submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application." 

5.4 The London Plan

6.9  Cycling
6.13 Parking 
7.4  Local character 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP11 Recreation, Leisure, Culture and Arts  
CP25 Pedestrians and cyclists  
CP26 Public transport  
CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 High standard of functional and aesthetic design 
(II) GD6 Traffic generation  
(II) GD8 Site access and servicing  
(II) CS1 Provision of community uses/services  
(II) CS3 Provision of community uses/services  

5.7 Submission version - Development Management Document Policies (DMD)  

DMD16 - Provision of New Community Facilities 
DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
DMD 45 - Parking Standards and Layout 
DMD80 - Trees on Development Sites 

5.8       Other relevant policy

National Planning Policy Framework 
Southgate Town Hall Planning Brief (October 2011)   

6. Analysis 

6.1 The main issues arising from this application are the loss of car parking 
spaces, the impact of an increase in traffic movements, including the impact 
of the building on the amenities of adjoining commercial and residential 
occupiers.   

Page 92



6.2 Loss of car parking spaces and associated increase in traffic movements

6.2.1 The application would involve the loss of 24 car parking spaces in total. 
Traffic and Transportation have assessed the parking survey carried out and 
consider that the car park is currently underutilised and despite the loss of 
parking spaces, would continue to provide adequate capacity to 
accommodate the additional demand that would be generated by the 
proposed temporary library use.  

6.2.2 In terms of the increase in vehicle movements, they acknowledge that traffic 
to and from the site would increase although this would not increase 
congestion and/or compromise the safety of users of the temporary library or 
car park.

6.2.3 Space for cycle parking has been made available although specific details 
have not been provided. Access for disabled users has been considered via 
the provision of ramps to the entrance and exit points of the building. Should 
planning permission be granted, it is recommended that further details of 
cycle parking is secured by planning condition.     

6.2.4 Overall, the loss of car parking spaces, including the increase in vehicle 
movements would not be harmful to the safety of users of the existing car 
park nor to the safety and free flow of traffic on the adjoining access road. 
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed loss of parking and the 
associated impacts is acceptable and therefore complies with Policies (II) 
GD3, (II) GD6 and (II) GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan; Policies 25 and 
26 of the Core Strategy, Policy 45 of the DMD and Policies 6.9 and 6.13 of 
the London Plan.       

6.3 Impact of temporary building on the amenities of adjoining commercial and 
residential occupiers

6.3.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration in all developments. Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context. In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.     

6.3.2 The proposed building would be sited to the southern part of the car park 
adjacent to the Council’s depot. The building measures approximately 21.7m 
(d) x 12.4m (w) x 3.1m (h) and would be a pre-fabricated construction. 
Bollards would be provided to the north and east perimeter of the building to 
segregate from the rest of the car park. 

6.3.3 The location of the building and its scale relative to adjacent users would not 
cause harm to either commercial or residential occupiers in terms of loss of 
light, outlook or privacy or through the activity associated with the use.  

6.3.4 Overall it is considered that the proposed temporary building and use would 
have an acceptable impact on adjacent commercial and residential occupiers 
and as such complies with Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan; 
Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.   

Page 93



6.4 Other matters

6.4.1 Arboricutural impact 

With regard to the impact of the proposals on existing trees, the associated 
arboricultural report recommends that no trees within the application site 
would require removal. The Council’s Arboricutural Officer has not objected to 
the recommendations although advises inclusion of planning conditions to 
secure details of tree protection and an Aboricultural Method Statement 
(AMS). Overall the impact of the proposal on existing trees is acceptable and 
would therefore comply with Policy 80 of the Submission version DMD.  

6.4.2 Equalities impact 

The public sector Equality Duty, at section 149 of the Equality Act, requires 
public bodies to consider all individuals when carrying out their day to day 
work – in shaping policy, in delivering services and in relation to their own 
employees. It requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good 
relations between different people when carrying out their activities. It is 
considered that each protected characteristic (age, diability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation) has been considered sufficiently in the design and layout 
of the proposals.  

6.4.3 Community Infrastructure Levy 

Since April 2012 the Mayoral CIL has been applied to all new developments 
in order to fund strategically important infrastructure. In this particular case, 
liability would not be extended to the temporary provision of a library building 
as Regulation 5 (2) of the CIL Legislation states that, …”planning permission 
does not include planning permission granted for a limited period”.  

7. Conclusion 

7.1 Overall, it is considered that the provision of a pre-fabricated building to serve 
as a temporary library facility whilst refurbishment works are carried out to the 
existing library at Southgate Town Hall would not cause significant harm 
having regard to existing parking provision, the amenities of neighbouring 
commercial and residential occupiers and or existing trees on site. Planning 
permission is accordingly recommended for approval for the following 
reasons:

1. The proposed development would not adversely impact on existing 
parking levels and the amenities of neighbouring commercial and 
residential occupiers having regard to Policies (II) GD3, (II) GD6 and (II) 
GD8 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policies CP25, CP26 and CP30 of 
the Core Strategy, Policy 37 of the Submission version DMD,  and 
Policies 6.9, 6.13 and 7.4 of the London Plan.    

2. The proposed development would allow for the continued provision of 
library services in the Palmers Green ward during refurbishment works to 
Southgate Town Hall, having regard to Policies (II) CS1 and (II) CS3 of 

Page 94



the Unitary Development Plan; Policy CP11 of the Core Strategy and 
Policy 16 of the Submission version DMD.    

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. This permission is granted for a limited period expiring on 25 April 
2015 when the use hereby permitted shall be discontinued and the 
buildings hereby permitted removed and the land reinstated. 

 Reason: To ensure that the buildings and their use are properly 
controlled.

3. Details of cycle parking shall be submitted for the written approval of 
the Local Planning Authority and provided in accordance with the 
approved details before first use of the building. These parking spaces 
shall be removed from site when the use of the building ceases in 
accordance with Condition 2 of this permission.  

 Reason: To ensure satisfactory cycle provision is made in accordance 
with the recommendations of Policy 6.9 of the London Plan.  

4. Hours of opening (9am-8pm -Mon-Fri); (9am-5pm – Sat) and No 
Sundays/Bank Holidays.   

5.       Details of Tree protection  

6.       Aboricutural Method Statement  

Page 95



W
E

S
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 (
s
c
a

le
 1

:1
0

0
)

E
A

S
T

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 (
s
c
a

le
 1

:1
0

0
)

N
O

R
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

s
c
a

le
 1

:1
0

0
)

S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 (

s
c
a

le
 1

:1
0

0
)

C
o

u
n

c
il 

D
e

p
o

t

K
id

z
B

iz

D
e

p
o

t 
fe

n
c
e

lin
e

C
o

u
n

c
il 

D
e

p
o

t

400

3100

300

3100

300

3100

400
3100

300

3100

S
a

fe
ty

b
o
lla

rd

S
a

fe
ty

b
o
lla

rd

S
a

fe
ty

b
o
lla

rd
s

E
x
is

ti
n

g
F

e
n
c
e

E
x
is

ti
n

g
F

e
n
c
e

K
id

z
B

iz

400
3100

N

21700

1
2

4
0

0

e
le

c
tr

ic
in

ta
k
e

 c
b

d
C

o
m

m
s

C
a

b
in

e
t

ramp

ramp

P
L

A
N

(s
c
a

le
 1

:5
0

)

D
is

a
b

le
d

W
C

S
to

re
/W

o
rk

ro
o

m
E

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 
L

o
b

b
y

S
ta

ff
 R

e
s
t

R
o

o
m

S
ta

ff
W

C

C
le

a
n

e
r

s
h

e
lv

e
s

R
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n

C
o

rr
id

o
r

L
ib

ra
ry

 L
e

n
d

in
g
 A

re
a

2500

1
5

0
0

1
5

0
0

1500

D
1

D
2

D
3

D
4

D
5

D
7

D
6

D
8

D
9

3100

S
a

fe
ty

b
o

lla
rd

s

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

D
a

te
D

ra
w

n
S

c
a

le

A
rc

h
it
e

c
t 

\ 
S

.O
.

P
ro

je
c
t

C
A

D
 F

ile
 N

o
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
A

rl
in

g
to

n
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
7

9
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 P

o
n

d
e

rs
 E

n
d

 E
N

3
 4

E
N

  
 

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7

0
5

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
O

 B
o

x
 5

1
, 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

,
S

ilv
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 E
n

fi
e

ld
, 

M
id

d
le

s
e

x
 E

N
1

 3
X

B

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7

0
5

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l

1
:5

0
, 

1
:1

0
0

 @
 A

1
0

1
/0

2
/1

3
tn

P
a

lm
e

rs
 G

re
e

n
 T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 

L
ib

ra
ry

tn

L
ib

ra
ry

 P
la

n

D
/L

4
1

1
/0

0
3

6
4

4
  

(A
R

)P
L

0
3

  

R
e

v
is

io
n

s
N

O
T

E
S

1
) 

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
fi
n

is
h

 t
o

 b
e

 P
L

A
S

T
IS

O
L

 c
o

a
te

d
 p

a
n

e
ls

.
C

o
lo

u
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

. 

Page 96



Existing Car Parking

Enfield Council LodgeDrive Depot

K
id

z
B

iz

Access from GreenLanes

Existing
Barrier gate

tarmac

tarmac

tarmac bins

7
n
o
.
E

xi
st

in
g

D
is

a
b
le

d
C

a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

S
p
a
ce

s

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2 Disabled Parking Bays to be
Reserved for Library Users

tarmac

Bicycle
Parking

KEY

Temporary Library

Existing Boundary Fence
of Council Depot

Existing Car Spaces 
Used up by building
(24 no.)

Existing Trees & Shrubs

Existing Lighting Columns

Proposed Traffic Safety
Bollards

R
e

v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

D
a

te
D

ra
w

n
S

c
a

le

A
rc

h
it
e

c
t 

\ 
S

.O
.

P
ro

je
c
t

C
A

D
 F

ile
 N

o
.

P
O

 B
o

x
 5

1
, 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

,
S

ilv
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 E
n

fi
e

ld
, 

M
id

d
le

s
e

x
 E

N
1

 3
X

B

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7

0
5

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l

1
:1

0
0

@
A

3
2

1
.0

3
.1

3
T

N

T
NP
a

lm
e

rs
 G

re
e

n
 T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

L
ib

ra
ry

A
D

J
A

C
E

N
T

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

R
A

N
G

E
M

E
N

T

D
/L

4
1

1
/0

0
3
6

4
4

  
 A

L
(0

)P
L

0
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

C
o
u
n
c
il

Existing Disabled Parking Bays

Bicycle Parking Rails

PROPOSEDTEMPORARY LIBRARY

ramp

ramp

E
n

tr
a

n
c
e

to
L
ib

ra
ry

E
x
is

ti
n
g

E
n

tr
a

n
c
e

to
K

id
z
B

iz

Existing
No-Parking

Zone

tarmac

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr N. Catherall Tel: 020 8379 3833

Ward:
Winchmore Hill

Application Number :  P13-00558PLA Category: Change of Use

LOCATION:  18, THE GREEN, LONDON, N21 1AY

PROPOSAL:  Change of use from restaurant (A3) to mixed use restaurant and take-
away (A3 & A5). 

Applicant Name & Address:
Matthew Wheeler  
18, THE GREEN,
LONDON,
N21 1AY 

Agent Name & Address:
MATTHEW WHEELER,  
MJW Surveyinng 
BUSINESS INNOVATION CENTRE 
1, ELECTRIC AVENUE 
ENFIELD
EN3 7XU 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the application be APPROVED subject to conditions.  

Agenda Item 14Page 99



Application No:-  P13-00558PLA

10 to 12

6

3

B
A
R

B
E
R

7

1
-1

4

4

1
7

14

1a

30

13

U
p
la

n
d
s C

o
u
rt

22

14 to 19

6

THE GREEN

(PH)

17

26

1
4

1

D
ev

on

55.5m

53.9m

4

H
ou

se

1

16

King's Head

1

1
0

1
3

4

Y
E
W

 T
R
E
E
 C

LO
S
E

Moor Park

7

4

P
a
th

1 to
 12

13

to

8

House

95a

24

2
a

2

2
a

70

2
9

Trough

10

13

55.8m

WADE'S GROVE

2

13

63

CLOSE

Builder's Yard

8

2

57.0m

1
6

18

1
9

36

41 to 55

1 to 12

67

LB

TCB

1

21

53.9m

49.7m

1

29

C
o

m
p
t o

n
 T

e
r ra

c
e

9

2
5
1

2

37

S
a

lis
b

u
ry

THE GREEN

R
e
p

to
n
 C

o
u

rt

2
1
2

10

33

2

2
1
4

17

88
4

Roseville

55.2m

3

1

C
o

u
rt

7

1

The Old

Dairy Square

4

Day Nursery

Valentine Mansions

1 to 3

34

2
a

10

Greenleigh Court 3D

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:19 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 100



1. Site and Surroundings 

1.1  The premises comprise the ground floor and basement of a terraced property 
situated within a parade of shops on the northern side of The Green in 
Winchmore Hill.  The application site falls within the designated Winchmore 
Hill Green “Large Local Centre“.  There is only one other  premises within this 
Centre used for take-away purposes, this being No.63 Station Road.  With the 
exception of the commercial uses within the Centre, the surrounding area is 
predominantly residential in character. 

1.2 The site is located within the Winchmore Hill Conservation Area. 

2. Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the change of use of the ground floor of the premises 
from a restaurant (A3) to a mixed use restaurant and hot food takeaway 
(A3/A5).  The application is retrospective and the take-away use is currently 
operating.

2.2 The ground floor provides a mix of restaurant and takeaway comprising a 
 service counter and food service area along one side, with tables and chairs 
 to the other side and to the rear, and an informal seating area comprising a 
 barstool seating arrangement to the front in connection with the takeaway 
 service.  The basement provides additional seating for the restaurant and 
 toilet  facilities.  Overall, the proposed use would have predominantly A3 
 characteristics. 

2.3 The proposed opening hours sought are 12pm until 10pm Tuesday to 
 Thursday, 12pm to 11pm Friday and Saturday, 12pm to 9pm on Sunday,  and 
 closed on Monday. 

3. Relevant Planning Decisions 

 TP/00/0540/DP1 - Details of fume extractor and refuse storage submitted 
pursuant to conditions 1 & 2 of approval granted under reference 
TP/00/0540. Approved, May2011. 

 TP/00/1693 - Conversion of first and second floors into two 1-bed self- 
contained flats with third storey rear extension, loft conversion with rear 
dormer window and external staircase. Granted with conditions, March 
2001.

 TP/00/0540 - Change of use of basement, ground floor and first floor to 
food and drink (A3), incorporating ground floor extension and new 
shopfront. Granted with conditions, July 2000. 

 CON/6394 - Unauthorised installation of replacement shopfront. This 
matter continues to be investigated and a further report on this matter will 
be brought to the Committee in due course 

 INV/12/0857 - Alleged unauthorised take away at business - no Planning 
Permission. 

Page 101



4. Consultations 

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1  Environmental Health have made the following comments: 

 They do not object to the application as there are no foreseeable issues 
regarding noise, nuisance or air quality.  The site has been operating as a 
restaurant for some time and there are no justified complaints recorded.  The 
part change of use to the ground floor to encompass the takeaway is very 
unlikely to lead to a loss of amenity to any local residents due to noise and 
disturbance.  The hours of operation will create no further noise and 
disturbance to the surrounding area if part use as a  takeaway is granted. The 
existing ventilation system will ensure that there is no odour release.  

 Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement have monitored the location and have 
not recorded any matters which required enforcement. 

4.1.2 Traffic and Transportation have raised no objection to the proposal. 

4.1.3 Southgate District Civic Trust made the following comments: 

 Parking required for a takeaway service is difficult in the area of The 
Green.

4.1.4 English Heritage have raised no objection to the proposal. 

4.1.5 Thames Water have raised no objections subject to standing advice. 

4.2  Public response

4.2.1  Consultation letters were sent to fifteen surrounding properties, the 
consultation period ended on 03 April 2013.  In addition six site notices were 
placed around the local centre, the consultation period ended on 11 April 
2013.  At the time of writing twenty three replies have been received. 

4.2.2 Twenty two objections to the proposal were received raising the following 
 points: 

 Use out of keeping with the Conservation Area 

 Increase in demand for parking 

 Increase of litter 

 Increase of late night noise 

 A grant of planning permission should be personal and secured by 
condition

 Litter should be controlled by condition 

4.2.3 One letter of support was received raising the following points: 

 The premises is very well maintained and providing a quality service 

Page 102



4.2.2 It is noted that a number of consultation responses highlighted concerns over 
 the shop front at the application premises.  This element is not included in this 
 application and so cannot be assessed as part of the analysis below. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
 allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
 the full implementation of the NPPF.  Within this 12 month period local 
 planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
 Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF.  The 12 month period 
 has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
 Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
 of consistency with the NPPF. 

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant.  The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination.  Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year.  The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

5.4 London Plan 

2.15 - Town Centres 
6.13 - Parking 
7.1 - Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities 
7.4 - Local Character 

5.5 Core Strategy 

CP17 - Town Centres 
CP30 - Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open  

environment 
CP32 - Pollution 

5.6 Saved Unitary Development Plan 

(II) GD6 - Traffic generation 
(II) GD8 - Site access and servicing 
(II) S18 - Assess food and drink proposals 

5.7 Submission Version Development Management Document (DMD)

 DMD 28 - Large Local Centres, Small Local Centres and Local Parades 
 DMD 32 - Managing the Impact of Food and Drink Establishments In and  
   Outside Designated Centres 
 DMD 34 - Evening Economy 
 DMD 45 - Parking Standards 
 DMD 68 - Noise 

Page 103



5.8 Other Relevant Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 
Winchmore Hill Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
Circular 11/95: Use of conditions in planning permission 

6. Analysis 

6.1   Impact on the vitality and viability of the “Large Local Centre”

6.1.1   The approved use for the application premises is as a restaurant within Use 
Class A3.  The proposed change of use would involve the retention of the 
restaurant use, with the addition of a takeaway service (Use Class A5).  It is 
considered that the mixed (A3/A5) nature of the premises would not adversely 
affect the character of this Large Local Centre, or limit the availability of 
premises to provide a range of convenience goods to the locality.    

6.2   Effect of Use on Character and Residential Amenities of Surrounding Area

6.2.1 The use of the premises would predominantly remain as a restaurant within 
Use Class A3 with the vast majority of floor area being dedicated to the 
restaurant use.  In addition the appearance of the premises is considered to 
be that of a restaurant, whilst there is a bar stool area to the front it is not 
uncommon for restaurants to have waiting areas to the front.  The siting of the 
service counter towards the midway point of the premises ensures that the 
common appearance of many hot food takeaways is not replicated here and 
therefore contributes to maintaining the character and appearance of a 
restaurant use.  Therefore the introduction of a takeaway use at the 
application would preserve the character of the Conservation Area. 

6.2.2 The permitted opening hours for the existing restaurant use, secured by 
Condition 3 of planning application TP/00/0540, are 8am to 11.30pm Monday 
to Saturday and 10am to 11pm on Sunday. The proposed opening hours 
sought are 12pm to 10pm Tuesday to Thursday, 12pm to 11pm Friday and 
Saturday, 12pm to 9pm on Sunday, and closed on Monday.  The proposed 
hours are a reduction of those currently permitted, given the concerns raised 
over increase noise generated by the addition of a takeaway element, the 
hours proposed by the applicant are considered to be reasonable.  In addition 
to this it is noted that the proposed hours would fall within the opening times 
contained in the Councils Supplementary Planning Guidance for opening and 
closing times (food & drink establishments) within Large Local Centres. 
Furthermore the opening times are broadly in keeping with existing food and 
drink establishments within the Large Local Centre.  As such any increase in 
noise or activity would be within an acceptable range given the siting of the 
premises towards the heart of the Local Centre, and it is noted that no 
objections have been raised by the Environmental Health Section in this 
respect.  It is therefore considered that the proposed opening times are 
acceptable. 

6.2.3 A number of public consultation responses raised concerns about potential 
 litter generation.  Winchmore Hill Green is divided into two with a road running 
 between the two elements, each element has one litter bin, in addition to this 
 there is a litter bin on the footpath outside No.2 The Green.  It is noted that 

Page 104



 the application is retrospective, to date no complaints have been received by 
 the Council in relation to litter generation.  Whilst it is acknowledged that 
 warmer weather will likely result in some utilisation of the Green for casual 
 consumption of food, the current litter bin provision is considered to be 
 suitable. There have been no recorded issues with little generation in relation 
 to the existing A5 premises at No.63 Station Road, it is therefore unlikely that 
 a mixed use A3/A5 at the application premises will lead to an unacceptable 
 level of litter. 

6.2.4 The suggestion that any grant of planning permission should be personal to 
 the current applicant was raised in response to the public consultation.  
 Circular 11/95: Use of conditions in planning permission, states that ‘planning 
 permission runs with the land and it is seldom desirable to provide otherwise’, 
 going on to suggest that it should only be applied for a use that would not 
 normally be allowed at the site.  Given the siting of the premises within a 
 Large Local Centre and the predominance of the A3 use, a personal 
 permission is not considered to be reasonable or within the circumstances 
 considered appropriate as detailed in Circular 11/95. 

6.3   Traffic Generation/ Parking

6.3.1 The site has a fairly low PTAL rating.  However there are pay and display 
parking facilities adjacent to the applicant premises and surrounding The 
Green.  Having regard to this,  the proposal is considered acceptable in 
transportation terms and is not considered to give rise to any significant 
adverse highway conditions due to the absence of any dedicated parking 
provision.  It is further noted that the Council’s Traffic and Transportation team 
have raised no objection to the proposal. 

.
7. Conclusion

7.1 It is considered that the proposed change of use of 18 The Green from A3 to 
mixed use A3/A5 would not undermine the character and amenity of the 
surrounding area, and would not result in unacceptable traffic generation or 
parking issues. 

7.2 It is therefore recommended that planning permission be granted for the 
following reasons: 

1. The change of use of the premises from A3 use to a mixed A3/A5 use is 
not considered to adversely impact on the viability and vitality of the 
Winchmore Hill Green Large Local Centre having regard to Policy (II) S18 
of the Unitary Development Plan, and Core Policy 17 of the Core 
Strategy.

2. The change of the premises from A3 use to a mixed A3/A5 use is not 
considered to give rise to conditions prejudicial to the free flow and safety 
of traffic or additional on street parking problems on the adjoining highway 
having regard to Policies (II) GD6 and (II) GD8 of the Unitary 
Development Plan and Policy 6.13 of the London Plan. 

3. The proposed use of the premises including the proposed opening hours, 
does not give rise to conditions prejudicial to the amenities of local 
residents or the residential character of the surrounding are having regard 

Page 105



to Policy (II) S18 of the Unitary Development Plan and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance. 

8. Recommendation 

8.1 It is recommended that the application be approved subject to the following 
conditions.

1. C60: Approved Plans. The development hereby permitted shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved plans, as set out in the attached 
schedule which forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The premises shall be used for a mixed A3/A5 use within Town and 
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as Amended) and retain the 
degree of the mixed use shown on the approved plans.  The area given 
over to takeaway service shall not be increased unless agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason : In order to protect the amenities of the surrounding locality and 
to ensure the use of the premises enhance and protect the vitality and 
viability of the Large Local Centre. 

3. The premises shall only be open between the hours of 12pm until 10pm 
Monday to Thursday, 12pm to 11pm Friday and Saturday, and 12pm to 
9pm on Sunday. 

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the surrounding locality and to 
comply with the guidance for opening hours for Large Local Centres set 
out in the Supplementary Planning Guidance. 

 Directive

1. Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat 
trap on all catering establishments. We further recommend, in line with 
best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and Grease, the collection of 
waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio 
diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result in this 
and other properties suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and 
pollution to local watercourses. Further information on the above is 
available in a leaflet, 'Best Management Practices for Catering 
Establishments' which can be requested by telephoning 0203 577 9963. 

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr S. Newton Tel: 020 8379 3851

Ward: Southbury

Application Number :  P13-00581PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  RUSSETT HOUSE SCHOOL, 11, AUTUMN CLOSE, ENFIELD, EN1 4JA

PROPOSAL:  Retention of existing classroom building together with link canopy to the 
north of existing block. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Director Schools & Childrens Services, 
Enfield Council
CIVIC CENTRE,  
SILVER STREET,  
ENFIELD,
EN1 3XA 

Agent Name & Address:
T Nadaraju,
Enfield Council 
CIVIC CENTRE 
SILVER STREET 
ENFIELD
EN1 3XA 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with Regulation 3 
of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992, subject to condition.  

Agenda Item 15Page 109



Application No:-  P13-00581PLA

9
7
0

Russet House School

Hall

11

Playing Fields

C
R

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

9
4
1

26.1m

8
7

6

2

9
3
3

1

8
8
8

25.6m

5

3
2

9
3
6

9
2
3

26.4m

8
6

4

6

9
2
4

9
0

0

9
1
2

L
in

d
e

n
 C

o
u

rt

26.3m

9

3
8

24.7m

Carterhatch

Children's Centre

9
5
0

G
R

E
A

T
 C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
 R

O
A

D

School House

5
0

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 11:08 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 110



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The Special Needs School is located behind Carterhatch School, on the north 
side of Carterhatch Lane.  It is accessed via Autumn Close, which runs north 
off Carterhatch Lane and parallel to the Great Cambridge Road (A10), with 
residential properties between the A10 and the application site.  The main 
school buildings are situated between the backs of houses on the Great 
Cambridge Road, to the west, school playing fields to the south and east, and 
a petrol filling station and flats, to the north.  

1.2 The existing development is predominantly single-storey, with some of the 
core elements of the school complex rising to a two-storey height.  

2.  Proposal 

2.1 Permission is sought for the retention of a temporary classroom building to 
the north of existing block, along the school’s eastern boundary together with 
a link canopy. 

2.2 The building is approximately 7.9m x 8.5m and to a height of approximately 
3.5m to the top of a flat roof. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 In May 2011, Committee resolved to grant planning permission (ref: 
LBE/11/0010) for a part single, part 2-storey extension to provide a classroom 
block, dining room and kitchen with a plant room at first floor level, pick up 
and drop off bay at front, relocation of fence to southern boundary between 
Russett House School and Carterhatch School and new car parking area and 
associated landscaping and formation of a Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) 
with 8m high lighting columns to Carterhatch School playing fields. This 
permission has been implemented. 

3.2 An application for the installation of a temporary classroom building to the 
north of the existing block (ref: LBE/10/0023) was approved at Committee in 
July 2010. Due to the building being a temporary solution to assist the school 
in meeting with its accommodation requirements whilst a permanent 
extension to the school was developed, permission was granted for a limited 
period of 2 years, expiring on 27 July 2012. 

3.3 An application for the installation of a temporary building to provide 1 
classroom with ancillary facilities (LBE/04/0011) was granted a limited period 
permission on 29th June 2004, with the permission expiring on 1st October 
2005. The application was made in combination with an application for 
permanent additional classrooms (detailed below). 

3.2 An application for the erection of single storey extensions to north and south 
elevations to provide additional classrooms, therapy rooms and associated 
facilities, together with erection of store to hall (LBE/04/0012) was granted 
planning permission on 2nd July 2004. These structures have been completed. 

4.  Consultations 

Page 111



4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

 Traffic and Transportation

4.1.1 The Head of Traffic and Transportation advises that there are no objections. 

 Property Services

4.1.2 No comments have been received from the Director of Property Services. 

4.2  Public response 

4.2.1 Notification to 13 neighbouring and nearby occupiers. No comments have 
been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March 2013 for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

5.4 The London Plan

Policy 3.16 Social infrastructure 
Policy 3.18 Education facilities 
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation 
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 5.5 Decentralised energy networks 
Policy 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals 
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy 
Policy 5.8 Innovative energy technologies 
Policy 5.9 Overheating and cooling 
Policy 5.10 Urban greening 
Policy 5.11 Green roofs and development site environs 
Policy 5.12 Flood risk management 
Policy 5.13 Sustainable drainage 
Policy 5.14 Water quality and wastewater infrastructure 

Page 112



Policy 5.16 Waste self-sufficiency 
Policy 5.18 Construction, excavation and demolition waste 
Policy 6.3 Assessing the effects of development on transport capacity 
Policy 6.7 Better streets and surface transport 
Policy 6.9 Cycling 
Policy 6.10 Walking 
Policy 6.11 Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion 
Policy 6.12 Road network capacity 
Policy 6.13 Parking 
Policy 6.14 Freight 
Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities 
Policy 7.2 An inclusive environment 
Policy 7.3 Designing out crime 
Policy 7.4 Local character 
Policy 7.6 Architecture 
Policy 7.14  Improving air quality 
Policy 7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP8: Education 
CP9: Supporting community cohesion 
CP11: Recreation, leisure, culture and arts 
CP20: Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
CP21: Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
CP22: Delivering sustainable waste management 
CP24: The road network 
CP25: Pedestrians and cyclists 
CP26: Public transport 
CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
CP31: Built and landscape heritage 
CP32: Pollution 
CP40: North east Enfield 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)CS1  Land requirements for facilities and services 
(II)CS2  Community services and the effective use of land 
(II)CS3  Facilities provided in the optimum location 
(II)GD3 Aesthetics and functional design 
(II)GD6 Traffic generation 
(II)GD8 Site access and servicing 
(II)T1         To ensure development takes place in locations which have 

appropriate access to transport networks  
(II)T16  Adequate access for pedestrians and people with disabilities 
(II)T19  Needs and safety of cyclist 

5.7 Submission version DMD

DMD17  Protection of Community Facilities 
DMD37 Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 
DMD42 Design of Civic/Public Buildings and Institutions 

Page 113



DMD45 Parking Standards 
DMD47 New Roads, Access and Servicing  
DMD49 Sustainable Design & Construction Statements 
DMD50 Environmental Assessment Methods 
DMD51 Energy Efficiency Standards 
DMD53 Low and Zero Carbon Technology 
DMD54 Allowable Solutions 
DMD55 Use of Roof Space/Vertical Surfaces 
DMD56 Heating and Cooling 
DMD59 Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk 
DMD61 Managing Surface Water 
DMD68 Noise 

5.8 Other Relevant Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 

6.  Analysis 

6.1 Principle

6.1.1 The building was initially erected as a temporary solution to assist the school 
in meeting with its accommodation requirements. The school has since 
implemented a permission to provide additional classroom facilities (ref: 
LBE/11/0010) and would now like to retain the building permanently to 
provide flexibility of use of teaching space. 

6.1.2 Whilst the principle of the building is accepted, consideration must be given to 
its design and sustainability as a permanently retained structure. 

6.2 Impact on Character of Surrounding Area

 Design

6.2.1 The building is a typical portacabin-type structure, unremarkable in all facets 
of its design. Due to the temporary nature of the original permission sought, 
some flexibility was given in terms of the design. A building intended to be 
retained permanently should be more appropriately designed in terms of its 
appearance and sustainability credentials. 

6.2.2 Policy 42 of the Submission version DMD confirms that civic buildings, 
institutions and other buildings providing services to the public, such as 
educational facilities must be designed to a high standard. This lends weight 
to the need to have a purpose-built building rather than to continue with the 
temporary building. It is therefore considered appropriate to recommend a 
further temporary permission for two years whilst a permanent structure is 
designed and implemented, should the school still wish to continue with the 
additional space that the building provides. 

 Height / Massing / Proximity to Boundaries

6.2.2 All elements of the proposal are appropriate to the context of the site and 
surroundings. 

6.3  Impact on Neighbouring Properties

Page 114



 Distancing

6.3.1 The nearest affected dwelling to any part of the proposed building is 
approximately 50m distant. It is therefore considered that there will not be any 
detrimental harm to the amenities of the adjoining residential occupiers. 

 Loss of Light / Outlook

6.3.2 Due to distancing and the low height of the proposed buildings, there will be 
no impact on neighbouring occupiers in terms of loss of light and outlook. 

6.4  Highway Safety

 Access and Traffic generation

6.4.1 The development would not generate additional school traffic movements as 
the proposal is not for the expansion of the school or pupil numbers but for 
the retention of the existing building to allow flexibility of space.  

 Parking 

6.4.2 The development does not impact on parking provision. 

6.5  Sustainable Design and Construction

6.5.1 Policy 49 of the Submission version DMD confirms that all new developments 
must achieve the highest sustainable design and construction standards. It 
also requires all developments to include measures capable of mitigating and 
adapting to climate change. Core Policy 20 of the Core Strategy requires that 
all new developments address the causes and impacts of climate change by 
minimising energy use, supplying energy efficiently and using energy from 
renewable sources. 

6.5.2 The building does not meet with the appropriate standards for sustainable 
design and construction for a permanent structure. This is considered to lend 
weight to a temporary permission. 

7.  Conclusion

7.1 Whilst the principle of the building is accepted, due to its poor design and 
sustainability credentials, it is considered inappropriate to retain the building 
on a permanent basis.  

7.2 A temporary permission for a further two years is considered more 
appropriate to enable the school to make use of the space which it affords 
and to enable the school to have a more appropriately designed permanent 
building implemented. 

7.3 Having regard to all of the above, Approval is recommended for the following 
reasons:

1. The retention of the temporary classroom by virtue of the limited 
period condition imposed, will not unduly detract from the character 
and appearance of the surrounding area having regard to Policies 

Page 115



(II)CS2, (II)CS3, (II)GD3 and (II)H8 of the Unitary Development Plan,  
Core Policies 8 and 30 of the Core Strategy, Policies 37 and 42 of the 
Submission version DMD, and with Policies 7.1 and 7.4 of The London 
Plan.

2. The proposed temporary classroom having regard to its design, size 
and siting does not unduly affect the amenities of adjoining or nearby 
residential properties having regard to Policies (II)GD3 and (II)H8 of 
the Unitary Development Plan, Core Policy 30 of the Core Strategy 
Policy 68 of the Submission version DMD. 

8.  Recommendation

8.1 That planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED in accordance with 
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992, 
subject to the following condition: 

1. C50A  Limited period permission (24months) 

Page 116



26.4m

L
in

d
e
n

C
o
u
rt

W
a
rd

B
d
y

C
R

25.6m

G
R

E
A

T
C

A
M

B
R

ID
G

E
R

O
A

D

26.3m

B
M

2
6
.7

0
m

26.1m

m

24.7m

A
U

T
U

M
N

C
L
O

S
E

S
u
ff

o
lk

s
B

a
p
ti
s
t

C
h
u
rc

h

1
4

2
4

3
2

3
8

4
8

1
2

8
6
4

8
7
6

8
8
8

9
0
0

9
1
2

9
2
4

9
3
6

1

2

5

6
9
5
0

9
7

0

9
8
0

9
5
7

9
4
9

9
4
1

9
3
3

9
2
3

9
2
1

9
1
1

9
0
3

92

1
8
8

1
8

Garage

7

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e

P
a
ra

d
e

9

PO

5
1

53 to 93 34 to 74

3
2

7
6

6
2

5
0

3
8

2
6

6
3

4
9

26

3
8

9

1
7

B
O

L
E

Y
N

A
V

E
N

U
E

Boleyn Hall

Carterhatch Schools

Garage

Scout
Hut

Caretakers House
Ground Floor

Russett House School 

Softplay

Existing tarmac
playground

Carterhatch School

Carterhatch School Field

N

Children's 
Centre

Russet House 
School Main
Building

Existing Car 
Parking

Existing Car 
Parking
(30 spaces)

Carterhatch School

Existing
Canopy link

D
ro

p
-o

ff
 Z

o
n

e

UP

Entrance

Existing boundary wall,
brickwork with mesh 

fencing along top of
wall

2m high 
brick wall

2.4m high 

Weld-mesh 
fence

Location of 
Existing Prefab
Classroom Building
for Permanent Use

2m high 
Weld-mesh 

fence

0 5 10 20 30 40 50 metres

RevisionDrawing No.

Drawing Title

Date DrawnScale

Architect \ S.O.

Project

CAD File No.
PO Box 51, Civic Centre,
Silver Street, Enfield, Middlesex EN1 3XB
Tel: 020 8379 6705

rchitectural

1:500 @ A1 14.01.13 TN

TN

Existing Site Layout

                                                  

Revisions

           
Construction Technical Services
Arlington House, 79 High Street, Ponders End EN3 4EN   

Council
M/E338/002308  AL(0)PL02

Permanent Use Prefab Classroom

Russett House School

Page 117



8
5

5
0

7950

1
2

0
0

3550

3400

P
la

n

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
C

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
A

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
B

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
D

A

B
D

C

300

370 Approx

E
x
is

ti
n

g
B

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
s
h

 f
e

n
c
in

g
p

a
n

e
ls

 t
o

 t
o

p
 o

f 
w

a
ll

E
x
is

ti
n

g
B

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
s
h

 f
e

n
c
in

g
p

a
n

e
ls

 t
o

 t
o

p
 o

f 
w

a
ll

E
x
is

ti
n

g
B

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 m

e
s
h

 f
e

n
c
in

g
p

a
n

e
ls

 t
o

 t
o

p
 o

f 
w

a
ll

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 g

a
te

 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 g

a
te

 

F
F

L C
la

s
s
ro

o
m

 

Q
u

ie
t

R
o

o
m

 
S

to
re

 
W

C
 

L
o

b
b

y
 

N
O

T
E

S
S

te
e

l 
fr

a
m

e
d

 p
rf

a
b

ri
c
a

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 w

it
h

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

la
s
ti
s
o

l 
fi
n

is
h

 t
o

 w
a

ll 
p

a
n

e
ls

.
P

ly
w

o
o

d
 s

k
ir
t 

to
 b

a
s
e

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
 

R
e

v
is

io
n

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

D
ra

w
in

g
 T

it
le

D
a

te
D

ra
w

n
S

c
a

le

A
rc

h
it
e

c
t 

\ 
S

.O
.

P
ro

je
c
t

C
A

D
 F

ile
 N

o
.

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
A

rl
in

g
to

n
 H

o
u

s
e

, 
7

9
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 P

o
n

d
e

rs
 E

n
d

 E
N

3
 4

E
N

  
 

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7

0
5

C
o
u
n
c
il

P
O

 B
o

x
 5

1
, 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

,
S

ilv
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t,

 E
n

fi
e

ld
, 

M
id

d
le

s
e

x
 E

N
1

 3
X

B

T
e

l:
 0

2
0

 8
3

7
9

 6
7

0
5

rc
h

it
e

c
tu

ra
l

1
:5

0
 @

 A
1

1
5

.0
2

.1
3

T
N

T
N

E
x

is
ti

n
g

 P
la

n
 &

 E
le

v
a

ti
o

n
s

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

R
e

v
is

io
n

s

  
  
  

  
  

M
/E

3
3

8
/0

0
2

3
0

8
  

A
L

(0
)P

L
0

3

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 l
in

k
c
a

n
o

p
y

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 l
in

k
c
a

n
o

p
y

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 l
in

k
c
a

n
o

p
y

0
5

1
0

 m
e

tr
e

s
2

4
3

1

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

U
s

e
 P

re
fa

b
 C

la
s

s
ro

o
m

R
u

s
s

e
tt

 H
o

u
s

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l

Page 118



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel:  020 8379 3841 

Mr C Ahmet Tel: 020 8379 3926

Ward: Upper 
Edmonton

Application Number : P13-00316PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  1 - 16 EAGLE COURT, 35, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2TF 

PROPOSAL: Replacement windows and front entrance doors and raise height of metal 
balustrade to balconies to a height of 1100mm.

Applicant Name & Address:
Enfield Homes 
9, Centre Way
London
N9 0AP 

Agent Name & Address:
Paul Hemmant 
Pellings LLP 
Northside House 
Mount Pleasant 
Barnet
Hertfordshire
EN4 9EB 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 16Page 119



Application No:-  P13-00316PLA

to

1
5

6

9

2
3

1

2
1
5

1
7

9

2
2

8

LB

GROVE STREET

1 to 45

T
r i

n
ity

 C
o
u
rt

2
4
1

2
8
8

to

12.5m

2
9

2
5

5

1
3

LANGHEDGE CLOSE

2
1
7

2
8

6

2
0

0

L
A

N
G

H
E

D
G

E
 L

A
N

E

1
1

2
7

2
1
1

10

2
5

6

2
1

3

1
7
2

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

8

1
9

2
9

a

2
0
7

3
5

to

3
3

2
6

1

1
5
0

3
7

1
 t
o

 3
2

Regan House

1
5

1
9
8

2
5

1
0

1
 to

 1
3
2

2
8

4

7

TCB

to
2
3
0

1 to 16

1
5
2

2
0

3

El

Sub Sta

2
0
9

S
N

E
L

L
' S

 P
A

R
K

2
1

2
5
3

1 to 45

2
3

2
5
7

2
6
3

2
6
5

GRO

57

County Court

4
2

12.5m

St Ja

War

Meml

1
5

4

2
5
8

B
o
u

n
d

a
ry

 H
a

l l

Temple

Edmonton

C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

218

2
9
8

92

2
9
2

El

312

E
l S

u
b
 S

ta

to

3
2
2

296

to

El Sub Sta

3
0
8

Sta

to

254 to 342

3
1
4

2
5

9

Eagle Court

Sub

252

S
t J

oh
n 

an
d 

St
 J

am
es

1

1 to
 24

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 09:49 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 120



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises a three storey block of flats, owned and 
managed by Enfield Homes, located in the Upper Edmonton ward of the 
Borough. The immediate surrounding area is primarily composed of 
residential land uses. The site and its grounds are not designated within a 
Conservation Area nor are they statutorily listed.  

2. Proposal 

2.1 The application involves the replacement of the existing metal windows and 
doors with UPVC, similar in style and design. The proposals also involve the 
raising of the metal balustrades to a height of 1.1 metres.  

2.2 The proposed works are part of ongoing improvements to the Snells Park 
Estate.

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 No relevant planning history  

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None   

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Notification letters have been sent to 36 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
a site notice was displayed at the site. The period for comment expired on the 
4th April 2013. No representations were received.  

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

Page 121



5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application." 

5.4 The London Plan

7.1  Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
7.4  Local character 

5.5  Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6 Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 High standard of functional and aesthetic design 

5.7 Submission Version – Development Management Document (DMD)

 DMD37 - Achieving High Quality and Design-Led Development 

5.8 Other relevant policy 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

6. Analysis 

6.1 The principle issue for consideration is the impact of the replacement 
windows, doors and balustrades on the character and appearance of the 
parent building and surrounding area.  

6.2 Impact on character and appearance of parent building and surrounding area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments. Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context. In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.     

6.2.2 The replacement windows and doors would be UPVC in design and 
construction and similar in style to the existing. The proposed increase in 
height to the balustrades are necessary to meet current health and safety 
requirements. Overall, it is considered that the nature of the proposals and 
their relative impact on the character and appearance of the parent building 
including the wider surroundings would be minimal. Therefore, it is considered 
that the proposals would comply with the requirements of Policy (II) GD3 of 
the Unitary Development Plan, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy, Policy 37 of 
the DMD and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.        

Page 122



7. Conclusion 

7.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposed replacement windows, doors and 
increase in height of balustrades would not have a harmful impact on the 
character and appearance of the parent building nor the surrounding area. In 
addition, there would be no new openings and/or alterations proposed that 
would provide grounds for concern. Planning permission is accordingly 
recommended for approval for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed development would not cause adverse harm to the character 
and appearance of the parent building nor the amenities of the surrounding 
area having regard to Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 
CP30 of the Core Strategy, Policy 37 of the DMD and Policies 7.1 and 7.4 of 
the London Plan.    

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:   

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not 
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the 
decision notice.  

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 123



D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o.

S
C

A
LE

D
R

A
W

N

T
IT

LE

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
LIE

N
T

@
A

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
R

O
N

T
 &

 R
E

A
R

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

-

0
8

-0
3
-2

0
1

2
1

:1
0
0

P
H

/C
A

D

1
1
8
 0

8
9
 0

1
9

-

R
ev

D
ate

N
am

e
D

escription

F
L

A
T

S
 1

 - 1
6

 E
A

G
L

E
 C

O
U

R
T

S
N

E
L

L
S

 P
A

R
K

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

E
N

F
IE

L
D

  H
O

M
E

S

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  IS

S
U

E

�

R
ev

D
ate

N
am

e
D

escription

A
07/01/12

W
indow

s &
 w

indow
 codes updated &

 balcony additions added.
M

V

Page 124



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon DavidsonTel:020 8379 3841 
R.Laws Tel: 020 8379 3605 

Ward: Upper 
Edmonton

Application Number : P13-00317PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  101-132, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2SY 

PROPOSAL: Replacement windows and front entrance doors and raise height of metal 
balustrade to balconies to a height of 1100mm

Applicant Name & Address:
Enfield Homes
Housing & Professional Services 
9 Centre Way
Claverings Estate 
Edmonton
London
N9 OAP 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Paul Hemmat 
Pellings LLP 
Northside House
Mount Pleasant 
Barnet
Hertfordshire
EN4 9EB 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 17Page 125



Application No:-  P13-00317PLA

to

9

2
3
1

2
1
5

1
7

2
2

8

LB

GROVE STREET

1 to 45

T
r i

n
ity

 C
o
u
rt

2
4

1

2
8
8

to

12.5m

2
9

2
5
5

5

1
3

2
1

7

2
8
6

2
0
0

L
A

N
G

H
E

D
G

E
 L

A
N

E

1
1

2
7

2
1

1

2
5

6

2
1

3

1
7

2

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

8

1
9

2
9
a

2
0
7

3
5

Isis House

to

3
3

2
6
1

1
5

0

3
7

1
 t
o

 3
2

7

4
4a

(Civil)

Regan House

1
5

1
9
8

2
5

1
0
1

 to
 1

3
2

2
8
4

7

TCB

to
2

3
0

1 to 16

2
0
3

El

Sub Sta

2
0
9

2
0

1

S
N

E
L
L

'S
 P

A
R

K

2
1

2
5
3

1

1 to 45

2
3

2
5

7

2
0
5

3

2
6

3

2
6
5

F
O

R
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

6
0

6
6

1

GROVE STREET

TCBs

44

4
8

PHT
C

B
s57

5
4

NUTFIELD CLOSE

42
a

County Court

7
3

12.6m

4
2

5
6

5
0

7
5

12.5m

5
8

5
2

7
7

St James's Court

C

8
3

War

Meml

1 to 5

P
O

79

6 to 23

1
 to

 8

1 to 30

Fortis

House

1 to 7

2
5

8

B
o

u
n

d
a

r y
 H

a
ll

Temple

Edmonton

C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sc

ho
ol

2
9
2

to

3
2
2

96

3
0
8

2
5

9

Eagle Court

S
t J

oh
n 

an
d 

S
t J

am
es

1

1 to 24

6
2

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 09:55 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 126



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1      The property is a 4 storey residential block of flats with a pitched roof situated 
on Snell’s Park Road close to the junction with Grove Street.  The block is 
managed by Enfield Homes. The surrounding area is residential in character. 
The site is not located within a conservation area and is not listed building 

2. Proposal 

2.1 The proposal involves replacement of the existing single glazed metal 
windows and front entrance doors to the block with new UPVC double glazed 
windows and doors of a similar style and design. The proposals also involve 
the raising of the height of the metal balustrade to balconies to a height of 
1.1m.

2.2       The proposed works are part of ongoing improvements to the Snells Park  
             Estate. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3. 1      No relevant planning history. 

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 53 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
a site notice was displayed at the site. No representations have been 
received.

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1 The National Planning Planning Policy Framework ( NPPF) published in 
March 2012 allowed local planning Authorities a 12 month transition period to 
prepare full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from the 28th March 2013 the Council’s saved UDP 
and Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their 
degree of consistency with the NPPF. 

5.2   The Development Management Document  (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime  to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document  was approved by Council on 27th March 2013 for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3    The Policies list below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 

Page 127



Therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing  the development the subject of this application. 

5.4      The London Plan

          7.1  Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
          7.4  Local Character             

5.5 Core Strategy

CP 30- Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6       Saved UDP polices

            (II) GD3- Design and character 

5.7     Submission version DMD

            DMD 37  - Achieving High quality and Design Led development 

5.8      Other Relevant Policies

           National Planning Policy Framework 

6. Analysis 

6.1    Principle

6.1.1 The principle issue for consideration is the impact of the replacement 
windows, doors and balustrades on the character and appearance of the 
building and surrounding area.  

6.2 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments. Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context. In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.  

6.2.2 The proposed replacement and doors would be UPVC in design and 
construction and similar in style to the existing. The proposed increase in 
height to the balustrades is to meet current health and safety requirements. 
Overall, it is considered that the proposals and their impact on the character 
and appearance of the area would be minimal. Therefore, it is considered that 
the proposals would comply with the requirements of Policy (II) GD3 of the 
UDP, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan 
and DMD policy 37.  

6.2.3 As such, the impact of the replacement windows, doors and increase in 
height of balustrades would not adversely impact on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area and therefore comply with Policy (II) GD3 

Page 128



of the UDP, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Submission version DMD 
Policy 37.

7. Conclusion 

7.1      Overall, it is considered that the proposed replacement windows, doors and  
           increase in height of balustrades would not have a harmful impact on the 
           character and appearance of the building and surrounding area. Planning 
           permission is accordingly recommended for approval for the following reason . 

1 The proposed development would not adversely impact on the 
character and appearance of the property or surrounding area having 
regard to policy (II) GD3 of the UDP as well as having regard to CP 30 
of the Core Strategy and Submission version DMD policy 37. 

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:

1.       The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The  development  to which this permission relates must be begun not   
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the 
decision notice. 

 Reason: To comply with the provision of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Page 129



D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o.

S
C

A
LE

D
R

A
W

N

T
IT

LE

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
LIE

N
T

@
A

1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
R

O
N

T
 &

 R
E

A
R

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

-

0
8

-0
3
-2

0
1

2
1

:1
0

0
P

H
/C

A
D

1
1
8
 0

8
9
 0

2
1

A

F
L

A
T

S
 1

0
1

- 1
3

2
 S

n
e

lls
 P

a
rk

S
N

E
L

L
S

 P
A

R
K

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

E
N

F
IE

L
D

  H
O

M
E

S

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

 IS
S

U
E

�

R
ev

D
ate

N
am

e
D

escription

A
18/02/11

W
indow

 C
hanges

P
H

B
07/01/12

W
indow

s &
 w

indow
 codes updated &

 balcony additions added.
M

V

Page 130



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon DavidsonTel:020 8379 3841 
R.Laws Tel: 020 8379 3605 

Ward: Upper 
Edmonton

Application Number : P13-00318PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  1- 32 TRINTY COURT, 33 SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2SY 

PROPOSAL: Replacement windows and front entrance doors and raise height of metal 
balustrade to balconies to a height of 1100mm

Applicant Name & Address:
Enfield Homes
Housing & Professional Services 
9 Centre Way
Claverings Estate 
Edmonton
London
N9 OAP 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Paul Hemmat 
Pellings LLP 
Northside House
Mount Pleasant 
Barnet
Hertfordshire
EN4 9EB 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions. 

Agenda Item 18Page 131



Application No:-  P13-00318PLA

to

1
5
6

9

2
3
1

2
1

5

1
7

9

2
2
8

Posts

LB

GROVE STREET

1 to 45

T
ri
n
it
y 

C
o
u

r t

2
4
1

2
8

8

to

12.5m

2
9

2
5
5

5

1
3

LANGHEDGE CLOSE

2
1

7

2
8
6

2
0
0

L
A

N
G

H
E

D
G

E
 L

A
N

E

1
1

2
7

2
1
1

10

2
5
6

2
1
3

1
7
2

Langhedge Lane Industrial Estate

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

8

1
9

2
9
a

2
0
7

3
5

Isis House

to

3
3

2
6
1

1
5

0

3
7

1
 t

o
 3

2

7

Regan House

1
5

1
9

8

2
5

1
0
1
 to

 1
3
2

2
8
4

7

Boundary Court

TCB

F
O

R
E

 S
T
R

E
E

T

to
2
3

0

1 to 16

1
5

2

2
0
3

El

Sub Sta

2
0
9

2
0
1

1

S
N

E
L

L
' S

 P
A

R
K

2
1

2
5

3

7

1

1 to 45

2
3

2
5
7

2
0
5

3

6

2
6
3

12

2
6

5

12.5m

War

Meml

1
5
4

2
5
8

B
o

u
n
d

a
ry

 H
a

ll

Temple

Edmonton

C
 o

f E
 P

rim
ar

y 
S
ch

oo
l2
9
8

2
9
2

312
E

l S
u
b
 S

ta

to

296

3
0

8

1 to 50

2
5
9

Eagle Court

S
t J

oh
n 

an
d 

S
t J

am
es

1

1 to 24

1
a

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:00 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 132



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1      The property is a 4 storey residential block of flats with a pitched roof situated 
on Snell’s Park Road. The block is managed by Enfield Homes. The 
surrounding area is residential in character. The site is not located within a 
conservation area and is not listed building. 

2. Proposal 

2.1 The proposal involves replacement of the existing single glazed metal 
windows and front entrance doors to the block with new UPVC double glazed 
windows and doors of a similar style and design. The proposals also involve 
the raising of the height of the metal balustrade to balconies to a height of 
1.1m.

2.2       The proposed works are part of ongoing improvements to the Snells Park  
             Estate. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3. 1      No relevant planning history. 

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 53 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
a site notice was displayed at the site. No representations have been 
received.

5. Relevant Policy 
            
5.1  The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012  
          allowed local  planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
          the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local  
           planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
           Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period   
          has elapsed and as from 28th Match 2013 the Council’s saved UDP and Core  
         Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree of 

consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2      The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
          prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
          version DMD was approved by Council on 27th March 2013 for submission to 
          the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and subsequent adoption 
         is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed criteria and standard 
          based policies by which planning applications will be determined.  

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and  

Page 133



therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing  the development the subject of this application. 

                           
5.4     The London Plan

        7.1  Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities      
        7.4  Local Character 

5.5       Core Strategy

CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open environment 

5.6      Saved UDP

         (II) GD3 High standard of functional and aesthetic design 

5.7     Submission version DMD

       DMD 37- Achieving High Quality & Design led development 

5.8  Other Relevant Policy

  National Planning Policy Framework 

6. Analysis 

6.1       Principle

6.1.1 The principle issue for consideration is the impact of the replacement 
windows, doors and balustrades on the character and appearance of the 
building and surrounding area.  

6.2 Impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments. Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context. In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.  

6.2.2 The proposed replacement and doors would be UPVC in design and 
construction and similar in style to the existing. The proposed increase in 
height to the balustrades is to meet current health and safety requirements. 
Overall, it is considered that the proposals and their impact on the character 
and appearance of the area would be minimal. Therefore, it is considered that 
the proposals would comply with the requirements of Policy (II) GD3 of the 
UDP, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan 
and Submission version DMD policy 37.  

6.2.3 As such, the impact of the replacement windows, doors and increase in 
height of balustrades would not adversely impact on the character and 
appearance of the surrounding area and would therefore comply with Policy 

Page 134



(II) GD3 of the UDP, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy and Submission 
version DMD policy 37.

7. Conclusion 

7.1      Overall, it is considered that the proposed replacement windows, doors and  
           increase in height of balustrades would not have a harmful impact on the 
           character and appearance of the building and surrounding area . Planning  
           permission is accordingly recommended for approval for the following reason. 

1 The proposed development would not adversely impact on the 
character and appearance of the property or surrounding area having 
regard to policy (II) GD3 of the UDP as well as having regard to CP 30 
of the Core Strategy and Submission version DMD  policy 37 . 

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:

1.       The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The  development  to which this permission relates must be begun not   
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the 
decision notice. 

 Reason: To comply with the provision of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Page 135



D
A

T
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
o.

S
C

A
LE

D
R

A
W

N

T
IT

LE

P
R

O
JE

C
T

C
LIE

N
T

@
A

1

P
R

O
S

P
O

E
D

 F
R

O
N

T
 &

 R
E

A
R

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

-

0
8

-0
3
-2

0
1

2
1

:1
0

0
P

H
/C

A
D

1
1
8
 0

8
9
 0

2
0

A

F
L

A
T

S
 1

 - 3
2

 T
R

IN
IT

Y
 C

O
U

R
T

S
N

E
L

L
S

 P
A

R
K

E
D

M
O

N
T

O
N

E
N

F
IE

L
D

  H
O

M
E

S

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  IS

S
U

E

�

R
ev

D
ate

N
am

e
D

escription

A
18/02/11

W
indow

 C
hanges

P
H

B
07/01/12

W
indow

s &
 w

indow
 codes updated &

 balcony additions added.
M

V

Page 136



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr R. Singleton Tel: 020 8379 3837

Ward: Highlands

Application Number :  P13-00590PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  1-9A ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY

PROPOSAL:  Replacement windows and doors to all elevations and cladding to front 
elevation

Applicant Name & Address:
Enfield Homes 
The Edmonton Centre 
36-44 South Street 
London
N9 0DX 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Sean Coyne 
Ridge
50 Southwark Street 
London Bridge 
London
SE1 1UN

RECOMMENDATION: 
That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) 
Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions

Agenda Item 19Page 137



Application No:-  P13-00590PLA

497 to 503

1
4

2
3

1

495

1
3

LB

A
B

E
R

D
A

R
E

 R
O

A
D

2
6

17.9m

H
A

R
T

S
W

A
Y

TCB

376

2

380

B
u

s 
D

e
p
o

t

A
N

G
L
E

S
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

1
7

25.8m

B
o
r o

 C
o

n
s
t  
&

 W
a
rd

 B
d
y

C
R

21.3m

Shelter

1
5

2

Bus Depot

S
ta

ti
o
n

S
o

u
th

b
u

ry

Posts

MP .5

1
4
2

CARDIFF ROAD

4

2

1
6
1

4
1

2
9

1
 to

 9

1
1

 to
 1

5

366

469

1
4
1

459

6
1
 t
o
 6

8

4
5
 t

o
 5

2

451

6
9

 t
o
 7

6

5
3
 t
o

 6
0

1
6
2

2

1
6

3
8

374

2
6

1
5

1

P
O

P
P

Y
 D

R
IV

E

El Sub Sta

7
7
 t
o

 8
4

1 to 14

85 to
 109

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 09:28 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 138



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises a four storey residential block of flats located 
to the north side of Southbury Road.  The immediate surrounding area is 
primarily composed of residential land uses.  The site and its grounds are not 
sited within a conservation area nor are they statutorily listed. 

2.  Proposal 

2.1 The application involves the replacement of the existing metal windows and 
doors with UPVC, similar in style and design.  The proposals also involve the 
replacement of exterior composite board cladding with new UPVC cladding 
boards.

2.2 The scheme forms part of a wider initiative by Enfield Homes, to upgrade 
existing social housing stock across the borough. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1  None. 

4.  Consultations  

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None. 

4.2  Public 

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to 27 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
notice was displayed at the site.  No objections were raised 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1  The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

Page 139



5.4 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.5 Submission Version DMD

 DMD 37: Achieving high quality and design led development 

5.3 Unitary Development Plan

(II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 

5.4 London Plan

Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities 
Policy 7.4 Local character 

5.4 Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  The principle issue for consideration is the impact of the replacement 
windows, doors and exterior cladding on the character and appearance of the 
parent building and surrounding area. 

6.2 Impact on character and appearance of parent building and surrounding area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments.  Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context.  In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.     

6.2.2 The proposed replacement windows and doors will match the design and 
style of the existing fixtures.  While it is obvious that the style and materials 
used in the replacement windows and doors would differ from the existing 
frames, every effort has been made to replicate the design of the original 
installations in the replacement units, with consistent openings to match the 
original window configuration, to present a uniform appearance that differs 
only in a marginal variation in the casement width.  In relation to the proposed 
exterior cladding, the variation in materials proposed would not alter the 
overall aesthetic of the subject property and would as a result of the change 
result in a consistent external appearance overtime with minimal 
maintenance.  This given, it is considered that the replacement windows, 
doors and external cladding would maintain a measure of consistency in the 
façade and consequently would not unduly affect the character and 
appearance of the property or the surrounding area.  Therefore, it is 
considered that the proposals would comply with the requirements of Policy 
(II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy, 

Page 140



DMD 37 of the Submission version Development Management Document and 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.        

7.  Conclusion

7.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and it is 
recommended that the application be approved for the following reason: 

7.2 The proposed replacement windows, doors and external cladding would not 
have a harmful impact on the character and appearance of the parent building 
nor the surrounding area.  In addition, there would be no new openings and/or 
alterations proposed that would provide grounds for concern. The proposals 
therefore comply with Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 
CP30 of the Core Strategy, Submission version Development Management 
Document policy 37 and Policies 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan.    

Recommendation

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject 
to conditions:   

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not 
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the 
decision notice.  

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 141



Page 142



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director, Planning & 
Environmental Protection 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr R. Singleton Tel: 020 8379 3837

Ward: Highlands

Application Number :  P13-00591PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  11-15A ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY

PROPOSAL:  Replacement windows and doors to all elevations and cladding to front 
elevation

Applicant Name & Address:
Enfield Homes 
The Edmonton Centre 
36-44 South Street 
London
N9 0DX 

Agent Name & Address:
Mr Sean Coyne 
Ridge
50 Southwark Street 
London Bridge 
London
SE1 1UN

RECOMMENDATION: 
That in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General) 
Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions

Agenda Item 20Page 143



Application No:-  P13-00591PLA

497 to 503

1
4

2
3

1

495

1
3

LB

A
B

E
R

D
A

R
E

 R
O

A
D

2
6

17.9m

H
A

R
T

S
W

A
Y

TCB

376

2

380

B
u

s 
D

e
p
o

t

A
N

G
L
E

S
E

Y
 R

O
A

D

1
7

25.8m

B
o
ro

 C
o

n
s
t 
&

 W
a
rd

 B
d
y

C
R

21.3m

Shelter

1
5

2

Bus Depot

S
ta

ti
o
n

S
o

u
th

b
u

ry

Posts

MP .5

1
4
2

CARDIFF ROAD

4

2

1
6
1

4
1

2
9

1
 to

 9

1
1

 to
 1

5

366

469

1
4
1

459

6
1
 t
o
 6

8

4
5
 t

o
 5

2

451

6
9

 t
o
 7

6

5
3
 t
o

 6
0

1
6
2

2

1
6

3
8

374

2
6

1
5

1

P
O

P
P

Y
 D

R
IV

E

El Sub Sta

7
7
 t
o

 8
4

1 to 14

85 to
 10

9

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 09:37 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 144



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 The application site comprises a four storey residential block of flats located 
to the north side of Southbury Road.  The immediate surrounding area is 
primarily composed of residential land uses.  The site and its grounds are not 
designated within a Conservation Area nor are they statutorily listed. 

2.  Proposal 

2.1 The application involves the replacement of the existing metal windows and 
doors with UPVC, similar in style and design.  The proposals also involves the 
replacement of exterior composite board cladding with new UPVC cladding 
boards.

2.2 The scheme forms part of a wider initiative by Enfield Homes, to upgrade 
existing social housing stock across the borough. 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1  None. 

4.  Consultations  

4.1  Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None. 

4.2  Public 

4.2.1 Consultation letters were sent to 52 neighbouring properties. In addition, 
notice was displayed at the site.  No objections were raised 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1  The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2 The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3 The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application. 

Page 145



5.4 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP30: Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.5 Submission Version DMD

 DMD 37: Achieving high quality and design led development 

5.3 Unitary Development Plan

(II)GD3 Aesthetic and functional design 

5.4 London Plan

Policy 7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities 
Policy 7.4 Local character 

5.4 Other Material Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

6.  Analysis 

6.1  The principle issue for consideration is the impact of the replacement 
windows, doors and exterior cladding on the character and appearance of the 
parent building and surrounding area. 

6.2 Impact on character and appearance of parent building and surrounding area 

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration, in all developments.  Similarly, Policy CP30 of the 
Core Strategy seeks to ensure that all developments and/or interventions in 
the public realm are of high quality having regard to their context.  In addition 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan states that developments should have regard to 
the form, function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and 
orientation of surrounding buildings.     

6.2.2 The proposed replacement windows and doors will match the design and 
style of the existing fixtures.  While it is obvious that the style and materials 
used in the replacement windows and doors would differ from the existing 
frames, every effort has been made to replicate the design original 
installations in the replacement units, with consistent openings to match the 
original window configuration to present a uniform appearance that differs 
only in a marginal variation in the casement width.  In relation to the proposed 
exterior cladding, the variation in materials proposed would not alter the 
overall aesthetic of the subject property and would as a result of the change 
result in a consistent external appearance overtime with minimal 
maintenance.  This given, it is considered that the replacement windows, 
doors and external cladding would maintain a measure of consistency in the 
façade and consequently would not unduly affect the character and 
appearance of the property or the surrounding area.  Therefore, it is 
considered that the proposals would comply with the requirements of Policy 
(II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy CP30 of the Core Strategy, 

Page 146



DMD 37 of the Submission version Development Management Document and 
Policy 7.4 of the London Plan.        

7.  Conclusion

7.1 Overall, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and it is 
recommended that the application be approved for the following reason: 

7.2 The proposed replacement windows, doors and external cladding would not 
have a harmful impact on the character and appearance of the parent building 
nor the surrounding area.  In addition, there would be no new openings and/or 
alterations proposed that would provide grounds for concern. The proposals 
therefore comply with Policy (II) GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, Policy 
CP30 of the Core Strategy, Submission version Development Management 
Document policy 37 and Policies 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan.    

Recommendation

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not 
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the 
decision notice.  

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 147



Page 148



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr A. Jarratt Tel: 020 8379 3842

Ward: Enfield 
Highway

Application Number :  P13-00592PLA Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  67-105, BOWOOD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7LL

PROPOSAL:  Replacement windows and doors to all elevations. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Tom Steggles,
Enfield Homes
EDMONTON CENTRE,  
36-44, SOUTH MALL,
LONDON,
N9 0TN 

Agent Name & Address:
Sean Coyne,  
Ridge
Ridge and Partners LLP 
50 Southwark Street 
London
SE1 1UN 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to conditions.  

Agenda Item 21Page 149



Application No:-  P13-00592PLA

Pavilion

191

79

Dressing Rooms

35

1
8
9

42

72

59

57

244

77

and Social Club

99

62

46

60

56

27

4
1

49

29

57

BOWOOD ROAD

El Sub Sta

1
1
7

28

38

F
I E

L
D

 R
O

A
D

Sports Ground

3
3

40

Sports Ground

97

3
1

105

53

Bowling Green

18
9
a

CARTERHATCH ROAD

5
0

Brimsdown Sports

87

WESTMOOR GARDENS

67

Pavilion

Posts

P
a
th

6

65

1
0
7

85

4
3

44

30

51

31

33

3
8

16.8m

205

Posts

51

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:25 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 150



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 A 4 storey residential block of flats located on the northern side of Bowood 
Road. The immediate surrounding area is primarily composed of residential 
land uses and associated amenity spaces. 

2. Proposal 

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the replacement of all existing windows and 
doors. The new doors and windows would utilise the existing window and 
door openings and would all be white UPVC. The improvements would also 
bring the block up to ‘secure by design’ standards 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 None relevant   

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None consulted 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 2 neighbouring properties. Notice was 
also published at the site. No responses have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1      The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2      The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3     The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application

5.4 London Plan

Page 151



7.1   Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
7.4   Local character 
7.6   Architecture 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure  

CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6     Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 High standard of functional and aesthetic design 

5.7 Submission version Draft Management Document

DMD37 – Achieving high quality and design led development 

5.8      Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework 

6. Analysis 

6.1 The principle issues for consideration are  

a) the effect of the proposed external changes on the character and 
appearance of the block and surrounding area 

b) the effect of the alteration on neighbouring residential amenities.  

6.2 Effect on Character and Appearance

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration in all developments. In addition, Policy 7.4 of the 
London Plan states that developments should have regard to the form, 
function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and orientation of 
surrounding buildings. 

6.2.2 This application proposes alterations to replace windows and doors on all 
elevations.  The existing windows are made up of a mix of double glazed 
UPVC and single glazed crittal casement windows. The submitted information 
demonstrates that the design of the proposed windows and doors would be 
similar to the existing with the main differences being that the window frames 
would be slightly thicker due to the UPVC material and that the replacement 
doors will have a larger solid (UPVC) element with 4 smaller glazed panels. 
Solid panels are also proposed to the lower portion of the existing windows, to 
the side of the main doors and these are currently clear glazed. Despite these 
changes, whilst noticeable in terms of appearance, the proposals would not 
detract from the overall appearance of the block or its appearance in the 
surrounding area.  

Page 152



6.2.3 An additional benefit is that the proposal is likely to result in creating much 
better heat retention and insulation capabilities in relation to all the existing 
units. .

6.3 Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties

6.3.1 The proposals do not involve the enlargement of any existing windows or 
doors, Moreover, there are no additional doors or windows proposed. As a 
result, there would be no effect on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  

7. Conclusion 

7.1. In the light of the above factors, the proposed replacement of all windows and 
doors is considered to be acceptable for the following reason: 

1. The proposed replacement of all existing windows and doors, by virtue of 
their design, siting and relationship with their surroundings, would not 
cause undue harm to the character and appearance of the subject 
building or wider surrounding area and would not impact upon the 
residential amenities of neighbouring occupants in accordance with 
Policies (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, CP30 of the Core 
Strategy; 7.1, 7.4 and 7.6 of the London Plan, Submission version DMD 
policy 37 and on the guidance of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision 
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 153



Page 154



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date : 23rd April 2013 

Report of 
Assistant Director - Planning, 
Highways & Transportation 

Contact Officer:
Andy Higham  Tel: 020 8379 3848 
Sharon Davidson Tel: 020 8379 3841 

Mr A. Jarratt Tel: 020 8379 3842

Ward: Enfield 
Highway

Application Number :  P13-00615LBE Category: Other Development

LOCATION:  161 - 167, GREEN STREET, ENFIELD, EN3 7LB

PROPOSAL:  Replacement of all windows and doors. 

Applicant Name & Address:
Tom Steggles,
Enfield Homes
The Edmonton Centre,  
36-44 South Street,
London
N9 0DX 

Agent Name & Address:
Sean Coyne,  
Ridge and Partners LLP 
50 Southwark Street 
London
SE1 1UN 

RECOMMENDATION: 
In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations 
1992, planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to condition 

Agenda Item 22Page 155



Application No:-  P13-00615LBE

14

Durants Lodge

S
 M

E
A

D

11

2
7

145

2

1

163

16.2m

220

161

165

167

2

2

198

PCs

1
3

238

16.2m

6

16.5m

1

AMBLESIDE CRESCENT

1
2

1
3

9

1
6

H
U

N
T

S
 M

E
A

D

2

1
a

26

1

LB

226

2

El Sub Sta

GREEN STREET

212

Posts

159

1
7

184

172

1
4

200

16.5m

2
a

1

1
4

16.5m

Development Control

Scale - 1:1250
Time of plot: 10:31 Date of plot: 10/04/2013

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 150m

© Crown copyright. London Borough of Enfield LA086363,2003

Page 156



1.  Site and Surroundings 

1.1 A 2 storey residential block of maisonettes located on the southern side of 
Green Street. The immediate surrounding area is primarily composed of 
residential land uses and associated amenity spaces. 

2. Proposal 

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the replacement of all existing windows and 
doors. The new doors and windows would utilise the existing window and 
door openings and would all be white UPVC. The improvements would also 
bring the block up to ‘secure by design’ standards 

3.  Relevant Planning Decisions 

3.1 None relevant   

4.  Consultations 

4.1 Statutory and non-statutory consultees

4.1.1 None consulted 

4.2 Public

4.2.1 Consultation letters have been sent to 2 neighbouring properties. Notice was 
also published at the site. No responses have been received. 

5. Relevant Policy 

5.1      The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in March 2012 
allowed local planning authorities a 12 month transition period to prepare for 
the full implementation of the NPPF. Within this 12 month period local 
planning authorities could give full weight to the saved UDP policies and the 
Core Strategy, which was adopted prior to the NPPF. The 12 month period 
has now elapsed and as from 28th March 2013 the Council's  saved UDP and 
Core Strategy policies will be given due weight in accordance to their degree 
of consistency with the NPPF.  

5.2      The Development Management Document (DMD) policies have been 
prepared under the NPPF regime to be NPPF compliant. The Submission 
version DMD document was approved by Council on 27th March  2013  for 
submission to the Secretary of State for examination. Examination and 
subsequent adoption is expected later this year. The DMD provides detailed 
criteria and standard based policies by which planning applications will be 
determined.

5.3     The policies listed below are considered to be consistent with the NPPF and 
therefore it is considered that due weight should be given to them in 
assessing the development the subject of this application

5.4 London Plan

Page 157



7.1   Building London’s Neighbourhoods and communities 
7.4   Local character 
7.6   Architecture 

5.5 Local Plan – Core Strategy

CP20 Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure  

CP30  Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 
environment 

5.6    Saved UDP Policies

(II)GD3 High standard of functional and aesthetic design 

5.7    Submission version Draft Management Document

DMD37 – Achieving high quality and design led development 

5.8     Other Relevant Policy

National Planning Policy Framework 

6. Analysis 

6.1 The principle issues for consideration are  

a) the effect of the proposed external changes on the character and 
appearance of the block and surrounding area 

b) the effect of the alteration on neighbouring residential amenities.  

6.2 Effect on Character and Appearance

6.2.1 Policy (II) GD3 of the UDP aims to ensure that high standards of design are 
taken into consideration in all developments. In addition, Policy 7.4 of the 
London Plan states that developments should have regard to the form, 
function and structure of an area and the scale, mass and orientation of 
surrounding buildings. 

6.2.2 This application proposes alterations to replace windows and doors on all 
elevations.  The existing windows are made up of a mix of double glazed 
UPVC and single glazed crittal casement windows. The submitted information 
demonstrates that the design of the proposed windows and doors would be 
similar to the existing with the main differences being that the window frames 
would be slightly thicker due to the UPVC material and that the replacement 
doors will have a larger solid (UPVC) element with 4 smaller glazed panels. 
Solid panels are also proposed to the lower portion of the existing windows, to 
the side of the main doors and these are currently clear glazed. Despite these 
changes, whilst noticeable in terms of appearance, the proposals would not 
detract from the overall appearance of the block or its appearance in the 
surrounding area.  

Page 158



6.2.3 An additional benefit is that the proposal is likely to result in creating much 
better heat retention and insulation capabilities in relation to all the existing 
units. .

6.3 Impact on Neighbouring Residential Properties

6.3.1 The proposals do not involve the enlargement of any existing windows or 
doors, Moreover, there are no additional doors or windows proposed. As a 
result, there would be no effect on the amenities of neighbouring occupiers.  

7. Conclusion 

7.1. In the light of the above factors, the proposed replacement of all windows and 
doors is considered to be acceptable for the following reason: 

1. The proposed replacement of all existing windows and doors, by virtue of 
their design, siting and relationship with their surroundings, would not 
cause undue harm to the character and appearance of the subject 
building or wider surrounding area and would not impact upon the 
residential amenities of neighbouring occupants in accordance with 
Policies (II)GD3 of the Unitary Development Plan, CP30 of the Core 
Strategy; Submission version DMD policy 37, Policies 7.1, 7.4 and 7.6 of 
the London Plan and on the guidance of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

8. Recommendation 

8.1 In accordance with Regulations 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
General Regulations 1992, planning permission be deemed to be 
GRANTED subject to conditions:   

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans, as set out in the attached schedule which 
forms part of this notice.  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

2. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of the decision 
notice.

Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 159



Page 160



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
	


�

��

�
��
��
�

,
8
�5
:
�-
5
,
5

�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
��
	

�

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 
�
�
!
��
�"
�
	

�!
�	



��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

��

�
��
��
�

,
8
�5
:
�-
5
,
5

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��

��
��
�

�
�
	


�
��
�
��
�
�#
�
$�
�%
�

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
��

��
�

�
�

�
 
�
�
!
��
�"
�
	

�!
�	



��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

��

�
��
��
�

5
;
�5
<
�-
5
,
5

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
9
��

�
��
��
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��


�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�

�
�	

$
��

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�#
�	
��

	
��
��
�

&�
��
��
��
�



�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�'
(

')
*�
)*

�+
,-

+,
-

+,
-

�
�

.
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
	�
'�
1
'*
��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�

��
��
��
�

	

��
��
�
$%
��
�
�
��
��
��
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�$
�%

�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

��
�

��
��
��

5
;
�5
<
�-
5
,
-

�
�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�'
((

�
-(
��
�

�-
�'

-�
'�
��

-�
'

�
�

�
	


�
�.
�
�

	
��
�
	�
�
��

�
��
�"



��
2
�

�

�
�
	0
��
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
%

�
	�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

��
�

��
��
��

�
�
�
�

��

�
''

�

�'
'

�

�'
'

�
�

�
	


�
�.
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
	0
��
�
�
�
$

�

��

�

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

'�
�

��
��
��

�
�
�
�

�
��
��

*,
3

�
�

�

4'
-�
5
�6
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
	

��
��
�
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
$

�

��8
�

	
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�0
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

(

��
)�
��



�
�:
�=
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

4
�

	�


�
��
��
��
/,
,
75
,
7,
-
1

(


�
�
�
�
��
4
�%
�
�
�
	�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�

��
	

��

��
�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
�
�

��
��
	�
�
�
�
�

9



�
��
��
:
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��

�

�	

�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
��

	

�	

�
��
�
�
�$
1
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��

	
��
�

�
��
%
�

��
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��

��

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�(

�
�)

�(

�
�)
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
	


�
�.
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
	0
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

,�

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�
�
�

�
�
�(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

8
�
�	

<
�

�
��
�
��
�
7
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
��
��

�
�

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��

�
'�
�
��
�
#
>
��
�
��
�$
�

�
��
��
�0

�

��
�
�
$

�

�
�0

�
�
	

��

�
�
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�
�0

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

',
�

��
��
��

�5
,
�5
8
�,
5

#�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
�

	�

(


�
�



��
�
�
��
�

?
��
�
�>


�
�
�

��
	�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	


�
��
	

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
,�

�
��

�'
3

�,
,�
3*

�'
**

-
))

+*

�
��

�
�'
**

-
))

�,
�

-)
)

!

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
$�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��
�
�
�

�
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
$$
�
	�
��.
�
�	
�
�

��
��

�
��
�
��
$�
��
��
�
��
�$
$�
0

�
��
		
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
'*
1
')
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
�0
%
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
'*
�?
��
0
@

��
�

��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
$�
��
��
�
A�
�

�
B
�

�
�
��
�
	

��
��
��
%
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

�

��
�
$�
�0

�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�
�
�
	�
�

�

��
0
@

��
��
�
��
�
	


�

�
��
�
��
�
�!
��
6
�
�
�

�
��
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

3�

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�=
�
�
�

&�
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

�

�
�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
�

�

�

��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�

	
��
$�
�
�

�

'�
�'
��
��
��

�
!
'�
3�
�
�
	


�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�3
�

��
�

�*
�

�'
��
'3

��
-

-+
+

�-

-
++

�-

-
++

�
�

.
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
	�
'�
1
'*
�.
�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
�	
��
�
	�
��
�
�0

�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�0
%
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
�

�
��
��

�
9

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
,

��
�

�,

�
��

�
��
,

��
�

�

6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�#
�
0
$�
��
�
	�
��.
�
�0

�
��

�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
$�
�	

�
�
�
	�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
0
$�
��
�	
��
��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�

6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�6
��
�

	�
#
$�
�
��

'+
��
(�
��
��

5
;
�5
<
�-
5
,
-

-3
(

��
)�
��

(


�
�
�
�
��
4
�%
�
�
�
	�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��

�
$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�

�


B
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�
$�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
	�
�
�

�0
�
�$
��
��
�$
�
	

�
D�
�

�
$�
%
��
	

�1
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

��
��
$�
�%

�*
�(

�
�)

�*
�3

(
(�
�-
+

�
B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�0
�
�$
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�?
��
�$
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�

��
�
��
��
�$
��
�
�
��
	�
�

��
��
�
�$
�

�

	�
��

�
A

�$

�
��
	


��
��
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
�

��

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��

�
��
��

�
�

�

�

	�
��
��
�

��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�0
�
��
��
��
$�
�%
��

Agenda Item 26Page 161



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
��
*�

+
3(

�*
�

+3
(

�
��
*�

+
3(

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�*
-

�)
'

*-

�
)'
��
�

�
�*
-

�)
'

�

�
�
�
�

�'
(

()
��
��

�3
�

3�
6
5

3�
�

�

�6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�=

0
��
�

�� 
�
$�
��
�
��

0
��
�

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�'
�,

�
-�

'�
,

�-
��
��

�
�'
�,

�
-�

�

6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�=
�%
��
�
�
��
�
��.
�

�

��
�

�
��
$

��
�
	�
�

$
��

	
%
��
��
�
	�
@

��
��
��
�

�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	

��
$�
��
�
��
��

�

.
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�$
�!
�
	�

%
��
�
��
�
��
��
0

�
�
�
�

��
�
�$
��

�
��
�
�
��&
�
��
��
$�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
	

�0

�
�
�
��
�
		

�
�$
%
�

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
���
.
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
%
�

�
�$
$�
�

�
�0
$

��
�

�
�

�

�
���

�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��

�

��
�

�
�	
��

�
��
	�
�
��
$�
��
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
��
��

$
��

	
�6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�

"
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�=
�%
��
�
�
��
�
��

&�
��
��
$�
�
�
	�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�%
��
�
�

$�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
��
�

�3
�

��

�
3�
��
�

�
��
�

�3
�

�
4�
'(

)
-)
��
(6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�6
��
�

	�
$�
�
�2
�

�
�
�
�
#
��



��
��
�
�
�
$

�


�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�,
�

,�
�

,�

,
��

)-

,
��

)-
,�
�

�,

�
��

�

�
�
.
:
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�2
��
$�
�

	
�9
	�
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�

�
��
$$
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�

0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
��
�(

'
**

��
(

'*
*�
)�

��
(

'*
*

��
('
**
�)

�
�

�
�
.
:
��
��
��

�
��
$

%
�.
	�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
=
�
	�
��
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�

�
��
$$
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��
��
�

0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

',
�

��
��
��

;
1
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��



�
�

�
��
�

.
�
�

��
�0
$�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�0
$

�

.
	�
�
��
�
	�
�#
$�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�

0
%
��
�

�
�
$�
�

	
�9
	�
�

�

!
�


	
��
�
��
	�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
$�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�$
��
0
$�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
�0



�
��
�
��
�$
$%
��
�
	


�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
0
�
��
��
�	
��

�
��
�$
$�
0

�
	

�


�
�$
�
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

B
��
�
��
6

	
��
��
�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

),

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�


3
�
�(
�
�
�

�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�	

�
�
��
��

�

�
��

��
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$
�
�

�
�
�
�

�)
,

��
�

�)
,

��
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

'

�*
,

+,
��
��

,
�5
8
�-
5
,
-

5
,
�5
6
�-
5
5
A

?�
��
�*
'�
A�
�.
�

�

B
��
��
��
�

�
��
$

��
�
	�
�

$
��

	
%
�

�
��
�
	�
@

��
��
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	

��
$�
��
�
��

��

�
.
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�$
�!
�
	�

%
��
�
��
�
��
��
0

�
�
�
�

��
�
�$
��

�
��
�
�
��&
�
��
��
$�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
	

�0

�
�
�
��
�
		

�
�$
%
�

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
���
.
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
%
�

�
�$
$�

�
�0
$

��
�

�
�

�

�
���

�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��

�

��
�

�
�	
��

�
��
	�
�
��
$�
��
�
�
��
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
��
��

$
��

	
�6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�

"
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�6

	
��
��
�
�=
��

	
�=
�%
��
�
�
��
�
��

&�
��
��
$�
�
�
	�
��
��
��
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�%
��
�
�

$�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�,
',

+
,�

��
),

�
��

#�
�
�
��

�
�
��
"
�
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
	�
�

�
��
	

��
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
�
��
�

	
��

��
�
	�
�
	�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
	�
�

�

&�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�	

�

�

	
��
��
�
�

�$
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�:
�$
$

%
�

�
�
		
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$
�

�

��
�$
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

$�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�

	

�

�

	
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

6
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�5

�
�
��
�
�
�$
$�

&�
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�

 
�	
0

�
��
�
��
�&
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�

�
	

��
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
$�
�
�
��
�

�

$

�
�
��
��
��
6

	
��
��
�
�=
�%
�

��
�
�6
�
$$
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



*
��
=
3
�
4
��
#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��

$�
��
$�
	

��
�

�
��

�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�

#
	�
�

	
�%

��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�$
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
0
$�
��
�	
��
��
�
	�

�

&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�%
�$

�

�

�
�
�
	�

�)
,

��
��
��

,'
,

+,
��
��

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
	

%
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	

�
��
$�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
�

�

��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��


�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

?7
'

�7
��
��
�
�7
+A
�
�
$$
�$
��
�

�
�

0
%
��
��

�
��
�
��

�
	�
��
��

�,
��
(�
��

Page 162



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

'�
,

��
��
��

�)
��
,�
��
')

!
�
��
��
�
�0
$

�.
	�
�
��
�
	�
�#
$�
�
�

�
	�
�
��

	
��
�
0
$�
��
�	
��
��
�
	�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
	


�
��
��
�
�

��

�
9

�

$
�
�

	

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�,

�
��

�3

+
�(
��
�

�'
'+

'
('

-*

'
('

A
):
5
5

(

,�
�

�'
�+

3
('

�)
,

��
�

�
�
		

�
��

B
�

�
�
��
�
	

��
��
��
	�
��
�
��
$�
��
��
��



��

��
	�
��
		
%
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
��

�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�
	�
	�
�$
�

�
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
�

	�
��
��
��
�

�

��
��

�
�
	�
��
�

	

�
�
�%
�0

�
��
�
��
�0

�
�
	

��
�
%
�

��
	�
�

	
�

B
�

�
�
��
�
	

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

	
�$
$�
0
��
�

	
��
��

�

�
�.
�

�
0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�
0

�

��

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
$�
�

�
��
��

�
�	
��

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�'
+

)-
'

'+

)
-'

�
�'
+

)-
'

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

-
:
�5
:
�-
5
5
A

.
8
�/
8
C
�
;
�
�
�.
 
�
�

�
�
6
�
&;
&;
�
��
6
8
C
;
.
�

.
8
��
.
�'
)+

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

,
��

�

,�
�

�
�

�

4'
''

�
+3
� 
�	
0

�
��
�
��
�.
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

���

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
�4
�,
��
��
��
�
	�

$

�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�0



�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

)*
(

(-
(�
��

-
,
�5
A
�-
5
,
:

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!

�)
*(

(
-(

�)
*(

(
-(
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
4)
*(
5
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
!
�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
�!
��
�
�
$�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

(,

�
�)
��
�

-
,
�5
A
�-
5
,
:

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�%
�

�

��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
%
�$

�
�
��
�
��

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�(
,

��
�

�
�(
,

33
'

(,

3
3'

<
<
)5
@
,

))
�+
��
-3

�,
'

,+
�

�

4(
,5
��
��

�
��
&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
!
�$
�

	
�!
�	



��

!
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

���
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
��

�

�
�.
�
�0

�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�6
�%
�

��
'*
��4
��
3*
(�
��
�0

�
�	
��
��

	
	

�
��
�
��
.
��
')
�

.
2
�
D�
��
��

�
0



�
��
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��

	
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
$�
��
��

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*�

�
��
��
�

-
,
�5
A
�-
5
,
:

�
4
�
�
�
��
�
�

?
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

.
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�

��
�#
%
�
�

�
�#
�	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*
�

��
�

�*
�

��
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

#
%
�
�

�
�#
�	
�
�&
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�
�
$

�


C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

,

�'
'�
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�,

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
6
�
�

�
��
�
�!
'�
3�
6
��
��

�

�
��
"



��
.
�*
�*
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
9
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�?
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�
�
��
$�
��
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�


�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
�	
��
�
��
��

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�

�
��
	�
$�
��
$�

�

	
��
�
��
	

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�'
'

�
�

�'
'

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��

�
�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*,

�
��
��
�

(
�
>
��
��
�
�
�-
�

8
�
�	

<
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
$�

�
�

�
�

!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
#
>
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

�


�
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

��
�
�	
�
$$

�
��

�

�
�	
��
�
�

>

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�7
�
$$
��
��

�
��
�
8
6
#
�
�
.
�
��

6
��
�
��
	�
@

��
��
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
��
�
$%
�	

�
�

�
�

4�
�

�-
,�
-*
��
#
>
�=
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
$

�

��

�

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
%
�$

�
��
��
$�
��

�

� 
�	
0

�
�

�
�
��
�.
�
�
�
��
�

�"

�
��
0
�$
��
%
�!
��
�
%
��

�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�	

�
�$
$�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
)�
3�

0
	�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

B
��
��
B
��
�
�
��
��
?0
%
�

�)
��
,�
�)

�'
�'

,
�(
��
�

'+

�
��
��
�

'�
�

��
��
��

-
<
�5
;
�-
5
,
-

�'
��

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
�

,+
'

 

�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

.
#
1
�(
1
')
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
�
$�
	�

�

�
��
�
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
	

�0
%
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��

	
�
��
�
�
��

�
�

	�
�


$

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�	

�
�

��
��
�

)*
(�
�<
�
�	

�

�

�
	

��
�
��
	

��
�$
��
�
�
�

��
��
$$
�	
%
��
$�
�
	�
��
��

�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�	

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
��

	
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
�

-
:
�5
:
�-
5
5
A

*
��
=
3
�
4
�#
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��

.
�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�$
�
��
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��

�

�
��

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

��
�


��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
%
�$

�
$�
�
�
�

�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�

��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�


��
�,
-�

(
�
>
��
��
�
�
�,

��
	�
��
�
��
$�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�	

�
�	
�
�

��
��
�

�
�

��
�0
�$
��
%
��
��

0
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
��
��

�
�
�
�	
�
$$

�
�#
�	
�
��
�
�>
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�

B
��
��
�
�
��
�	



��
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
$�
�
��
��
'�
	

��
�

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�'
�+
��

%
�

�
�
	�

	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�(
*�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
��
�A
��
�
�
��
,3
�

�<
�
���
��
�
��
��

�
��
��



��
��

�

$
$�
��
�'
3�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
��
�1
�

*�
��
�
	

%
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�
�

�

��
�
�
�
�
�
�$
�	
�
�
��

�
�	
�

�
��
�
�
��

	
	�
�

�

��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
��
%
�$

�

��
��

�

��
��

�

�
�	
��
�
�$
��
�
��

��
��
�
$�
�
�
��
�
��
$�
�


�

��

�
��
%
��
	

��

��
��
�
$

�

��
�
	

%
��
$�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
��
0
$�
��
�)
�
��
�
�
�

$

��
	�
��
�%
�

,-
�

'(
)�
��

	

��
	0
��
�
�

�
�

��
$�

	
��
��
�
�

��
�
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

�)
,

��
��
��

�+
��
)�
'�

Page 163



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

',

�
��
��
�

-
<
�5
;
�-
5
,
-

�
�
�
�
��
�
�	



�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
	

��
�
�
�

��

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�

��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�

�

�
�	
��
�
��

0

�
�



�
��
�

�
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�"
�
	

�

!
�	



�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
-

',
'

�
�'
+

--
)

'+

-
-)

'+

-
**

'+
-*
��
-'

�)
'

�

#

�

�
�	
��
�
�&
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�$
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�

!
�$
�

	
�!
�	



��
�
��

�
��
!
��

�

�
$�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
.
��
,)
���
�
�
�
$

�

��7
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
��



�
��
��
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
<
:
�

�
�
��
�1

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
�	
��
�
��
9



�
�
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

7
'

�7
�

�7
+�
�
�

��
��
�
1
�
	�

�
�

��
��
	�
�
��
�

�	

�
�
��
��
�

�

	

�%
�$
��
�

��
	�
�

��
��
�

�

	

�
	�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�9

�
�
��

�$

�
�
��
�
�
1
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
$�

�

�
��
$

�

��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
��
��

�
�

��
�
��
��

	
��
�
�
�
�
	�
�

�

	�
��

�
���
?8
�
�$
��

A
�

��
��
3�
��

�
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
�

��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��


3
�

�
��


�
�
�
�
�

�
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

#�
�


�
�
��
�

?

�



�
�=
�
��
�

�


��
�

	�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
��

�

��
��
�
�
��


��
�
�
��
0
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

3
��
=
��
��
=
�
��
�,
�

	�
�=
�
�

"


�
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

?
��
��

#�
�


�
�
��
�

?

�
�
�
�

��
�+

)
�*

��
�+
�'
(

��
�)

�
�

��
�)

�

4�
�+

)
�*
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��

$
�
�&
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

�2
��
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

7
�
��
�

�
��
#
�	
�

�(
�'
��
�+

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

'�
�

��
��
��

'�
�

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�



?
��
�
��
.
�

�
�
��
�
�

%
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

?
��

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

	

�

�

	
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��

�
	�
�
��
�$
$%
��
	�
�
�6
5
�=
�
	�
��

9
%
��
�
��
�
��
�!
'�
3�

�
�
	


�

�
��

�
�
�
�

�'
'+

'
+*

�*
�-
�-

�+
,

),
3

+,

)
,3

�
�+
,

),
3

�

9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�

�

��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�

	�

�
��
��

��
�
�
��
	�
�$
�

��
��

�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
	�
@

��
��

�

�

$
�
�

�
�0
%
��
�

�
6

	
��
��
�
�#
�	
�
�7
�
��
�

�
��

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
$

�

�
�

�
�0
%
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
$

�

�
��
��

�
#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�
�

�

�

�

	
��
��
�
�#
	�
�
	�
�
�

�

+
%
�(


�
�


�
��
�
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��


B
��
��
�
�
�0
�
�$
�
��
�

��
�
�
�

	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�
�

��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
��
	


�
��
�
	

%

�

�

�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
� 

�
$�
�
��
�	

�

�

�
�	



��
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�)
��
)�
�)

�
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

.
��
��
�
��
�
�
�#
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

��

�
�
��
�
�

?
��
�
�

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�

��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	



��
�
�	
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
,

��
�

�'
)3

��
)

+,
)

�)

+
,)

�
��
)

+,
)

�

8
	�
�
��
�$
$%
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
��
�	



��

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
!
��
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��7

�
�
�
�	

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	


�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�

��
��
��
$�
0
$

��
�
��
�
�	

�
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��8
��
��

	
��
�	

�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
� 

�
$�
�
�

�

�
�	

�
��
�	

�
�
�

��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�

$
�
�
��
�

�	
��

$
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
��!
'�
3�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

��
	�
�

B
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
$%
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��

�
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�
��
��
��
	

%
��

�
��

�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�-
��
3�
�-

7
�
��
� 
�$
$�
#
�	
�

�

-�
��
��

�

-�
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
��

�

��
�
��
�%
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

-
��

�
��

(
--

�

(-
-

�
��

(
--

�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�"
�
�
��
�%
�=
�
	�
��
��
�"
�	
��
�
��

�

��
��
�
�$
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�%
��=
�
	�
��
�	

�

��
��
��

�
�
$�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��

��
�

�



��
��
$$
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�

�

�
��
�0

�

��
�
$

�

�
�

�

��
�
$�
�

$
%
��
�
�0

�
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
$�

*

��
��
��

*
��
=
3
�
4
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

��

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�3

'
('

�
�3

�
,+

3

�,
+�
��

�
�3

�
,+

�

.
	�
��
��
�6
��
��

�

�
��
�

�
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
$�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
$

�

���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

.
2
.
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
��
$�
��
�
�
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	


�
�
�%
�	
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�B
�

�
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�.
"
�
�

(3

3
�,
��
�

�



?
��
�

��



�

�
��
��
�
4
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

.
7
�

�(
33
�,

�
�

�
�

.
	�
�
��

	
	

�
��
�
�.
��
��
�
��
�	
	%
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��

'*
,

��
��
��

�

�
		
��
�.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

.
�
�
��

�
��
��
�"
��
�

��
��


�
�
�
�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

.
7
�

�'
*,
��
�

�
�

�
�

.
	�
�
��

	
	

�
��
�
�.
�$
��
�
��
�	
	%
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��

'3
��
'�
�)

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
	


�
0
$�
��
��
�
��
'3
��
�
��
��
��
	�

7
'�
?0
A

��?
�A

�7
��
��
�
1
�
	�
7
+�

�
�

��
?0
�
��
�

�
�

��

�

	
�$
�

��
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
�
�
1
�
	�

��
�
	�
�

1
�
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�

�A
�

?�
�
��
$�
�
��
+(
�+
��
<
�
A�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	

�$
�
		
%
��
�
�
�

/�
0
�$




3(
+�
�

�
��
$

�

��
�
�

	�
�$
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

�*
)

3�
,�
��

Page 164



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

=
�
�	
�

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

'*

*
,�
��
�

'*

*
,�
��
�

5
;
�5
-
�-
5
,
6

C

�
�%



?
�

�
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

�
�
�
�

�'
*

*,
�

�
�'
*

)'
(

'*

)
'(

'*

)
'(

�
�

.
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
	�

'�
1
'*
��7
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
�

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

*

,�
��
��

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�
C

�
�

%



?
�

�
�
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

�
�
�
�

�3

�
��

3

��
�

�
�

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

�

,�
��
��

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�

(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

*

��
��
��

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)

,
,)

)

,,
)

�
�

�
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
�6
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�=
�
�
�
��

(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
	�
��



��
�
	�
�

�
$�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
$%
��
��
�
$�
�

�

�
��
��
	

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

*�

�
��
��
�

�+
�'
��
��
�'

(


�
��

�
�
��


�
��

�
�
�

!
�
=
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

.
�
��
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
�
0
$�
��
	

�$
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
	

��
��
	


�

�
$�
�
��
�
�

��
�	



��
��
	�
��
�
	


�

	

�

�
�$

��

�
$�
��

	
��
�

��
��
�
�

	�
��
�
�
�$
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
�%
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�

�
��

��
�
��
��

�
��

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�?
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�*
'

�'
+

�
�*
'

�(
�

�
�

�*
'

�(
�

�*
'

�(
�

!
��

�

�
��
	

�0

�
�
�
��
�
	�

�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
� 

	
��
��

�
8
��
��

	
��
�
��
�0
$%
�

��
�	

$
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
	

��

�
��
�

�

�

	
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
�

�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

),

(
(�
��
�

�+
�'
��
��
�'

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!
�

�)
-

,+
)

�)
,+
(3

�'

3
++

'

3+
+

�
�'

3
++

�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
��
�$
�#
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�0

�

�	
��
��

	
	

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%
�

/�
0
�$




��

�
��
��
�

��
��
'�
'3

(


��
�
�
��
��
=
�

	
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
��
�<
�
��
��
��
�
�
�0
��
�
�

�
�0
��
��
��
��
��
�
$�
�
0
��
�

=
�
�	
�

�
�
�
�

��

�
��

�
��
�

�)
�

�
�

��
�

�)
�

��
�

�)
�

#
	�
@

��
��
	�
�
�
��
$�
��
�0

�
�
�
��
	�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
$�
�
0
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
��

$
��

	
�

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�
�	

�
�

/�
0
�$




'

*,
��
��

;
�
��

�
�
$�
�

�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

'

*,
�

�
�

�

/�
0
�$




�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

(
4
��
�
��
�
�=

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�=
�
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�?
3
�
4
�

�



�

�
�
�
�
�

	�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�$
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�
�	
��
��
�
�
$


��
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�

0
�
��
��
��
*3
�B
��
�0

�
	�
�
�
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
$�
��
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��

�
��
	�
�
��

7
�B
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
��

*�
��
*�
�3

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*

3�
��
��

*

3�
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��


3
�

�
��

�


�
��



�
�
�
�

	�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�
�3
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�*

3
��

�
�)

'
�3

)

'�
3

)

'�
3

�
�

.
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
��

�
@�
0
��

�
��

�
�
��
	�

��
�
�	
�0
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
$�
�

��
�
	

�
��
�

��
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

�



��
�
�0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�	
�
�
�

�
�	
��
	

��
�$
�?
�
'A

��
�	
��
��
	�

��
$

�1
�
�	
��

�
?!
�
��
�

�

	
��
A�

��
�)
�	

�
��
$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
��
�


B
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�
'�
0

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�0

�
��
�
��
��

��
��
+�
'�

�
	�
�
�

�

�,

�
��
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
�
�$
�
�

�
	

�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
��
�
�

��
��
$�
��

�
1
��
�
��
�%
��
�
	�
��

��
�
��
�	
	�
��

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
,

��
�

�,
��
�

�'
(

-+
�

�'
(

-+
�

-
,
)A
8
6

�'
(*
,�
(-

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
$�
��
�

#
�	
��

�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

6
�%
��
�'
*�
?�
�

	
��

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�0

�
��
�
�

�
�

(
�

�


�
��
�

0
��
�
�

!
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�

$
��

	
%
��
��

��
	0
�
�
��
��
B
��

�

�
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
��

$
�

�
�

	

�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�

	
��
�
�$
�
��
$�
��
��
��
�
�0
�$
��
%
��
	�
@

��
��
��
�

�

3

��
�

�(

�
��

(

��
��
��

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�
��
;
*�

'�
�'
'�
''

-
5
�5
,
�-
5
,
6

�'

*
,�
��
�

-,

(
(�
��
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
�,
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��

)

��
�	
��
,�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�?
)�
B
�

'�
0

�

�'
-�
B
��
�0

�

�)
�B
�*
�

0

�

��
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�'
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
A�
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�

�	
�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	

�	
�
�
��

�

		
��



�$
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
%
�$

�

��
�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
�"
�
	

�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�	

�

�

0
��
��
��
�
��
$�
�
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
$

��
��
	

%
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
1
�

��
��
��
0
$�
��

��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
��

	
%

��
%
�$

�
��
�
	


�

�

�

�
��

�
�0
�
��

	
��
�	
��
�

�
��
�
��
%
�$

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
-�
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

0
�%
��
?8
#
.
&8
;
�*
A�
�

'�
��
'�
''

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
*

,'
'�
�<
�
�

�
�	

�
�
�
�

1
�
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
�?
�
$�
��
�7
+A
��
��
�
�

��
��
$$
�	
%
��
��
��

�
��
��



�

��
	1
�
��
1
 
�
:
��
�	
�
��
�

�

�

�
��
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�-
��
+�
�+

.
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
	�

'�
1
'*
��7
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
�

Page 165



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

)�

�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��

$
�

�
�

	

�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
?�

�
��
$�
��
�
�

!
'�
3A
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)
�

��
�

�
�)
�

��
�

�
�

�)
�

��
�

�)
�

��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�

	
��
�
�$
�
��
$�
��
��
��
�
�0
�$
��
%
��
	�
@

��
��
��
�

��
�
$%
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�	
�
�

��
�
�$
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

,

��
��
��

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
	


�
��
	


�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

�
�,

�
��

,

��
�

�
�,

�
��

�
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
$�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
	


�
��
	


�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
=


�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
4
��

�

�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�

$�
��
$�

�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
	�

	

��
�

�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
�
	�
�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
!
�
�
�
�C
�
��

(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
4
��
�

�

�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�

$�
��
$�

�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
	�

	

��
�

�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
�
	�
�
��

�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

"
%
!
�9
�*
��
��
��
3
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
*�
);
F
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�

�

	�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
*�
B
��
�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�-
�0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
$�
��

�
�7
'?
�A

�7
��

��
�
�7
+�
?$
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�$

�

�

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�
1
��
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�A
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�

�

�-
��
)�
�(

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

)�

�
��
��
�

)�

�
��
��
�

��
��
'�
��
'3

� 
��
�
�
�%
�&
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��

=
�
	�
��

=
�
	�
��
��
�6
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
�$
�
�

�
?0
�
��
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
��
�
A�

��

G
�

H�
&�
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��

	

�
��

�
�$
�
��
��
�
1
�
�
$�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
�

H�
#
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��



H�
.
�

�
��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
��

�

�
��
	

��
��
��
��
��
��
�%
�$
��
��
�

��
�
��

�

�
�	
��
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�0
��

�
�
��
�0



�
�

��

�
�

�
��;
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�

��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�

�

#
�	
��
	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�	
��
	

��
	0
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
*,
��
�
��
��
��
	�
7
'�

?7
�
��
�

�
�A

�7
��
?�

�

	
�$
�

&�
�
�
��
	%
A�
��
�
�7
+�
?!
��
	�
�

�

1
�9
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
A�
�
�

��

��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��

I
I�
�
��

�

�$
�
�
	�

��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�

��
��

�
��
��
�
�

'*
��
3�
�-

#
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
�

',

�
��
��
�

',

�
��
��
�

,�
�
��
�
�
��

	
��
	%
��
��

�
�%
�

�
�

&�
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
��
=
�
�
�
��
��

�

"
�
	�
��
�
	

��
�
���
	

��

�
�

�
	

�
�

�
�
�#
$�
�
�;
�
���
��
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�

$�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
7
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�

7
�
��
�

�
��
�
	

�

�
�

�
�

�

5
�

	�
#
	�
�

	
��

�
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��

��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
�;
�
��
�
	�
�

	
��
$�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

�
��
��
�
�

�;
�
�
��
��
-�
�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�

4�
�

-)
)�
�
	�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
�4
',

+
)+
��

�
�
�
�
�	
%
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�

!
2
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�

C
�
�

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*3

�
��
��
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��



?
�

�
$$
��
�
	�
��
�

�

�
��
	%
��
�
�

��
	�
��

�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
%
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�

��
�
�0

�

��
		
�

�
��
�
��
0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

��
��
	�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
"
�
	

�!
�	



��
��
�
�

�
	�
�

�
!
�	



��
��
��

�
�	
�0

�
�

��
��
�

�
"
�
�
	�
�
�!
��

�
�
$

��
��

��

�
�
�
	


�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

(

��
��
��

�!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
4
�D
��
�
�
��

��
��


�
�
�
��
�

�
�3
��
=
��
=
�
�

�
�=
�
�
�
�/
�
�=
�
�
�
��
�-
�

	�
�=
�
�

�
,
5
6
1�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

(

��
��
��

!
�
	�
�
��
�C


�
��
�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
@�
0
�0
	�
�

	
��
�
�

�

	�
��

�
0
%
��
�

�
/�
0
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

),

�
��
��
�

��
��
��
'�

;
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

�
��
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
�

��
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�0
��

�
��

�
�

�
��;
�
��
��
�
��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
�

0



�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��



9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
(�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�?
��
��
$�
�

�
�
�
��

�(
�,
�
A�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

	

��
�$
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
?,
��
��
<
�
���
$�
��
��
'�

�
�

A�
��
�
��
)�
	

��
�

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
�0
�
�

�
?�
��
B
��
�0

�

��
�

B
�*
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

0
��

�

�
��
�%
�$

�
��
�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
��
�

'�
�'
��
�-

33

�
��
��
�

#
�	
��
�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�$
�
��
��
��
�
��
��


B
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�

	

��
�$
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�*
�'
'�

;
�
	�
�
�!
<
�
�	

�
��
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
��
�	
��
��
�
�
$


��
�	
��
��

��
�
	

%
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

 

	
��
�
	�
��
�
��
���
�
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�

�
�
�

	
�$
$�
	

��
�$
��
�
��
�?
�
'A
�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
$�

Page 166



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

"
=
=
��
�$
$�
�
��

�
�
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

7
�
$$
��
��

A

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��

�
��
��
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�

"
=
=
��
�$
$�
�
��

�
�
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�%
��
�	
�
��
�
	

��
?�
�
�$
��

7
�
$$
��
��

A

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

'*

+
,�
��
�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

/�
0
�$




*�

�
��
��
�

��
�
.
:
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
�
�
.
:
��
�
�

	
��

�

�
��
��

�
0
�
�
�
�
�	
%
��
��
��

�

��
�

�

�
��
�$
�
�
��
�
��

;
��
�
��
�
�
�$

�
�
�
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*
�

**
+

�
�'
�3

3
��

�
�

�'
�3

3
��

�'
�3

3
��

/�
0
�$




-�

�
��
��
�

�

�
		
��
�(
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��

�
��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�	
��
��
��
��
$�
��
�
��

�
��
	

��

��
��
�
�$
�
�

�
	�
��

�
�I

0
	�
�

�	
�
��
��
�
�

��
�



�
��
�
�
�
��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�0
$

��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�-
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�

/�
0
�$




*

��
��
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�D
��
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*

�
*(

�
�

�
�

�

/�
0
�$




-�
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�-
��

�
�-
��

-�
�

�
�

�

/�
0
�$




�

,�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��
	�
	

�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
���



�
�

�$

�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�1
�
�
�
0
$

�

%

$
$�
�
�$
��

�
��
�
�
�I
��
�I
��
��

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
�	



�

�
=
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

,
�+

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

�

��
�

-+
-�
+�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

 
 
�
�
!

�'
'�

*
()

�
�'
'�

*
()

�
�

�'
'�

*
()

�'
'�

*
()

#
�%
�

�
��
�	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�$

�
�
�

�
��
��

	
��
�
�
��
��

�
��,
�J
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�	

�

�
�

�
���

�
��
�
��
�
�,
�J
��
�

�

�
�
�$
��

	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
��

.
�
�0

�
�
�
�
��
�
	

�
��
$�
�

$%
��
�
	�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�%
�

�
��
�.
7
�
�0
%
��

�

$
�
�

	
�?

�
��
$

�
�

�
�
��



*)

)
'�
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�

��
���
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��
��
�

�
�
��

$
�

!
2
�
!

�*
)

)'
�

�
�*
)

)'
�

*)

)
'�

*)

)
'�

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
6

	
	%
�
�$
$�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
�

�
B
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

��

�
�
��



'*

)
3�
��
�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�'
*

)3
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

�

.
7
�

�*
��
=
3
�
4
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�(


��
�



	�
�



?
��
�
%
(
��

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

,�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
�

��

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
%
��
�
��

�
��
��
�

$
$�

��
�
��
�
	

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
(�
��
�

$
$�
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
%
�!
�

�
���
�
�0

�
��
�
	�
�

�
�

0
%
��
�
�
�
��
$�
�
7
�

��
7
�
��

	
�

�
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�%
�

�
��
�
��
�,
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�%
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

''
+

�'
)�
��

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

'�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
��
�
�.
	�
��
��
�
�

!
�	
��

�
%
��
�
�
�"



�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
$�
%
�

�
��
.
	�
��
��
�
�

!
�	
��

�
%
�0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

(

��
��
��

�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���

��
�
�	
�
��
/�
0
��

�
�.

�
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
@�
0
�0
	�
�

	
��
�
�

�

	�
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

��
�
�

	
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
	�
*�

%

�
	�
���

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�8
�

�
�!
�
��

�
�

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�	

�


B
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
	�
�0
%
�

�	
$%
�6
�%
��
'�
*

=
��
�
��
�'
��
%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

�3
-

�'
)�
��

�
��


��
�
��


�
�

�3
+

3,
(�
+�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
)�
��
�
�

	
��
�$
��
�
�
�

'�
��
	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�	
��
3�

��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
+�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

�
��
'�
(�
��
<
�
��
��
��
�
�

	
��
�$
�

�$
�
�
	�
�
��

�
?�
'�
�

�
��
$

��
��

�
��
��

�

��
*�
�

�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�


�
��
0
$�
��
�

�
��
A�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�

�

�)
,�
B
�'
�0

�

�*
*�

B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�'
-�
B
�*
�0

�
�

�$
��
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�

�	
�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	�
��
�
�*
�

0
$�
��
��
�
��
,�
B
�*
��
��
	

%

�)
�

0

�
��

	
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�
%
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�

	

�	

�'
�0
$�
��
��
��
3�
B
�*
�0

�
�

�
�	
��
��
��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
	�
$�

�
�	
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

	
	�
�

��
��

�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
	

�	
��
�
�
�'
�B
��
�

*�
��
*�
'�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
$

�

��
�
	

%

��
��
�
	�
�

�
�	
%
�

�
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
�
�
$�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�


B
�

	�
�$
��
$�
%
��
	

��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�
+�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�)
��
�
�
�

��
?�
�B
�*
�

0

�
��
�
�
��
�B
��
�0

�
A�
��
�
�)
�

�$
��
��
?*
�B
�*
�0

�
��
�
�
�'
�B
��
�

0

�
A�
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

��
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
0
��

�

�
��
��
�

�
	�
�
��

�
)�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

��
�
�'
��
�	
��

�
�
��
�
��
��

�
��

	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��


B
��
��
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�$
��
��
	

�

��
��
��
�0

�
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�3
��
�	
��
�
	�
��

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
��
��
�
$

��
��
	

%
�

��
'�
''
�'
-

#
�%
�

�
��
	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
���

�
�
��
��
��

	
��

�
��

�
0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
	�
@

��
��
�	

�
0

�
�
�
�

'-
�'
��
'-

��
� 
��
$

%
��
�
���
��

'�
3

��
��
��

�3
��
'�
'�

=
�
�
�
�

�
�

	
� 
�$
$�

�+
�'
��
''

Page 167



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*�

�
��
��
�

�#
�
0
$�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
�2
��
�	
��
$�
0
�

�
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
�?
�)
�

�
�
��
�A

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
� 

�
��
�
�
�

!
%
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

')

�'
3'

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

')

'
3'

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

,

��
��
��

�.
	�
�

$
�7
�
�
�
�

&�
��
�

�

�

�
��
��
��
��
�

�
.
	�
�

$
�

#
$�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�



��
�

��

��
	�

�
��
��
��
�

��
�
	�
�	
��
��
��

��
�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
	�

%
��

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*�

�
��
��
�

��
�	
�F
�
�$
��
%
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��

��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�	
�<
�
�$
��
%
�

��
��
�

�
$�
��
$�
�	

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*,

�
��
��
�

�&
�
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
	

�9

$
��

	
%
�

"
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
	

�

��
�

�
�0
$

��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��

��
��
��
�
�
�
$%
��
��
�

�
��

�

	
�
%
�

�
�

	
�
%
���
�

���

.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�"
�
�
��
�	



�
�
�

?
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
!
'�
3

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

��
�
��
��
��
	


�
��
�
=
��
�
�
)�

�
�

?
��
�
)�
��

	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

*

��
��
��

��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�D
�	
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

-�
��
��

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�-
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
4

��
��
�
0
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��

�
%
�

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�0
%
�

��

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

*


��
��
!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
4

��
��
�
0
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
��

�
%
�

��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�0
%
�

��

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�

�

	

�	
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
	

��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�	

�
��
�
�0
$

�

�	
��

$
$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�

�

 
�
�

$�
?�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�

$

��
��
(�
J
A

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	


�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
�

��
��
�
0
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

/�
0
��

�
��
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

,�

�
��

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
�

��

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
%
��
�
��

�
��
��
�

$
$�

��
�
��
�
	

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

''
+

�'
)

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

!
2
�
!

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�

�#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�)
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��

�
!
'�
3�
?8
��
�
0

	
��
�'
�A
�&
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�0



�
�

��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�

B
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
$%
��

.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�3
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
�
�
��
�
�?
9

�

�
0

	
��
�'
�A
��.
#
�	

<
�

�
�

�
���

=
��
�
��
�'
��
%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

;
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

*

-�
�

-�

�
��
��
�

�'
��
3�
'�

6
�
�
��
�
�
�&
�
�
���
��
��

�
��
'+
��
�<
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
+�

'*
-�
�%
�$

�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
	�

�
�	
�
��
��
.
	�
��
$�
�	
�#
$�
�

�

�	
�
�
��
�
0
$�
��
��
��
	�
�
��

�

C
�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�

��
��
$�
�%
��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
	

�

�
�0
$

�

�

	
�
%
��
	�
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
0

	
��
�
�
�
$�
��
�
�


B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�

��

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�


��
�
0
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�

	�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

B
��
��
�
�

B
�
�
�

�*
�

3
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
	�
�
��
�	
�

��
$

��
��
�
��

	
�
��

�

0
��
<
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
$

��
��
	

%
�	

�
	�


B
�

�
��
�
�

��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�


B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

��
��
$$
�	
%
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�


�
�$
�
��
	

��
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�

�$
�
�
	�
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��

�

�
�	
��
�
�

��
�

��
��
�
�
�

B
�

	�
�$
�

��
��
	�
��

�
��
��
	�
�
�

��
�	

�
��
$�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
%
��
�$
$�
��
�	

�
	

�

�$
�

	�
��
�
�
��
��
�	

�
	�

'(
��
)�
'�

')
�'
��
'�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
)�
��
�
	

%
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�-
*�

0

�
��
�
�

$�
?�
$�
��
��
'A
�

Page 168



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

%

�
	�
���

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

,�

�
��

�8
�

�
�!
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�

��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
!
��

/�
�
�
��
8
�

�
�!
�
��

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

*�

�
��

�#
�
0
$�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
0
$�
��
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

��

�
0
�
�
�
�
�	
�

��
�
��
��

�

C
�
�

	
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�9
��
�	
��
��

�

�
�	

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
�2
��
�	
��
$�
0
�

�
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
�?
�)
�

�
�
��
�A

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
� 

�
��
�
�
�

!
%
��

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
%
��
�

��
�
��
	�
��
1
�
	�
��
	

��
�

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
%
��
�
��
��

$

��
��
��
��

$
$�
��
��

�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
�

��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�"
��
�$
��
%
�

!
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

')

'
3'

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

:
)5
5
A
);
<
;
�,
:

:
)5
5
A
);
<
;

$,
);
,
5
)A
6
5

,
)-
5
<
)6
8
<

8
;
8
):
:
:

5
<
<
8
)-
A
<

$,
)-
<
,
)A
<
;

$:
<
6
)8
:
6

5

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

-,

�
��
��
�

8
5
�5
;
�-
5
,
-

�*
��
=
3
�
4
��
��

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�	
��
��
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
��
�

�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
��
�
��
1
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�@�
�
��
��
�
���
��

���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�-
,

��
�

.
7
�
�

�'
-

�,
+

'-

�
,+

�
�'
-

�,
+

�

=
�
	�
��
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	

��
�
�
�
$

�

��

7
�$
��
�

��
��
��
�

	

��
��
�
$%
��6
��
�
��
	�
@

��
�

��
�
�
$

�

��
��
��
�
��
�
$%
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�

0

�
��
��
		

�
��
�
��
�'
*1
')
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

',
�

��
��
��

8
5
�5
;
�-
5
,
-

!
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
��
��

#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
7�

!
�
=
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

.
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
�

�

�
�	

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

�

��
		
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
,�

�
��

',
��
��

�
�

�
�

��
�
�
�
$

�


�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
(*

'
'�

�
�

�
�

6
��
	�
�=
�$
�
�
�%
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
�

��
�

�,
�

,�
*

,�

,
�*

,�

,
�*

,�

,
�*

�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�
&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��

&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



��

!
��
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�
0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�
�

�E
�
�
��
�4
�.


�
��



�
�
�
�

C
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�	
�<
�
�$
��
%
�

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

<
�
��
�

�
��
��
�

��

�
$�
��
$�
�%
��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�(
-

�(
*

��
)

+*
*

�)

+
**

�)
+*
*

�
�

�
�	
�6
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�*
�3
1
�
��
��
*,
��6
�
�
�

��
�
��

�
0



�
�

�
��
��
�

�

�0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�
0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

��

�

�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�$
�%

�
	

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�
�

�E
�
�
��
�4
�.


�
��



�
�
�
�

C
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�	
�<
�
�$
��
%
�

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

<
�
��
�

�
��
��
�

��

�
$�
��
$�
�%
��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
3

))
'

�*
,

*,
�

�*
,

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

)�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��
"
��
=
��
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

.
7
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

��

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�	

�


B
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
	�
�0
%
�

�	
$%
�6
�%
��
'�
*

�+
'

*-
,

=
��
�
��
�'
��
%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

��
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��

��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�

?�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�0
�
��
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
�

��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��

�

�
��
	

��
�
	�
�
�
	�
�A
�

��
,

��
��
��

',
�

��
��
��

',
�

��
��
��

��
��
*�
'*

�$
�
�
	�
��
��

�
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
�

?*
'�
B
�'
�0

�

�,
-�
B
��
�0

�
�+
�B
�

*�
0

�
A�
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�

�	
�
�
�

�	

�
	�
��
�
��
��



��
�
	


�

0
$�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
)�
0

�
�*
�

��
�
	

%
��

	
	�
�

��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

'�
0
$�
��
��
��
-�
B
�*
�0

�

��
�

��
�
	

%
��

	
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�

�

�$
�

	�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�
�
�

�
$�
�
��
�
�
��

�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
	�
�

��
3�
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��

�
��
�
�
�'
-(
��
%
�$

�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
	�
�
�	
�
�

��
�.
	�
��
$�
�	
�#
$�
�

��
	�
�
�

�
�
0
$�
��
��
��
	�
�
��

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
���
��
,)
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
0
%
��
�

�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
	

��
�$
��
��
	

�

?�
'A
�?
-�
3�
��
<
���

�
	

��

�
	�
��
��
$�
�
	�
��
��

A
��
�
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
�
��



��
�
�
�
�?
�
*A
G�

��
��
�
��
��
��

$
$

	�
��
��
$�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
	�
$�
��
$$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
G�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
	

��
�$
�

�
�	

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
?'
,�
**
+�

�<
���

�
	

��
�
	�
��
��
$�
�
	�

��
��

A
G�

	

��
��
�
��
��

	

��
��
	�
�
��
?�
*A
G�

	

��
��
�
�

�
��
0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
	�
7
'�
�
	�
7
��

�
�

�?
,�
)3
��
�<
���

�
	

��
�
	�
��
�

�$
�
�
	�
��
��

A
G�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
	�
7
'�
�
�

�?
*�
),
+�

�<
��

�
	

��
�
	�
��
��
$�
�
	�

��
��

A
G�	

$
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


$

�
�	
��
��
%
��
�
0
��
��
��
�
�
G�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
$$
�	
%
�

�-
��
3�
(*

Page 169



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
�

,'
*

�,
,

-,
,

,,

-
,,
��
�

,3

+
)+

,3
+)
-�
-

�
�

"
�
$$
%
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
.
:
�

�

��

�
��
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�&
�$
��
�
�:
�$
$�
�

�
K
�
�
��
�

.
	�
��
��=

�
�	

�
��
�	

�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�4
*,

-
--
�

�
��
�

	

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
��
�
�

�
�0
%
��
�

�


�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
!
��
,)
��
��
��
��
�
��
	�

�
�

0
%
��
	�
��
��
 
�0
��
%
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�=
�
	�
��
��
	�

��
��
��
	

��
	�
�
	

��
��
�
��!
'�
3�
�$
$�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

0



�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�$
$�
0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

',
�

��
��
��

(


�
�
�
�
��
4
�%
�
�
�
	�
��

.
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

��
��
$�
�%
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

��
(

�(
�

��
(

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

''
�

��
��
��

5
6
�5
-
�-
5
,
8

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��



�
�

��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
��
�

	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
0
$�
��

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
�

	�
��
�
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
-

��
-

�)
�(

�'
+

)'
�

'+

)
'�

�
�'
+

)'
�

�

"
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
.
"
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�0
�
��
��
��

	
�

�
	

��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
0

	
��
��
%

�
	�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��

��
	�
$�
��
��
�
�
��
�$
$�
��
�

�
���
�
�
�	
�
��
0
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�$
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�

	�
��
�
��
��

�

!
'�
3�
��
	


�

�
��
$�
�
�

�
��
�
��
.
��
��
��

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

,�

�
��
��
�

-
@
�5
<
�-
5
,
5

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�(
4
��
�
��


�
��
��

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�%
�$

�
�
�%
��

��
�
��

�

�
�	
��
�
�	
�
�
�

��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�(
,

+,
,

�)
,

�*
�

),

�
*�

),

�
*�

),

�
*�

�
�

#

�

�
�	
��
�
�=
�
	�
��
�

	

�
��
�
�
$

�

��
�
�

�

��
�

�
��
�
�0
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

	

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

7
�$
��
�

�	

�

�
�$
%
��
$$
�
��
%

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
&�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��.
�
�0

�
��
$$
%
�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

'�

�
��
��
�

5
6
�5
-
�-
5
,
8

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
�
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�(
()
(

�,
'

,'
�

�,
'

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

'�

�
��
��
�

5
6
�5
-
�-
5
,
8

�
"
�
�
��
�
4
�
�
�
��

��
	�
��

�
.
�
�
;
��
��
�
%
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
%
��
��
��

�
�
�

	
��
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
'�
1
7
�
$$
�
�
�
	�
�
��

�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

	�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
'�
1
6
�,
�@�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
	�

	
��
�
��
�

�
��
�%
�

�
�
��
�0
$

��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

��

�
@�
�
��
��
�
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�
�'
�

3�
)

'�

3
�)

�
�'
�

3�
)

�

.
�
�
;
�#
�%
�

�
��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
'�
�

@�
�
��
��
�
��.
"
�
��
	

��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��

�
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
	

�$
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�

��
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�

�
'�
�@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

	�
�
��
��
�
�

�

	
%
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
$�
�

��
��
�
�
	�

�
�
��

�
�	

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
.
�$
��
�
�

��
�
�
��

�
�
7
�
���
��
�
	�
�
��

�
�
	�

	
��
��
0

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

''
�

��
��
��

-
,
�5
A
�-
5
,
8

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��



�
�

��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
��
�

	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
0
$�
��

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
�

	�
��
�
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
��

�
��

.
7
�
�

�,

�
+-

,

�+
-

�
�,

�
+-

�

"
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
.
"
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�0
�
��
��
��

	
�

�
	

��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
0

	
��
��
%

�
	�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��

��
	�
$�
��
��
�
�
��
�!
'�
3�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�

0

�
	

<
�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
0
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

$�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�

	�
��
�
��
��

�
!
'�
3�
��
	


�

�
��

$�
�
�

�
��
�
��
.
��
*,
��

(


�
�
�
�
��
4
�%
�
�
�
	�
��

�"
�
	�
��

�
�

�

	
�$
�0

�

�
��
��
��

��

�
�	

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��

��

�
$�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
��

��
�
�0
��
��
��
��

'+
�

��
��
��

�'
-�
'�
��
��
��

�+
��
)�
�,
�

''
��
(�
�-

(+
)

))
)�
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

0
�
��
�

�
�1
��
�

�
�

��
�	
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
�

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
�

��
�
��
�

6
�
$$
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



��
�

�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

��
�

�

�	

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
�
$�
�

�

�
�0
��
��
�

��
�

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

Page 170



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

��
�

��
��
��

5
,
�5
,
�-
5
,
5
�

�
�
�
��



�
��


�
��
�



?
��
	


�

=
��
=
3
�
4
��
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
�

��

�
$�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�%
�

��
��
�
	�
�%
��
�
��
	�

	
��
�
�

��

�

��

�
�$
�
�
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�
��

�

��
�

�%
��
��
�	
��
��
��
?�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
�A
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
��

�
��

�
��
�'

3
�+

)�

�
��

�
��
�'

3
�+

�'
3'

3
�+

4)
�

��
��
�
��
�0



�
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
6
8
:
�
�?
6
��
	�
�
	�
�

��
�
	�
8
�
��
�
��

�
�

:

�
��
$

��
��
�
��
��
�
A�
��
�/
�
�
��
��
�
��
'�
,,
�1
�

8
	�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�$
$�
��
		

�
��
��
�
��
��

0

�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
�.
��
��#
	�
�
	

��
�

�

$
�%

�
��
�

�
��
�.
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�

�

8
$%
�
�
��
��
	

$�
�

�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
�
	�
��
�.
��
�

��
		

�
�$
%
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
�

�
�

	
�!
�
8
8
.
�

�
�%
�0

�
��
0

�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
��"
�
�
�
��
�
�$
$�
�$
��
�0

�

�
�

�
��
�
�	

�
�

�
��
��

�
��
	�
;
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

.
��
� 
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
��

�
��
6
�
�

$
��
��

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

')
)

))
)�
��

'(
��
(�
��
'-

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
��

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
�
��
��
�
�$
��
	�
�
�	
%
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�

��
�

B
��
��
�
�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
��

�

�
��
��
�

�
�

0
%
��
�

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
#
$�
��

,

!
2
�
!

�'
))

)
))

�
�'
,+

3
))

',
+

3)
)

',
+

3)
)

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�$
��
$�
��

�
��
��

#
	�
�
�

��
��
=
�$

�
�!
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

''
�

��
��
��

-
,
�5
A
�-
5
,
8

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��



�
�

��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
��
�

	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
0
$�
��

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
�

	�
��
�
�

&�
�
�
�
��
#
�	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
'�

�
��

�'
'�
��
�

�
�

�
�

C
�

�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
0
$�
��

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

	
�

�
	

��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�&
�
�
�
�
��

#
�	
�
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

�

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

�)
�

��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
4
��

�
�
��



�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

'�
�

��
��
��

.

	
�
��
��
�,
�%

�
	�

$

��



�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�?
�

.
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
	

�
��
	�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��

�

�
��

	
��
�

�
=
�$
�
��
�
	�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�+

�
��

�
�'
*-

3
3-

'*
-

33
-

�
�'
*-

3
3-

�

6
�
�

%
��
�$
$�
0

�
��

�
��
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��

��

�
�,
�%

�
	�
$

��

�
L�
;
�
��

�
�
$�
�



�
�
��
�
	�
�%
��
�
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�	

�
0

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�,

�
��
��
�

,�
%
	�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
�

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	


�
�

.
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�	

�
��
�
�
�

��

�
7
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�0
�
��
�

�
��

�	

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
,

��
�

��
,�
��

�
�

�
�

:
�	
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�7
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�
��
�

�
��
�	

�
�

.
�
�
�

')
�

��
��
��

'+
��
+�
��
')

 
		
��
��
�
�*
��
=
3
�
4
��
�



?
��

��
	�
��

�
	

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��

��



�
��
��
�
��

�

	
�$
��
��

�
%
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

=
�
��

�

0
0
��
�
��



�

=
�
��

�

0
0
��
�
�
��

�7
�
$$
�

�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
@�
�
��
��
�
��
��

7
�
$$
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�7
�
$$
��
�
�
	�

�
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
)�

+
,+

�'
'3
--
,

��
)

�+
*

�)

�
+*

8
@
),
5
A

*+
'�
(�
')

�
�

.
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�=
�
��

�

0
0
��
�	

�

��
�
�
$

�

��?
8
�

	
��

�
�
A

.
�
�
�

'�
�

��
��
��

,
@
�5
@
�-
5
,
<

�
,
5
�#
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�



?
��
�

��
	�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�

�

�
'�
1
7
�
$$
��
�
�
	�
�
��

�

@�
�
��
��
�
�0
%
�$
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��

��
�
�
�$
��
��
��
�

�
6
�,
1
�
'�
�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�	
��
�
�

��
�
��
%
�$

�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�$
��
�

��

��
��
�

�
�
'�
1
.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



��

@�
�
��
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
��

-
*,

�'
��
',
�

�,
+*

,+
*

�
�

�,
+*

�
.
 
"
�
��
'�
�&
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
=
�
	�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
4
��

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
	

�

#
�	
�
��
�	

�
��
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
$�
�

�

''
��
)�
�+

�3
�

��
��
��

'�
,

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

7
'?
�A
�?
0
�
��
�

�
�A

�7
��

?�

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
A�
��
�
�

7
+�
?�
��
	�
�

1
�
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
A�

�
�0
��
��
�

��
�

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�0
�$
$�

�	
��
�
��
�
��

�
�	

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

��
0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
��
$�
��

�

��
�
��
$$
�	
%
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
$�
�
�

�


B
�

	�
�$
��
��
��

�

��
��

�
��

	�
��
�

��
�	
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
�%
�

�

�

�
�

��
��
�
�

B
�

	�
�$
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

''
��
)�
�,

Page 171



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

.
�
�
�

(�

�
��
��
�

-
,
�,
-
�-
5
,
,

�
=


�
�.


�
��
��
4
�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
��
	

�

�
��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
0
�$
��
%
��
��
�$
��
�

��

��
��
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

$A
5
)5
5
5

�'
�3
*'
+

�*

+
+,

*

++
,�
��

�
�*

+
+,

�

�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
�!
�
�
�
�6
�
0
�$
��
%
��=
�
	�
��

��
�
�
$

�

��
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
��
$�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��

�
�
	�
@

��
�

.
�
�
�

,�

�
��
��
�

,
6
�5
:
�-
5
,
5

 
		
��
��
�
��



?
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��
	�
��
	


�
�

��
	�
��
�
	

��
�
�
��
	�
��
	�
�
�	
�
�

�
�	

�
��
�
�
�$
�

��
�
�
�1
�
�	
�
1
��
��
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
1
��
��
$�
��

�
��
�
	�

�%
�$
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
�-

'
(3

�'
*3
�+
,

�-
'

''
'

-'

'
''
��
�

-
<
)6
:
-

)3

)
,(

-'
''
'

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
�:
6
!
�!
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�

��
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

%
��
��
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��

�
��
	�
�
�	
�
�

�
�
��
��
�

��
%
��

�
��
�

	
��
�

�
�

B
��
��
	


�
%

�
	�
��

.
�
�
�
�

�,

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�


3
�
�(
�
�
�

�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�	

�
�
��
��

�

�
��

��
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
,

��
�

��
,�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'�
�

��
��
��

8
,
�5
8
�-
5
,
-

.


�
�
��
4
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
	

��
�
�
�0
$

�

��
�
��
	�
�

	
��
�
��
��
��
��
		

�
�

0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$1
��
�
��
	�
.

$
$�

��
��
�

�
��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�

6
8
:
�
�!
%
��

�
��
��
��

�

 
7
6
�
�/
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
'3

+
�+

�
�'
'+

-
�(

''
+

-�
(

�
�'
'+

-
�(

�

#
	�
@

��
��

$
�%

�
��
�

�
��
�.
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�8
$%
�
�
��
��
�.
2
.
��

�
��
��
�
�.
��
��
'�
��
�'
*�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
	

�
�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

��

�
0

�

�
��
��
�
��
6
8
:
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�$
�
�

�
�

��
��
��
�

	
�$
$�
��

�
0

�

�
��
��
�	

�
	

��
�
�
��

�
��
�

�$
��
�
�
�
�
�!
�
8
8
.
��
�%
�0

�
�
	

�

		

�
�0
%
�.
��
��

.
�

�
	

�
�
	�
��
��
��
		

�
�$
%
�0

�
�
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�0
%
�

.
��
��&
��
.
��
��

�
��

�
��
��
	�
�


�
��
�

�
��
$$
�

	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��
�0

�
�
�
�

�
��
�$
$%
��
�

�
��

��
��
�

�
�

B
��
��
�
��
��
�$
�%

�
	�
�9
.
��
�
��



��
�
��
�
�

.
��
��
�
�
	�
$%
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
	�
�
	

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
	�
��

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'�

�
��
��
�

8
,
�5
8
�-
5
,
-

�

�
		
��
��
�
4
�
�
�
��
�

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��
��
�
�
%
��
�
	�
��

�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

�
'�
1
7
�
$$
��
�
�
	�
�
��

�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��

��

�
!
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�(
(,
'

�)
(

�
�

�)
(

�)
(

.
	�
��
��
�!
��
�
%
�#
�%
�

�
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

,�

�
��
��
�

-
8
�5
6
�-
5
,
5

 
		
��
��
�
�*
��
=
3
�
4
��



?
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
+

'(
�

�,
+'
(�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�!
��

�
%
�6

�
��
	

��
��
��
��
%
��
��
�
��
�
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�,
�

��
��
��

-
,
�5
6
�-
5
,
5

#�
�
�
��

�
�
��
"
�
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�0

�
��
�
$�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
��
$D�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�$
��
�
�

��
�
�	

�

�

	
��
��
�
��
	�
@

��
��

�
�
�
�

��
,�

�
��

��
*)
-*
*

�'
,

�3
-

',

�
3-

�
�

�

.
�
��
��
�

��
'�
1
''
�9

�

�
�	
�$
��

�
��
�

	
�
%
�


B
�

�
�
��
�
	


��
�
�
�

��
�

	

�
��

�
��
��
��
�'
�1
''
�

0
�
��
�

�

	
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��.
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

��

�
�

�

�
���
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%
��
�
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

',
+

��
��
��

-
8
�5
6
�-
5
,
5

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

	
�

�
��

�

�	

�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

�



�
��
�

�
�/
-
:
H
1�
�

!
2
�
!

�'
,+

�
��

�'
,+
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

-
8
�5
6
�-
5
,
5

�
 
��
�
�
��
%
 
I
!
��
,
:
<
�

�
�
�
�

�'
�(

�
��

�
�

�
�

&�
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
��
�
��

�

�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

*�

�
��
��
�

5
6
�5
A
�-
5
,
,

#�
�
�
��

�
�
��
"
�
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�0

�
��
�
$�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
��
$D�
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�$
��
�
�

��
�
�	

�

�

	
��
��
�
��
	�
@

��
��

�
�
�
�

�'
�*

�
(-

�'
')
*)

�(
'

+3
*

('

+
3*

�
�(
'

+3
*

�

&�
��
��
+�
4'
�3
5
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�

	
��

�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�$
�


�
��
�

��
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
	

��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��

�
	�
@

��
��
��
��
��
�
�4
)�
�+
�
��.
�

�
�
�

	
��

�
�
�

�
	�
�
�	
�$
%
�	

$
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
	

�


�
��
��

�

��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�$
�

�
�
��



	�
�
�
�


$

�

�
��
��
��
��

�
 
�	
0

�
��
�
��
��
	�
@

��
��
�
�
�

�$
��
��
��
�
�$
$�
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��

�
�
$�

	
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
���
$$
�

��
�

�

�
��
�
�

	
��
�
��
��
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
�

	

�

��
��

�
��
�
$$
%
��
�
�
�
$

�

�
�0
�
��
�

	

�
�

�

	
�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�0
%
�	

$

�
��
��
�

�
�	
��

�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�$
��
�
�
�
$

��
�
�
�

�
��

�
�	
�
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�$

�
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

'3
-

��
��
��

''
�

��
��
��

3)

�
+3
��
�

),
+

��
��
��

�'
��
*�
�,

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

7
'?
�A
�?
0
�
��
�

�
�A

�7
��

?�

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
A�
��
�
�

7
+�
?�
��
	�
�

1
�
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
A�

�(
��
)�
�,

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
)�

��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

�
��
*�
��
�
��
��
?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�+
�B
�

'�
0

�
��
�
�
�'
3�
B
��
�0

�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
�$
��
��
��
�
�+
�B
��
�0

�
�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
$�
��
A�

�
��
�
�)
��
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�

�,
��
+�
�)

''
��
)�
�,

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
	

��
�$
��
$�
�
	�
��
��



�

��
$�
�
	�
$�
��
��
$�
�%
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�

$�
0
	�
	%
��
�
�
��
�
$�
��
��
�
	

%
�

��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	

�

�
��
�

�

	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
$�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
��

�
�	

�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
�
��

�'
,�
	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�3
�B
�

)�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
$�
��

*�
B
��
��
��
	

%
��

	
	�
�

��
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
?�
)�
B
�'
�0

�

�'
3�
�B
��
�

0

�
�2
�'
3�
B
�*
�0

�
��
$�
��

�'
'�

B
�*
�0

�
�2
�)
�B
�)
�0

�
�

�
�
�
�

�A
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
��
	�
��

��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�

��
%
�$

�
�
�	
�
��
�

�

	

��
�

��
��
	�
�

�
��
��
$�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
�$
�
	

�
D�
��
$�
%
��
	

��
�

?�
,J
��
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
	�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
A�
�

Page 172



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��

�
��

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�
�

(-
�'
�'
�!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
��
�)
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
��
��
?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
�B
�'
�

0

�

��
'�
B
��
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�

�

��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
��
�
��
��

��
�'
��
�,

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

)�

�
*(
��
�

)�

�
*(
��
�

,
;
�5
:
�-
5
,
,

(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�0

�
��
�
$�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�

�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$$

�
�

#
�	
�
��
�
�>
�
�



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)
�

-�
)

�*
*�
,,

�-

3
3(

-

33
(

;
)A
A
;

)

,�
,

'�
,�
��
�'

)

+,
*

�

�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
��
#
>
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

��=
�
	�
��

��
�
�
$

�

��
�
�
�

��
�	

�
��
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��



)3

�
��
��
�

!
�
	�
�
��
�C


�
��
�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
@�
0
�0
	�
�

	
��

�

�

	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��

�
�0
%
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�	
�

�%
��
��
�

	�
��

�
��
��

�
��
��

�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
$

��
�
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��

�
�
�
�

�)
3

��
�

�'
+'
-(

��
-

+�
'

�-

+
�'

�-

+
�'

�
�

�
�
��



-

,�
��
��

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��



�

�
��
��

�
�
�
�
$�
%
�

�
��

!
�	
��

�
%
��
0
@

��
��

�
��
�
��
�	
��
�

'�
*�
��
��
��

�
�
$

�*

��

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

?�
��
�

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
�
�
��
��
$$
�

�	
��
�



��
$�
�

��
��
'�
�	
��
�



�

�

	
�4
'�
�$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

B
�

�
�
��
�
	

A

�
�
�
�

�-

,
��

�
�-

,
()

-,
()

),

�
*�

-

,(
)

�
�

�
�
��



3�

,
(�
��
�

,
:
�5
@
�-
5
5
;

�

�
�
��



�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�
	�
�

�
�
	�
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
$


��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
*

+,
(

��
�(
(�

�+
3-

+3
-

'*

�
��

�

�+
,

',
�+
,�
'

�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��8
�

	
��

�
�
��
��
0

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�0
%
�

 
��
�
�
�%
��
��
�
��
�$
��
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�0
%
��
	�
��
��

�
�
��



((

'
��
��
�

5
:
�5
@
�-
5
5
@

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�)
��
�$

�

	�
�
��
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�(
(

'�
�

�(
('
��

�
�

�
�

C
�

�
��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
��

�
��
��
!
�
��
�
$�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
�

!
��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
$

��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
���

�
�
��



'�

,
��
��
�

5
:
�5
@
�-
5
5
@

"
��
=
��
�
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
0
$�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�$
�
�
�
��
�	
�

	�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
	�
��
�

�
��
�
�6

$
$�
�
�
�

9
	�
�

�
�

��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

�



�
��
�

�
�/
-
:
H
1

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
)

)-
'

�
�

�
�

&�
�
$

�

�
�

�
��
$�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��

�
%
�

��
�

�

�
�$
�
�
�
��
�	
�

	�
��
��
��
��

�
0

�
�



�
�

7
	�
�
�

�
�
�$
$�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
	

��

�
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�)

,
��
��
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

��
�

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
)

,�
�

��
),
��

�
�

�
�

4�
3

��
��
�
��
�'
('
2
��
��
�'
3�
�.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



��

>

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
$

�

���

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

'�
�

��
��
��

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��

��

�
��
�


!
2
�
!

�'
��

�
��

�'
��
��
�

�
�

�
�

4'
��

�
��
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

,�

�
��
��
�

�




��
�
�=
��
�
	�

�
��
=
�
�
�
��
�

��
	�
	

��
	0
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�

��

�
��
@�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
�

��
�

�,
��
��

�
�

�
�

4,
3

*(
-�
�
��
�'
(+
��
%
$�
�
�
��
"
�
�
��
��
�
�=
�
	�
��

4�
*

3(
'�
+*
��
��
��
3-
�=
�
	�
��
��
�.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



��

"
�
�
�0
	�
�
�

�
?9

�
��
��
(A
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

,)

�
��
��
�

(
=
��
�

�
�
F�
��
��
4
�

!
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�


<
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
�$
�
	

�
D�
��
$�
%
��
	

��
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�


�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
,
<
�

�
�
��
�1

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
)

,'
,

�*
,-
)3

�'
+

-3
(

�'
+

-3
(

�
�'
+

-3
(

�

��

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�
�
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
0
�$
��
%
�2
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�$
$%
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

6
�%
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
D�
��
�
��

�
�#
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�

��
��

	
9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�
0
��

�
�'
�1
'*
��.
�
�0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�
���
B
�

�
�
��
�
	

��
��

��
		

�
�$
%
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
� 
�
��
'�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�*
�

,�
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�-
�'
��
�)

'+
��
,�
�(

,*

,
��
��
�

'-
)

�'
��
��

"
��
��
�
�
)�
(
=
�
�
�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�

�

0
%
��
�

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

?�
��
��
	

%
A�
��
	�
�
��
��



�$
��
�
��

��
�
��

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
�

�

��
�
��
��
	�
�

1
��
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
	�
�

�

��
�
�
�

	�
�?
7
'

�7
��
2
�7
+�
�
�

A�

��
��

$
$�
��
��
�,
��
��
	

%
��

$
��

��
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�?
7
+A

��
�
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

��
�$
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�

��
��
��
��
	�

�

�
$

	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�

?�
�
��
�

�

	
��
A

��
��
�

$
$�
��
��
�,
�

��
�
	

%
�?
'*
��
0

�
A�
�
�
�

$�

?�
'�
�

A

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��
	�
�
��
��
��
$�
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�#
	�
�
	

��
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
	�
�
�

��

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��


B
��
��
�
�
�,
��
��
	

%
��
��
��

�

0
$�
��
��
�
��
�*
��
�$
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�,
�B
��
��
�
��

��
,�

B
�'
�0

�
A�
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

�

�

�
�*
��
�
�
�)
��
��
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
�
��
'�
-�
��
�
�0

�
��
$�
��
�

?�
,J
��
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
	�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
A�

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

	

��
�

��
��
	


��
%
�$

�
��
�
	


�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
6

$
$�
�
�
�9
	�
�

�

��
�
��
�	
�

	�
��
��
��
��

�
�

.
#
1
�+
1
'�
--
���
���
���
���
���
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
?�
��
B
��
�
�
�

0

�
��
$�
��

�'
��
B
��
�

�
0

�
�

�$
��
��
��
�*
��
�
�
�)
��
��
	

%
�

0
$�
��
�

��'
��
B
��
�
�
	�
�0

�

��
�

��
�
	

%
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�+
�B
�

��
	


�
�0

�

��
��
��
	

%
�

�
�
�
�

�A
��
��
�
	�
�0
$

��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�

',
��
)�
�)

Page 173



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

'+

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

��
	�

%
�

��
	

�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
	

$�
�
��
�	
%
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
$�
��
�
��
�
�

B
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
#
>
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
���
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
+

��
�

�
�'
+

--
3

'+

-
-3

�
�'
+

--
3

�
.
2
.
��
	

�

B
�
$�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

	
��
��
$�
�

�

	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��.
�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
�	
��
��

	
	

�
�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��

�
��
��
�$
$%
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

5
��
0

	
$

%
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
%
�

*,

�
��
��
�

(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�J
8
:
B
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��

�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
#
>
�

�

�
��
	

��
?8
�
�	

<
�

�
��
�
��

�
7
�
A

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
.
2
.
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�

�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
��
#
>
�

�
�
�
�

��
�	

�
�



�

�
��

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

*�
�

��
��
��

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
�
�

	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�

��
��
��
��

�
��
	�
��
��
�

�
��
��

�

�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
	

��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
(+

,
(-

��
(,
)*
,

�*

'
3�

*

'3
�

�

+'
)

�+
')
�*
)

�*
)-

�

 
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
	�
��
?�
��
��
�$
��
�
�

�
-�
-(
-A
�

4�
)�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
	

��
�	
��
��
��
��
$�
��
�
���

7
�$
��
�

��
��
��

$
�
��
�
	�
�
#
>
��
�
$$
�
�
��
�
�	

�

��
�
��
$�
��
��
�
���
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
	�

��
�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�0
�
�

�

�

��
�

�

�
��
�
��
$�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

	

��
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	


�
��
	


�
��
�
�!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

��
�
�
��
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

*

),
)

',
��
��

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�7

�

�
��
��
�

��
	�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
��
��
	�
�
��

�

��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�0

�

�
��
��
��
��
�

�

��
	�
��
��
	

�
$�
�

�

�
��

��

�
��
%
��
��
�$
��
�

��
��
	�

	

��
�

�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

��
�
�0
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$
�
��

*

),
)

',
�

��
���
��
�

*

),
)

',
�

���
���
���
���
��
�

�
�

�
�

"
�
�
�
��
�$
$�
��
�

�
��
�
�	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
%
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�$

�
��
	

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
$�
.
	�
�
��

	
	

�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�$
�/
�
�

�
��
��
�

?E
''
�1
()
7
A�
.
��
+*
�?
C
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�$
�

��
�

�

A
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�
�
�
�
$

�


9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
�

��
��

0
�
�$
�

	
��
�	
��

�
�
�	

�
�
�
�

�

��
�
��
�	
��
��

	
��
�$

�
��

�
�	

�

�
��
�
��
�	
��
�$

�

��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�

�+
��
-�
�)

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

,

��
��
��

,

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�

�
		
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
1
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
	�
B
��
��
%
�

�
��
��

�
��
�


�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

�*
-+
,

�'

�
',

'

�'
,

�
�'

�
',

�

�
�
��
�6
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�2
�7
��
	�
��
�
��
��
�

=
�
	�
��
��
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
0
%
��
�

�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
	


�
��
�
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
��
��

�
�%
��
�
�

��
�
�
�

0

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�



��
�
	


�

0

�
	�
�
�
��
$�
��

��

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
�
�0
��

�

�
��

'-
��
��
�,

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

�,

�
��
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

,�
�
��
�
�
��

	
��
	%
�

�
��
��

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�?
;
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�'
��
��
��
'�

�

�
�
�
��

�
	

<
�
�	

�
A

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�

��
�
	�
�

�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�

��

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
,

��
�

�'
�)
'3

�'
)

,+
)

')

,
+)

�
�'
)

,+
)

�

>

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
1
�	
��
��
��
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
%
��
��

	�
�
�
�
�0
�
�
��
8
$�
�#
�	
�
��
�
��
��=
�
	�
��
�	

�

��
�
�
$

�

��
�.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�$
$�
0

�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
�

�

�
�	
��
�
�	

�
�
�



�0
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
$�
�

��
�
	�
'�
��
�
�
��
��
?"

0
��
�'
)A

()
1
�)
+)
���
���
���
���
���
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
	�
�

�
��
$

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
�?
7
�A
��
�
�

�
�
��
	�
�

�
��
$

��
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
�	

�
��
�$
�
�
��
�
�

�$
�

	�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

��
��

'*
��
3�
(,

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

*

��
��
��

*

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

!
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
��
��

#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
�

�

	
�$
�


�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�	

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*

�
��

�
�*

*
�+

*

*�
+

�
�*

*
�+

�

�
'�
��

�
�	
�$
��

�

	
�
��
��
�
�=
�
	�
��
��

�
�
�
�
$

�

��6
�
�
�

��
�	

�
��
�0

�
�	
��
��

	
	

�
��
�
�

.
�$
��
.
7
�
��
��
�
�6
��
�

$
$

��
�

�
?.
2
.
A

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�
�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
	�
�$
��
�
��
��
�
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��

�*
��
(�
�'

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

��

�
��
��
�

��

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
��



�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
	


�
�.
	�
�
��
�
	�
�&
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

��
�

��
�
�
�7
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�
��
�

�
��
�	

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
�

+(
)

�+
,)
*

�'
)

*,
'

')

*
,'

�
�'
)

*,
'

�

6
�
�

%
��
��
�0



�
��
	�
�
��

	
	

�
��
	�
�
�

�
.
��
+-
.
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�$
�
��
$�

7
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�0
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
��
�
��
	�
��
�2
�0
�
��

��
�

�
�0
$

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�'
*1
')
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

),

�
��
��
�

"


��
��
(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
4
�

�
�
�
�

�)
,

��
�

�
�)
,

�'
3

),

�
'3

),

�
'3

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�
0
��

�
��
�
	�
'�
1
'*
��
��
�
�0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

��

�
��
��
�

(
4
��
�
��
�
4
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�

��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
	


�
�
�%
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
�

'�
*

�
�

��
�

'�
*

��
�

'�
*

#
	�
@

��
��
�	

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*

-,
)

',
��
��

''
��
,�
(+

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

,*

�
��
��
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
*�
0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
��
�
0
��

�
��
�
�

�

�

$
��

	
�

��
?�
�
��
��
�
A�
��
�
�


B
�
	

��
��
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��

�
�	

�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
	�
�
�

��
���

?8
�
�$
��

�
��
�
$�
��
��
�
�
A

(+
1
��
3�
���
���
���
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
$�
��
��
	


�
�

��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�C
�

��
$�
��
�

9
�

��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
'�

��
�
��
*�
�
�

�

��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
$

B
��
��
�
��
�C
�

�

�
$�
��
�9
�

�	

�
��
�
	�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
$�
��
��
*

�

�	
��
��
��
�$
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
�
�	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�
�
$�

�
$�
%
��
�
��
�

$�
�

��
�	

�
��

	
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�

�

��
�

��

��

	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�?
9
�
�
$�
��
�

�

9

�
��
$

�
��
�
�
$�
��
��
�
�
A�
�

�3
��
)�
�3

Page 174



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

"
#�
B
!
�
��
 
�-
<
;
��
%
 
I
!
��

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

',

-
--
��
�

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
�

�
��
��
	�
�

$
��
$�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
��

	
�

*�
%

�
	�
��
�
�

B
�
�	
%
��
��

�
��
��

	
��
�
��
��
*�
%
	�
�

��
$$
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
.
#

��
�	
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
0



�
��
��
�

�

�
���
�

�
�
��

$
�
�$
�
��

�,

�
��
��
�

�
�

?
��
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

#
�	
�
��
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

	�
	

��
$�
��
�
��

��
	�

%
�3
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

	�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

��
$$
�
�
��
�
�*
�%

�
	�
��
��

	
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

,

��
��
��

"


��
��
(


�
��

�
��
�

�
�

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
4
�

.


�
��



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

�,

�
��
��
�

'*
��
*�
',

!
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
��
��
9
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

��
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
*

��
�

�
��
*

��
�

�
��
*

��
�

��
*

��
�

�
��
�@
�
	�
��
�

�

�
��
��

�

$
�
�
��
�
��
�
�#
�
�
�

	
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
$�
�

�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

'�

,
��
��
�

'*
��
*�
',

(
�

�
(
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

�
�%
�0
$

��
�
��
��
%
�
�	
�
$�
0
��
�
�


�
�0
$

��
��
%
�
�	
�
$�
0
��
�
��

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
�	
��
$�
0
�

��
	�
��

�
0

�

�
��
��
��
�

�
��

�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��

�
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
%
��
�	
��
$�
0
��
��
��

�
$�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	
��

�
��
��
	�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

'3
'

3*
3�
��

,
8
�5
8
�,
:

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
	�
�
��
��
�
�0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
	

��
��
�
�
$

��
	�
�
�	
%
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�

��
�$
�
	

�
��
��
��

�
�

�
��

�
��
��

!
2
�
!

�'
3'

3
+3

�'
3'
-*
3

,�
�,
�

�
,�

�
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
���
�
�
�
$

�


!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

-,

�
��
��
�

(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
�
�	
�
$$

�
�#
�	
�
��
�
�>
�
�



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
8
�
�	

<
�

�
��
�
��
�
7
�
��.
2
.
��
	

��
�
�
��
�

	
��
�
�

	

<
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
#
>
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

!
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
	

%
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�	
�

�3
��
,�
'�

.
�
�
�
�

;
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�,

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
$�
%
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
,

��
�

�
��
,

�)
�

�,

�
)�

�
��
,

�)
�

�

9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

��
�

��
�0
�$
��
%
�2
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�!
��
�

�
	�

�
�

"
�

$�
��#
�
�

�
��
�$
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�6
�%
�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
D�
�#
�
��

�
�#
�	
�
�&
�
��
��
��
�



�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

�

,�
��
��

,�
%

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
��

�

�
��
��
�
�
$

��
�
�
��

?�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
A

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
	�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�%
�0

�

	

<
�
�	

�
�0
%
��
�

�
 
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�%
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

,
��

�
��

,
�)

�
�

��

,
�)

��

,
�)

#
	�
@

��
��
�	

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

*�

+
--
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
���

!
2
�
!

�*
�

+-
-

�*
�+
*+

�*
(

*(
�

�*
(

�
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
!
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

,-
��
��
��
��
�
��
��

	
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
$

��
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�

��
��
�
��
��
$�
��

�
�7
'?
�A
�

?$
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�$
A

�7
��

?�

�

	
�$
��
�
�
�
��
	�
�$
A�
��
�
�

7
+�
?�
��
	�
�

1
�
��
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
A

�

�
��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
��
��
��

�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
��
��

�
�$
�
��
��
�
�0
�%
�

�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�

6
�$
$�
�	
��
��
��

�
�
��
�9

$
��
�

'+
��
,�
�(

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

''
�

��
��
��

''
�

��
��
��

�'
��
,�
'-

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�?
�

#
	�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��

�
��
��

�
	�
�

	
��
�

�
�
�$
�
�

��
@�
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

�'
�,

�
*(

�
�'
�,

�
*(

�
�

�'
�,

�
*(

�'
�,

�
*(

#
�%
�

�
��
�
��
�0



�
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�$
�

�
	�
@

��
��
�	

�
0

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	

�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

�-
)

'*
3�
��

�,
��
3�
�-

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�B

�
��
�

�

	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�

�*
�


�)
��
�
�
�,
��
��
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
��

��
��
	�
�
��

�
'*
��
	

��
�

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�)
'�
B
�'
�

0

�

�-
(�
B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�'
��
B
�*
�

0

�
A�
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�)
)+
��
��

�
��
	

��
�$
�?
�
$�
��
��
'A

��
�
0
$�
��

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�
��

�
��
%
��
�

�
�

��
��



��
�
�$
�
	

�
D�
��
$�
%
�

�	

�

��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��

�

��
�
��
�
�

	
��
	�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
�

��
	�
+,
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
�

5
��
�
��
�%
��
�
��
�
�$
��
��
$�
�

��

;
8
.
�
M��
�
�

�
$�
�

�
��
��
�
�

	

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
0

	
��
��

,
-
8
�

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
)�
B
�'
�0

�

�3
,�

B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
��
)�
B
�*
�0

�
A�
�

�
$$
��
�
��
��
�	

�
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

'�
�'
��
'�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
+�
	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�'
�0
$�
��
��
��
*�

�

		
��

�
��
�
�
�

��
?�
�B
�*
�0

�
�

��
�
�'
�B
��
�0

�
A

�'
�0
$�
��
��
��

,�
B
�*
�0

�
��

	
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

��

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
�

�
��
++
��
	

��
�9
	�
�



�

�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�


B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
$�

	
��
��
�
��

��
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
0

	
�+
3

��

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�	
��

�
��
�

�
�
�
0

	
�+
3

��

�
��

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
��
	

��
�9
	�
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��

3�

*
--
��
�

.
#
1
�)
1
�)
)+
��

��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
	

�?
��
�$
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
�0
��
�
�

�
�
��

�

	
��
�
	A

��
��
�
��
��

�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�	
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�

 

	
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
�
��

	
�
��

�

�	

�
��
	�
�
�6
�
$$
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
'(
'�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

��
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
�

Page 175



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

)�

�
��
��
�

�

�
�
��



�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
0
�
��
��
�
�
��

$�
��
�

�
��
�
�!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
��
�
��
�

��
@�
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
$�
�
�
���
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

?*
+�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�$
$%
�	

�
�

�
�2
�

'+
��
�
��
��
��
�

	�

�
��
�

A�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)
,

+)
(

�
�)
,

+)
(

�
�

�)
,

+)
(

�)
,

+)
(

�

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
	

�

��
��

�
��
�
�%
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�$
�

�
	�
@

��
��
�&
��
��
��
$�
�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�



�
��
�
�

0

�
��
�
�
$

�

�
��
�	
��

��
�
�
��
�

�
�	
��

�
	

�
�
�

�
�

�	
�
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
	�
@

��
��
�
	�
�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'*

-
��
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!

�'
*

-�
�

�
�'
*

-�
�

'*

-
��

'*

-
��

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�!
2
�
��
#
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
��
�$
�

#
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
� 
�I

$
�
�
�
�
�!
��
�
�
$�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

)*

)
',
�+
3

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�)
*

)'
3

�
�)
*

)'
3

�
�

�)
*

)'
3

�)
*

)'
3

 
�
�
��
�
�
��
	

��
�
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

'�
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
��

�
�'
��

�
�

�'
��

�'
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
��

�
��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

��

�
��
��
�

�!
�	



��
=
��
��
�
�
��

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��

"
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�

�
��
	%
��
�	



��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
�1

B
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��

��
�
�	
�
$$

�
��
�	
�
��
�
�I
�
�

�

�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
$�
��
�	
�
�
�

�0
�
�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

8
�
�=
	�
��

�
�	

<
�

�
��
�	
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
$

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

'

��
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

'

��
�

�
�

�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

�
��
-�
B
�'
�0

�
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�$
��
��
��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�-
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
�

�
��
%
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

'�
��
*�
�,

.
�
�
�

*

��
��
��

*

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

��

�
�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
$$

�
�#
�	
�
��
�
�>
�
�

�

?�
#
>
A�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*

�
)'

��
*'

�*

�
'�

*

�'
�

�
�*

�
'�

�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
��

$
�
�.
�
�
�
�

�
#
>
��.
�
��
��
�$
$�
0

�
�	
��
��

	
	

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
��

�
��
��
�$
$%
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
5
��
0

	
$

%
�

�
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
%
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
�
��
*3
�

�$
��
��
��
��
�
�
�*
��
��
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
�B
�'
�

��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
,J
�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�

	
� 
�$
$�
��
�
�

=

�
�

	
0
%
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

�
�
�
�$
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�0
�
�
��
�
�
�

=

�
�

	
0
%
��
�
��
�?
	

�
��

�
�

�,
��
)�
�3

�
�
��



�+

*
(,
��
�

�+

*
(,
��
�

8
5
�5
;
�-
5
,
-

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�

�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�$
�A
�

�
�
��
��
/

�
��
��
�
�-
:
H
1�

!
2
�
!

��
+

*(
,

��
+�
*(

�'
,3

',
3

�
�'
,3

�

�
�
!
�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
��
�$
�#
	�
�
	�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�/
�
$%
��
�'
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

.
�
�
�

),

�
��
��
�

��
�'
��
'3

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�

�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��

�

��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
$D�
�

0
��
�
��

	
��
�%
��
�
��
��
��
�



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)
,

��
�

�
�)
,

�(
�

),

�
(�

�
�)
,

�(
�

�

9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
	�
��

�
	

�
$�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�
$�
%
�

<
�
��
�

�
��
2
��

�

	
�$
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
$�

	
�0
	�
�
�
�#
�	
�
���

#
�
�

�
��
�$
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�6
�%
�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
D�
�#
�
��

�
�#
�	
�
�&
�
��
��
��
�

�

.
�
�
�

�'

�
��
��
�

-
5
�,
5
�-
5
,
6

�
�

?
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
	�
��

�
$�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�
��
�	



��

�
�	
�
��
�
�0
�%
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
'

��
�

�
��
'

�)
�

�'

�
)�

�
�

�

�

�

�
�$
%
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�#
�	
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�
	�
��

�
$�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
�0
�%
��
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

#
	�
@

��
��
�	

�
0

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	

�
��.
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�$
$�
0

�
��

�
��
0
%
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��

�
%

�
	�

�

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
	

�

��
��

�
��
�
�%
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�$
�

�'

*
��
��
�

,-

'
',
�+
3

'3
��
)�
'-

'*
+

��
��
��

'(
��
*�
'�
�

�,
��
'�
''

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�	
��
�
��
�
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

I
I�
�
��

�
�$
�
�
	

�

B
�

	�
�$
��

�	
��
�
��
�
��
	

��
��
�
��

	
�
��

�

%
�	
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

	

�$
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
�

��

��
��
��
��

�
�

B
�

	�
�$
�

�
�	
�
1
��
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�)
��
*�
''

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�
	

%

�

�
�	
��
)�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
��
(�

�

$�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
�?
3�
B
�*
�

0

�
�2
�*
�B
��
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�

		
��



�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
	�
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�0
��

�

�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�

��
��
�
�!
$�
�

�
� 
�$
$�
�

�
��
�

�
�*


�
��
�
�
�-*
� 

	
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

'�
,�
�
�
$

�
��
�

.
#
1
�3
1
')
*�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
$�
�
��
3�
��
�
�

	
��
�$
��
�
��
��

��
�
�)
��
	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
'�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
A�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�	
��
*�
��
�
��
�	
��
)�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

'�
�B
�'
�0

�

�'
-�
B
��
�0

�

�'
,�

B
�*
�0

�

��
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��

�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�

�	

�
	�
��
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
,�

��
�
�

	
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
$�
I

�
�$
��
�
��
�
�;

�
��
��

	
�

 
�
�
�

��
	�
�
�'
��
��
$�
�
	�
$

�

$
�

��
�
��
0
�
�

G
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��
(�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
�
��
�

�
	

�	
�

?0
$�
��
��
A�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�-
-�

�
�
��
��
?)
��
B
�'
�0

�

�*
,�
B
��
�

0

�
A�
�
��
�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�'
��
��
$�
�
	�

$

�

$
��
�
��
�
�'
��
��
$�
�
	�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
�
�;

�
�

�
��

	
� 
�
�
�

G��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
0
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	

�
	�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

,
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�	



�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�

?
��
�
��
�

�
�
4
��

��
�
	�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
�
		
�
�
�
�
�

��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

��

-
�
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�	



�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

?
��
�
��
�

�
�
4

��
���
�
�

	
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
	�

%
��
�
�

	�
��
��
��
		
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

',
��
3�
''

Page 176



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

0

�
�2
�*
�B
��
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�

		
��



�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
	�
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�0
��

�

�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�

��
��
�
�!
$�
�

�
� 
�$
$�
�

�)
��
*�
''

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'*

'
',

'*

'
',
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
��
��

�
��
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�


B
��
��
�
�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�
0

�
�
�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

6
��
��

�

�
��
�$
��
�
�
�
�
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

�
��
�0
��

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�	
�

�
��

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��



.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�'
*'

*
�(
��
�

-
<
�5
6
�,
6

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!
�

�'
*'

*
�(

�'
*�
-,
'

�,
-+

,-
+

�
�,
-+

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�,
�

��
��
��

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
	�
��
�
��
$�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��

�
�

��
�	

�
��
�
	�
��

�
��
��
�

�
$

�

$
�

��
��
�

�
 

	
��
�
	�
��
�
1
�
�$
0

	
��

!
��
@�
�
��
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
�

��
�

�
�,
�

�)
�

�
�

�,
�

�)
�

�,
�

�)
�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�$
$�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�*
�

��
��
��

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
7�
��
4
��
�
�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��

�
	�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

��
��

1
�
$�
%
��
�
��

�
��
��
$�
��

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*
�

��
�

�
�*
�

',
)

*�

'
,)

�
�*
�

',
)

�

9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�2
��
�
�
��
��
�
�$
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�'
,

��
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�#
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
�	
�
��
	�
�$
��
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
,

��
�

�
�'
,

�-
�

�
�

�'
,

�-
�

�'
,

�-
�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�$
$�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�-
�

��
��
��

�

�
		
��
�(
�
��
��
�
��
�=
�
�
�
�

��
	�
��

�
��
�%
��
�

��
�
�
��
$�
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
$

�

�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�

��
$�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�-
�

��
�

�
�-
�

**
3

�
�

�-
�

**
3

�-
�

**
3

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�$
$�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�,

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
-
-
�

�
�
��
�1

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

�
�,

�
�)

�
�

�,

�
�)

�,

�
�)

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�$
$�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

*
�
��
��

�
�=
�=
��
�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

*�
��
�
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
	�
�
�
�

�
	�
��
��

�
9
�
��
�
	�
�!
�
	�

	
%
�

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
�'
)�
B
��
�

0

�
��
$�
��
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�0
�
��
��
��

�
��
��

��
	�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�*
��
'�
�(

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

�,

�
��
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

=
��
�
��
�*
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��

� 
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

"
�
	�
��

�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
�1
�
��
�0
$

�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
�0
�%
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��

	
0
�

�

��
	


�
��
	


�
��
�
�
��
�	



��

��
	�
��
�
	

��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�	

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

;
�
��
�
	�
�

	
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
0
�
��
�

�
��
��
�

��
��
(�
�

��
��
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
0



�
�

��
�
$

�

�
�

�
�%

�
�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'3
'

��
+�
��

��
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���

��
��
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
��

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

*)

)
'�
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

(

--
'�
��

�!
'�
3�
6
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�"




�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'�

+
-,
��
�

��
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���

��
��
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
��

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'*

'
',
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
$$
���
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�9

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
6
��
��

�

�
��

��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
0



�
��
�
�
�
$

�

�
��

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
	

<
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�%
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
��
��

�
�
%
�0
�
		
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�

	
��
�
�	

�
�

�
�

�

	�
��
�
��
��

�
!
'�
3�
��
��
$$
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�



�
��
��

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�%
�

�
��
��
9
�
:
��
��
�

�
�

�
�	
%
��
�
��
	�
�
�

	
��
�
��
��
��
	�
�
�%
�

�
��
�
��

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
��
�0

�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
�$

�
��
��
��
�)
��



�
��

�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�;
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�

0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��



��
�9
�
:
��
�
	�

�
�%
�

�
��
��
�0

�
�
�
��
	�
��

�
�

�)
��
3�
'3

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�3
��
��
''

�+
�'
��
''

*�
*

*�
(�
��

��
,

'(
'�
��

��
��
3�
''
���
�

�'
��
��
'*

�


�
�
�"
��
��
�
�
�9
�

%
�
�
?
��
�
�
��
��
(


�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
3�
�	

�
��

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
�
��
�$
��
��
��
�
�

�

		
��

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�

�
�

	
�

�
��
�
�3
��
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��

�

��

�
��
��

�
��
	�
��
�

 

�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

�
��
+�
�$
��
��
?)
�B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�)
�

B
�*
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

	�
�
��
�
��
�
�	

�
	�
�
�
	�

	

�

0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�	

�
	

�	

�
	�

��
�
�

	�
��
�
	�

�
��
�
�
�

0
��

�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
��
,�
�

$�
�

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
�B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�

��
B
�*
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��

��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	�
��
��
�	
��
�

�$
�
�
	

�	

�
	�
�
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�	



��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
�

�,

'
+(
�,
�

Page 177



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�
�
��
$A
��
�
��
�
�
	

��
��
�

�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
$$
�?
�

�
��
$�
�

��
�$
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
!
'�
3A
�

&�
��
�
�
$�
��
0
$


��
�
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

-�
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

-�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

+

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
		
��
��
�
�
��
�

?
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
4
�.
�
�=


�


�

�
4
�

�
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�

%
��
��
�


�
��
0
$�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
��

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

=
��
�
��
�+
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�

��.
	�
�

$
��
$�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
�

�
��
�0



�
��
	�

�
�$
%
�	

<
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

��

'
(3
�,
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

0
�
	�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'3

+
�*
�)
+

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'�

�
��
��
�

+

�
�
�
��
�
4
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
	


�
��
�%
��
%
�$

�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

�

),
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'-

,
��
��
�

+

�
�
�
3
�
4
�(
4
��
�
��
�
�3



?
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
�
��

�
��
��

�
�
	


�
�
�%
��
�%
�$

�

��
�

�

�
��
��
��
��
��

��
�

��
�0
�$
��
%
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

+-
,�
��

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�

+

�
�
�
3
�
4
�(
4
��
�
��
�
�3



?

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

�

,�
��
��

.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�	



�
"


��
��

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
4

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

�

,�
��
��

"


��
��
!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
4
��
�

��
�0

�
��
	


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$�

��
��

	
��
	�
�

	�
��
�

��
��
�

!
��

�
�
$

�)
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
0
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

"
	�
�

�
�
	�
�.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
��
�
	�

��

�
��
�
	�
�
�$
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
$�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

�,
'

,3
'�
��

�,
�'
��
��

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

�'
�-

�
('

�'
�-

�
('

'�
-

�(
'

'�
-

�(
'

'�
-

�(
'

�
�

,�
J
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�	

�

�
�$
%
��
��
�
��

�

�
��
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
�
��
�	
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
%
�

�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
�

	
�#
	�
�
�	
%
��
B
�
��
��
�
�
��

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

.
7
�

 
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

 
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
4
�
�
�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��
�0

�
��
		
�

�
�

�
�
��
0
%
��
7
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

8
�

	
��

�
"



��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�,
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�%
��
�
��

��

�
�
�
��
�

��
��
8
�

	
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�

	�

�
�

0
%
��
�
�
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
�

	
��
�
�

�!
�$

�
;
�
��
�

��
��
�

0



�
��

	
�

�
�?
�
�
��
�$

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

��
�
��
��
,�

6
�	
�

�
� 
�
�
��
�
�
�C
�
��
�A
���
�
�
�
��
$�
��
��

	
�

�

8
�
�

	
��
��
�
��
�

�
8
�

	
��

�
#
�%
�

�
��
;
�
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�0

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�,
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�%
��

�	
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
$�
�

	�

�
��
�
��
�

���

�
$$
��
�

�
��
�	

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�;
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�

0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�

�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�0
��

�

��

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�

�
�

��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

�
$$
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�	

�
��
�0

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�
�
$�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�

�

7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�0
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
$�

��
�

��
�
��
�

��
�
�
$�
��
��
�
�
��&
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�0



�
�

�*

*
-,
��
�

�3
)

+*
(�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�=
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

#
�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�	
��
�	
�

�


<
�
��
�

�
�

�	

�

�
��
�
�
�

��
0
��
��
�
�
��
�

$
�

	�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
�
��
),
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�*
��
��
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
��
�?
'�
B
�'
�0

�

�

')
�B
��
�0

�

�,
�B
�*
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
�
	�

	
�G
��
�*
��
��
	

%
�0
$�
��
�

�
��
'�
��
$�
��
�?
)�
B
�'
�0

�

�3
�B
��
�

0

�

��
�B
�*
�0

�
AG
�)
�B
�*
�0

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�*
��
��
	

%
�

�
�
�
�

�G
��
��

	
	�
�

��
��
��
�

�
��

��
�
�*
��
��
	

%
�*
�0

�
��
�
�
�

�G
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
#
$�
��
��

��
	�
�
�
��
�
�'
�

,*
-�
��
�
��
7
'

�

7
��
��
�
�7
+�
�
�

�?
8
C
.
�
&;
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��

*�
��
*�
'�

�(
��
*�
'�

�



�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
� �

�

	
�
�
�	
�9
	�
�

	
��

,'

)
,�
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

=
��
�
��
�+
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��

�*
��
*�
'�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
(�
�

$�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

�$
��
��
��
�
�'
��
�
�
�

	
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�B
��
��
��
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
�

��'
�

7
$�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
� 

	
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�3
��
<
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

	
��
�$
��
$�
�
	�
��
��

�

��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
�*
�B
��
�

0

�
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
�

��
�
�'
�0
$�
��
��
�
��
�

�
	

�	
�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�B
�*
�0

�

��
�B
�

��
0

�
��
�
�
��
�B
�'
�0

�
��

$
��

��
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
1
�

Page 178



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�@
�,
,
�5
6

��

�
�
��

�
�
��
	

�

��
��

�
��
�
�%
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



�
�
	�
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��



�

	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
���
�

��
�
�*
��
��
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
�
��
3-
�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�)
�B
�*
�0

�
�

�
�
�
�

�

��
��
B
�'
�0

�
��
�
�
�)
*�

B
��
�0

�
��
$�
��
A�
�
��
�
�3
-�
��
	�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�	
�
��
�

��
�
��
��

�
��
��
� 

	
��
�
	�
�

')
��
-�
�,

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

33

�
��
��
�

33

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

33

�
��

�3
3�
��

�
�

�
�

9
��
��
�	
�

�
��
+1
�(
��#
�%
�

�
��
�
��
�0



�
�

	

�

��

�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
0



�
��
�
�
�
$

�

�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

',

�
��
��
�

�"
�
�
��
�%
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��

"
�
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
��
�%
��
�
�!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

�
�
��

��
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�

9

�
	�
$

%
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

'�

�
��
��
�

�#
�
0
$�
��
.
	�
�
��
�
	�
��

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
.

$
$�
	�
��
�

�

�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��

��

�
$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
;
"
&�
�
9
�

�
8
�
5

*3

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

�
;
"
&�
�
9
�

�
8
�
5

,�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�

�

	
�$
�


�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
;
"
&�
�
9
�

�
8
�
5

'�

�
��
��
�

� 
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��

�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�@�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
;
"
&�
�
9
�

�
8
�
5

'�

�
��
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�	

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
;
"
&�
�
9
�

�
8
�
5

*

��
��
��

�.
	�
�

$
�#
$�
�
�6
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

�


�

��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�

$
��
$�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

.
�
�
�

'

,�
��
��

�!

�
�
	�
�%
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

&�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
��
�$
$�
�
�
��
�
.
:
��
��

	
��
�

��
�
�	

$
�
��
��
�
�
1
	

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
$�
�
��

<
�
��
�

�
��
$�
��
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�%
��
��
��

�

$�
�
�
�2
��
�
��
�%
��
��
�
�$
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�$
$�
�
�
��B
��
��
�%
�

�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

�8
�

�
�!
�
��

�
�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
��

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
=
�
	�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

��
�

��
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�0

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��

9

�

$
�
�

	
�	

<
�

�
��
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�0

�
��
$�
��

0

�
�



�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

��
�
�
���

�
�$
�

��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
�
�
$

��
�

@�
��
��
��
0
$

�

�
��

�
�

��
��
��
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�	

�
�

�
�

��

�
�

	�
��
�
��
��

�
!
'�
3�
��
��
��

	
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�%
�

�
��
�
�
�
$�
�0

�
��
0
	

��
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
��
�

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�$

�
�

	�
�	
�
�
��
�

�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
#
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�'
��
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

9
��
�0
��

�
��

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
�
��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
$$
��
�

�
��
�	

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�;
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�

0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�

�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
�
��
�0
��

�

��

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
9

�

$
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��

�

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
	�
0

�
�
	

�&
�
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
$�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�'
��

��
	�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
$�
0
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�	

�
��
$�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
	

�

0

�
�
�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

6
��
��

�

�
��
�.
�
��
��

	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

B
�
�	

�
�

,'

,
��
��
�

+3

�
��
��
�

�,

�
��
��
�

;
�
�

�
!
�

�
��
�

�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*'
��
,�
''

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
)

��
�	
��
,�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
��
�
�
�

	
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

')
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��
�0
�
�

�
?'
�

B
��
��
�
��

��
�B
�'
�0

�

�(
�B
��
�

0

�
��
�
�
��
�B
�*
�0

�
A

�

��
��
��
��

�
��
%
�$

�
��
�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

	
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
'�
*�
�
���
���
���
�

�3
1
',
++
���
���
���
���
���
��

',
��
,�
�3
���

�3
��
,�
��
''

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�*

�
��
��
�

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
�
��

�
�
��
	

�

��
��

�
��
�
�%
�

�
�

�+
�'
��
�+

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

��
�
�
��
	�
�$
�1
��
�	

�
�
�
�

�

�
�
	�
�
�

��
?8
C
.
�
&;
�
��
��
�
�

�$
$�
�
��
�

	�
�	

�

	
�

�
A�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
	�
�
�

�
��
�
��
$�
0
��
�
��

�
��
��
�

0
�
�
$�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�$
%
�


�
�

	�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
�	

�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
	�
�
�

��

?�
�
��
$$
��
�
��
*�
�
�
��
�A
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�

��
�	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��

�
��
%
��
�
��



�0
%
��
�

�

�
�	
��
�$
��

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
.
�

�
�
��
$

��

#
�
0
$�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�+
��

$
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�)
�B
��
�0

�

�*
�B
�

'�
0

�

�'
�B
��
��
�
��
A�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
��
�
$

��
��
	

%
�


B
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
��

��
�
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�	
�
�
�

�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�	

�
	�

��
	�
��
�$
�
�
	�
$

�

$
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��


�
�	
��
�

�	
��
�
G�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�

		
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
*�
0

�
��
�

��
�
	

%
��
�
�
�

�G
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
��
'�
�+

Page 179



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

)

,�
��
��

 
�
�
��
�
4
��



?
��
�
�

#
��
��

$
�
�=
�%
��
	�
�
� 

	
��
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��
�

	

0
%
��
�

�

�	
��

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
$

��
�
�
�

#
��
��

$
�
�=
�%
��
�$
$�
0

�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�

��
�

	$
%
��
�	

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
$%
��
��
�
�

�
�	
%
��
	�
�
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
��

�
�
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�

��
�

�

�
��
��
�

�
9
�	

�
��
	�
�
��

�
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
	

��
�
�
�0
$%
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

.
�
	�

%
�!
�	



�

�

,�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

&�
�	

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
	�
�
��
��
�
�0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�

�
��
��

�

�
��
�
	�

	
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
	�
�
	�
��

�

�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
��
	%
��
��
�
��

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
��

�,

�
)�
��
�

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
��

�

'�
3�
��

.
�
4



�
��
(
#"

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
��

3

(�
-�
(3

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'

,(
-�
)�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�

�
�
�
�

'

,(
-

�'

,
(-

',
(-

�
�

�+

3
�,
��
�

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
0

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�

�

�

'�
3�
��

.
�
4



�
��
(
#"
�

��

'
�3

�
�

�
�

.
	�
�
��

	
	

�
��
�
�.
�$

'

,*
-�
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

'

,*
-

�'

,
*-

�
�

�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

,�

�
��
��
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
	�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
	

��
	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

	

��
$�
��
��
��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

��
�$
�
�
��
�
�0
�
��
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
�

��
M�
��
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�


B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
#
>

�

��
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
.
:

�

��
�
��
�%
��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��

�

0
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

*

,�
��
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�.


�
��



�
�
�
�

	�
�
�

��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
	�
�

$
��
$�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
�
��
��
��


	�
!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

=
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
�
��
��
��


	�
"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�=
�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
�
��
��
��


	�
�
��
�
��
�

�



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

#�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�#
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��


��
=
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

/�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
4
��

;
�
��$
��

	
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
��
�	
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��

�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
��

�
0



�
��

	
%
�	

�

�
�$
%
�

	

�

��

�
���

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
�
��

�
0



�
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
�
�
$

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�$
�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�;
�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�

0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

�
��
�0
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�0



�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��

�

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
'�
B
�)
�0

�
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
%
�

!
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�
	

%

�

*�
0

�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

��
�
�
$

��
��
�$
%
��
�

$
$�
�
�
�

�3
��
3�
��

*,

3
-'
�*
3

-

��
��
��

,*

,
��

8
I�
��
� 
��
��
�
�2
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
	�
	%
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�

�

�
�
�
	�
	%
��
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
�
�
$�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
,�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
$�
�
�
��
��

	

�	
��
��
�
�
��

$
�
��
�
$$

�

�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

.
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
$$

�

�
0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

��
�
�	

$
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�$
�

��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
��

	
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��

��
	�
�

�
�	
%
�#
	�
�
�	
%
�

�
��
�

�
%
�?
)�
��
�
�
�
�$
�A
��
�
�
�

;
�
	�

	
%
��
��
�
�
$�
?*
��
�
�
�
�$
�A
�

�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
%
�

��
�
��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�
0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�


�
��
�

$

�
��
��
�

��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�

�

		
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�

��
�
�
�
%
��
�
��

�
��

$

�
��
��
�

�

��
�
�
�
%
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�	
��
�

�

��
�
��
��
��
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�

�
$�
%
��
	

��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�


�

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

	�
��

�'
-�
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��

�

��
	�
�
��
��
�1
��
��
�
��
�
�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�$
�

	�
��
�
�
��
��
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
��
�

��
��
�
�.
�

�

�3
�'
��
'�

')
��
+�
'�

'�
�'
��
'�

*�

�
++
��
�

Page 180



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
	�
�
�

�

,

,3
-�
()

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

�
	�
�
�

�

)

(,
*�
('

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�)

(
,)

�)

(
,)

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

�'

(
3,
��
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

C
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

3

(�
-�
��

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

'

))
*�
3,

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�'

)
))

�
�

�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

�(

)
-,
��
�

(
�

�


�
��
�
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�0

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

��
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	0
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�	
0
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
$�
�0

�
��
�

B
�$
��
�

�
��

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%

'

)-
*�
-,

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�'

)
-)

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

'(

,
��
��
�

,�
%

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
�%
�

�
��

�
��
�	

�

�
�

�
�H
�.
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��

�

	�
��
��
��

�
��

�



�
��
��
�

	�
�
�
	�
��

�	

�
��
		
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�0
%
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
0

	
��
��
��

�
��

��

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
9

�
��
��
��
�
��

�

��
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
	


�

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
�
��
�

(-
,�
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
�

�

��
�

��
��
��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�%
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
*,
J
��
��
��

�
�
 
�

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�3
,J
��
�
�0

�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
+�
�
�%
��
�
��
��

�
-�
�
��
�	
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�0

�
�
�
��
�
$�
�

�
	�
�
�

�

*)

)
'�
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�
	�
�
�

�

 
�
�

�
�
�
�?
��
	

��
�
$�
��
�
�

!
'�
3A
�

�
	�
�
�

�

�

,�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�

��
��
�
�

!
��

�
�
$

��
��
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
	�

��

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
%
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�$
��
�
��
=
�%
��
	�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
$�
��
��
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

#
�%
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

'�

�
��
��
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

 
 
�
�
!

#
�%
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�#
�%
�

�
��
��
�

B
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
$%
��

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��=
�
	�
��
�
��

�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
?�
*1
'*
A

(�

�
*�
�'
,

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

��

)
-,
��
�

=
��
�
��
�+
�%

�
	�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�*
3

('
��
��

�	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
�

=
��
�
��
�,
�%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

	

��
�$
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
�

��
�
��

	
�
��
��
�
��
	

��

33
��
��
�0
�
	%
��
�
��
�

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
*�
,;
;
�

*�

*
',
�3
,

'�

,
��
��
�

*�

(
)+
�-
,

!
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	

%
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

		
��

�
*�
0

�
��
��
�
$

�

��
�
�$
%
��
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�	
��

�
��
�	

�
	�

''
�'
��
'�

�3
�'
��
'�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
*�
B
��
�0

�
��
��
�
$

�

��
�
�$
%
��
�

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
	

%
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�*
�0

�
�

�-
��
'�
'*

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
'�
'.
K
��

�3
��
'�
��
'�

�(
��
��
'�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
')
�	

�
��

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�B
��
��
��
	

%
�0
$�
��
��

?7
$�
��
��
�*
�B
�*
�0

�
��
�
�
�)
�B
�

��
0

�
��
�
�
�7
$�
��
�7
�,
�B
��
�

0

�
��
�
�
��
�B
�*
�0

�
��

$
��

��
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
A�
�
��
�
�

0
��

�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�

��
��

�
��

�	
�
�
�8
$�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�$
��
�
��
=
�%

��

	
	�
�

��
��
�

��
	�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�

�	
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�	

�
	�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
	�

	
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�	
��

�
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
�	
�
�
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��

�
�	

�
��
	�
.
�

�

�(
��
-�
'�

C�
��
�
�
�
�"
��
��
�
�
�

Page 181



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
;
��
-7
;
���
���
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�-
�B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�	
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��

�

		
��



�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
$$
�

��
�

�
��
�
�
�0
��

�

�
��

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
�

'-
��
'�
��
'�

�
	�
�
�

�

'*

'
',
��
�

'*

'
',
��
�

',
�%

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
��
	

�

��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

#
�%
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%

'

�*
'�
)�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

3�
*�
((

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

+'
�-
-

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

-�

-
�*
�*
'

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�



!
2
�
!

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

.
7
�
�

 
�
�

�
�
�
�/
�
=

�
�=


��
�

8
�
��
�
�
�
$

��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
$

��
��
��

�
$�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

��
�
��
��
'�
6
�	
�

�
� 
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�

�
�

�
	�
��
��
�
��

	
�

�
�
�
��
7
�
��
�

�
!
�$

�
;
�
��
�


�

��

�
��
7
�
��
�	
	%
��
�
�
��
8
�

	
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�
��

	
�

�
8
�

	
��

�
#
�%
�

�
��
;
�
��
�

�?
�
'3
A�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

�



�
��
�

�
�/
,
5
��
�
��
�1

 
 
�
�
!

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

*

*,
*�
'-

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�*

,
*,

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

��

3
�*
��
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
 
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
$�
�0

�
��
�

B
�$
��
�

�
�

�
�
��

$
�
�

 
��
�
�
�%
�

'

�*
��
'3

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

,

��
��
��

+

�
�
�
��
�
4
��
(
4
��
�
��


�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

�
	


�
�=
�%
��
�
%
�$

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

��

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

$
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

*

*�
,�
��

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

!
�
�
��
0
�
	%
�

)'
3�
�,

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

'�

*
+�

,
3-
�,
�

$-
)8
;
,
);
A
@

,
)6
6
<
):
A
-

<
:
:
)@
5
;

,
:
6
)<
@
-

,
)5
-
<
);
5
@

$,
)8
-
8
)A
<
-

$6
6
;
),
;
6

5

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
'�
'.
K
���
�

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
�$
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

�

�
�	

�
��
$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��

	
�
��
��
�
��
	

�

�

	

��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
	�
�
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

�$
�
��
	

��
��
��
��
��

�
��
	�
�
�

�

��
��
	

��
��
��
0
	�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
	

%

��
�0

�
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	



��

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
�!
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�3
��
*�
'�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�'

3
**
�*
3

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
	


�
��
�%
��
��
�
�	
�
0
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�0

�
��
�

B
�$
��
�

�
��

+

-)
'�
�,

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

=
��
�
��
�'
��
%

�
	�
��
��

��

�
	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
��

-)

�
,3
�)
+

��
��
*�
'*

�
�
��

$
�
��
;
*�
- 
#
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�
	

�	
�


B
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
�	

�
�

��
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
	

�	
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
	�
��

�$
�
�
	�
�$
��
��
�
��
��
��

$
��

��
�
��
��

�
�0

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
���

�
�

�
�	
��
�

��
��

�*
��
'�
'*

'

-'
-�
'3

C
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�

,�
%

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
��
	

�

��
��

�3
��
��
'*

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�(
�B
�'
�0

�

��
)�

B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�*
�B
�*
�0

�
A�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
�
	�
�
��
$�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

�

		
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	

�

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�

�	
�
�
�

��
��

�
��
�
�
�	

�
	

�


B
�

	�
�$
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�$
$�

$

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��

$
�
��
;
'�

Page 182



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�$
$

��

�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�

$�
0
	�
	%

��
��
��

�
1
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
1
��
	

��
�

	
��
�$
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
$$
�	
%
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
A�

$�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
$�
��
��
�
��

	
��
$�

��
�	
�
�

��
	�
��
��
�

�$

�

$
�

�


�
�$
�
��
	


��
��

�
��
��
�
�

@�
�
��
��
�

�	

�
�
�

��
��
	�
�



�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��

	
�
��
��
�
�

�	

�

��
�



$�
�$

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


B
�

	�
�$
�$
��
�
��
�
�
��

�*
��
��
�'

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

,

��
��
��

,

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�

�
		
��
�9
��

�
�
��



�
�
��


�
�

#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�$
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�	
��
��
��
��
$�
��
�
�

�

�
��
	

��
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
��
�


�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

��
*�
,

��

3
(,

�

3(
,

�
�

�

K

$
$�
�
�$
��

�
��
��
8
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��
��
��0

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
�

�
�	

�
��

�
	�
�
�



,*

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

!
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
��
��

#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
�	
�
��
�

�

	
�$
�


�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
$�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�
$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,
3

)�
(

�)
(,
�,

�3

(
�)

3

(�
)

�
�3

(
�)

�
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�



',
,

('
(�
*'

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

 
		
��
��
�
��


��
�
��
*


�
��
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�$
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�%
�0
$

��
�
�

��
��
�$
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
$

��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�

�$
��
��

	
�
��
�

�

 
 
�
�
!

��
'�

)
*)

��
�*
-�
'

�+

-
'*

+

-'
*

�
�+

-
'*

�
�
*+
�'
��
��
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�	
��
�
��

�
	

�
��

�
�?
�
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	A
�

�	
�
�
�	

�
��

�
��
�$
��
�
�

�
�
�$
�
	

�
D�
�;
�
	�

	
%
��
�
	�

�
�B
��
�
�
��
��
'+
��
�
�$
�
	

�
�

?�
�

�
�3
�
��
��
��
)�
%
	�
A�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�

��
�	
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
$

��
��
	

%
�	

�
	�


B
�

�
��
�
�
�?
	

�
��

�
�

'+
��
(�
�+

�
	�
�
�



)

��
��
��

)

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
$

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
�

�	
�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�	
�
�
�
�
�

��
	�
��
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�7
�
��
� 
�$
$�

��
�
�	

�
�
��
��

�

�
��
�
��

�
�
0
$�
��
��
�
��
�%
��
�
��
	


�
�

9
	�
�
�
�
��
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)

�
��

�'
-'
)

��

�
+3

�

�+
3

�
��

�
+3

�
 
��
�
�
�%
��
=
�
	�
��
��
��
	


�
�9
	�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��

=
�
	�
��
�	

�
�
	�
�
	

��
��
�

!
��
�
$

��
��
	

%
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�

%
�
�
��
1
��
�
	�
�
��
	�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�)
��
'�
�+

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

'�

�
��
��
�

'�

�
��
��
�

5
,
�5
,
�-
5
,
-

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
$�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�

	
�

7
�
�
	�

�
 
�$
$�
0
%
� 
�
�
�

	
��

�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�
�'
�

3�
)

'�

3
�)

�
�'
�

3�
)

�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�>

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�7
�
�
	�

�
 
�$
$�
��
��
��
+�
�.
�
��
��
	�
@

��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
$�
��
�
�$
��
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��

�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�0
$

��

�

�
�	
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

��

�
@�
�
��
��
�
�0

�
�



�
��
	


�
��
��

�
��
�
�
�

7
�
�
	�

�
 
�$
$

��
�
�

�

	
��
�
��
��
$�
�

��
�0
�$
��
%
�

�
�
	�
��

�
�
�
��
	�
�

�
��
�

�
$�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�0

�

�
	�
0
$

�
��
��
���
�
�
��
$�
��
��
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�	

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�$
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
�

��
�

�

�
��
	�
��
I

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�0

�

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��

�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
��

�
	�
�
��
�$
$%
��
�
��
��
�
��

�

��
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�$
��

	
��
�
��
�%

�
	�
�

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
�	

<
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
	

��
	�
��
��

�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
7
�
��
�
��
	�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

3�
7
�
�
	�

�
 
�$
$�
;
'*
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�

�
	�
$�

��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�$
��
%
��
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

	
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�

',
��
,�
�-

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

�*

�
��
��
�

�*

�
��
��
�

,
<
�5
:
�-
5
,
-

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
$

��
	�
��

�
�
�
	�
�
�

��
��

��
��
�$
$�
�
�
��
�I

0
	�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
��
��

�

�
��
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��
*

��
�

�'
3

'-
,

'3

'
-,

�
�'
3

'-
,

�

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
	

�

��

�
��
	�
�
�!
��
/�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�

�	

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�0

�
	

��
	�

�

��

�
�
�

�
��
��

	
��
�
�	

<
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
� 
��
�
�
�%
��

0
�
�
�

�
��
$$
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�0
	�
�
�

�
4'
�5
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�

�

�
��
��

B
��
��
�
��
��
�$
�%

�
	�
�

��
+

('
(

�(
��
��
��

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

��
��
�'
)-
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�$
��
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

B
�

�
��
�
�
��

��
�	
�
�
��
$

�

$
��
�
�
�*
1
)�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
$

�

$

��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
$$
�

$

�
��
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
$�
�
��
$�
0
�

��
�
��
�
��
$$
�	
%
�	

�
��
$�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�

�
��
��

�
0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�$
��
�

��
?�

�
��

�
�

Page 183



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�$

�
9
	�
�

�
��
�
�7
�%
$�
��
�

#
	�
@

��
��
��
��
��
$�
�

��
�

�
	

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�	

�

 
��
�
$�
�
�
�

+,

�
��
��
�

(


�
�
�
�
��
4
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

�+
,

��
�

�+
,�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�


�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

	
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�	

�
	�

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�	
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��

'3
�'
��
�3

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

'�

�
��
��
�

'�

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�.
	�
��
��
�6
��
��

�

�
��

�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
��

�
	�
�
��
��
�
�

$

��
	�
�
��
��
�



�
�

��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��

	
��
�
�
	�
�
	�
��

�

�

�
��
	

��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�
	�
��
��
��

�
%
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�'
��
��

�
�

�
�

�

4'
�5
�$
$�
��
�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
��
��

�
%
��

�
��
	

��
��
�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

���
�

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
��

�
0



�
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�

�	
��
��
��
��
$�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�

��
	

$�
��
�
�
��
�
��
.
��
3�
���
�
�
�
$

�

�?
�
$$
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
.
��
3�
��
�
�
��
�$
$�
0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*A

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

,

��
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
��

�
��
�
	

��
	


�
��
$�
�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�

�
��
�	
�
�
��
�

�
��
�

0

�
�



�
��
	�
��
�
�

	
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

��
()
3

��

�
,)

�

�,
)

�
��

�
,)

�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
	


�
��
	


�
�

��
� 
��
�
��

$
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
	


�
��
��

�
0



�
�

�
$�
�
�

�

��
�
�
�	

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

+

,�
��
��

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
	

��
	�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��

�

�
��
��
�
�0

�
�



�
��

�
�

�

�
��
�
$�
	�
�	
�
��
�
�

	
��

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
�

�
	

�
�
�
�$
�

��
�
�	

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
%
�

�

�
��
�	



��
$�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�+

,
��

�
�+

3
��

�
�

�+

3
��

�+

3
��

.
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�%
��
�
	�
��

��
��
�

�
�	

�
��
�
�'
*1
')
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

),

�
��
��
�

-
<
�5
6
�,
6

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

$
�
��
��

��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!
�

�)
,

((
�

�)
,-
-*

��
'(

�'
(

�
��
'(

�
�
�
�
�
$

�

��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�%

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

',

�
��
��
�

�)
��
3�
'3

*
��
=
3
�
4
�#
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
$�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��

��

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

��
	


�

�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
,

��
�

�
�'
,

�-
-

�
�

�'
,

�-
-

�'
,

�-
-

.
2
.
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
	�
@

��

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

*�

�
��
��
�

�)
��
3�
'3

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�

�
��
�
��

��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*
�

��
�

�
�*
�

',
,

*�

'
,,

�
�*
�

',
,

�
9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

��

�
$�
�

�
��
�8
��
�
�
�
�
�#
�	
�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

'-
)

��
��
��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��

$
�

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
�0
$

� 
�
�
��
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
,�
�
�	

�
��

�
��
�$
��
$�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

$
�
�

	
�?
��
��
)�
'*
A

�,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

�*
,�

�*
,�

*,
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

;
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%
�

�

�
		
��
�.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

 

�
�

�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�?

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
��
�
�
��

�

�
;
)�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
��
3�
�$
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�,
�B
��
�0

�
��
�
�
�

'�
B
�*
�0

�
A�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

0
��

�

�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�

�

0
��

�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�	

�
	�

�

		
��

1
�0
�$
��
�
%
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�

��
�	
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
$

�

$
��
�

�)
��
3�
'�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

'�

�
��
��
�

'�

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

� 
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�

�
�	

�
��
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�%
��
�
	�
��

��
��
�
��
��
��

	
��
�
�
��
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
�

��
�

�
�'
*

(,
,

'*

(
,,

�

33
(

''

,
��

')

'
3(

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�$
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
@�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�

��
	

�

��

�
�

�
�
�

	
��
�

�
!
'�
3�
�
	�
@

��
�	

$
��
��
�
��
�
��
.
�'
(�
�

?�
�
�
�
��
�	
��
��

	
	

�
A�
��
�
�
�
�
$

�

��

,�
�
��
�
�
��

	
��
	%
��
��

�
�%
�

�
��
��

5
,
�5
<
�5
A

'�
�

��
��
��

'*

,
��
��
�

�3
)

��
��
��

Page 184



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

3(
+

��
	


�
��
��

�

�

�
�
	�

	
%
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
�
	

%

��
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�


B
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�
(�
B
��
�

0

�
��
$�
��

��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
��
''
�B
��
�
�
�0

�
��
$�
��
�

��
�	

�
	�
�
��
��
�


��
��
�
�

0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�

		
��

�

��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
� 
��
�
��

$
�
�

�
�
��
�?
��

�
�

�
��
��

�

�
��
�

�

�
M.
#
1
�)
1
�'
'-
A�
�

�-
��
��
�3

=
��
��
�
�
	


',

�
��
��
�

',

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�

��
�
�	
�
��
	

�
�

�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

 
��
�
��

$
�
��
�
��

�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��

�

��
�
��
�%
��
��
� 
��
�
��

$
�
�

�
�
��

��
�
�
��
�
%
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
	�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'
,

��
�

�'
,

)+
*

',

)
+*

3

''
+

�

)+
,

+3
��
�3
�

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
	


�
�

�
��

�
���
�
�
�
$

�

��
��
�
�
�
��
�	

�
��
�0

�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

�
	�
�
�



��

�
��
��
�

�
�

�
=
�

�
(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
	�
��
�
��
$�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
�
�
�	

�
��

�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
#
>

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

!
�
0
@

��
��
�
��
#
�
��

�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�	



��

�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
��

�

	
��
	�
�

�
�

�
	�
�
�



,

��
��
��

#�
��
��
��
(
�
>
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

.
�
�
�	
�
��
	

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

��

�

�
�

��
��

�

�
��
�
��
��

�


B
��
��
�
�
��
#
>
��
��

�



�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

�
�,

�
')

�
�

�,

�
')

�,

�
')

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
#
>
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
��
�
�0

�

��
�
�
$

�

��
�
�'
*1
')
�0

�
�
	

��

�
��
	�
@

��
��
��

�
	�
�
�



,

��
��
��

"
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
��

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�

��
�
$

�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

��
0
�
��
�

�
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�

�

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�,

�
��

�
�,

�
�)

,

��
)

�
�,

�
�)

�

9
�
�
�0

�
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
�

��
��
	�

	

��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
0
�
��
��
�
�$
��

�
��
��
�
��

$
�
�

�
	�
�
�



.
�
�0

�
��
�
�
��

�
�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
	�
�	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��

�
��

��
��
�

�
��
�


��
�
	�
��
��
��

�
	0
%
�

��
	


�
�

�	

�
�
�
�$
1
	

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
�

�

	

��
��
��

�

�
��
�
��

��
		
��
�

�
�%
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�%
�

�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�
.
�
�0

�
��
�
�
��

�
��
	�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

+,

*
*-
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
	$
%
�%

�
	�
1
��
�$
�
��
	

�


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

�

��
�
�
�	
%
��
��
�
�
$�
�
$�
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�	

�
�

!
2
�
!

�+
,

**
-

�+
)(
3�

�*
-,

*-
,

�
*-
,

�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

���

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�0

�
�
�
�

�
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

�

**
-�
�)

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

/�
�
1

��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
	�
$�
�
$�
%
��
��
�$
��
�

��
��
�

7
	�
�
�
��

$
�
�#
�	
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
	

�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

*
*-

�
��

)
3*

�
�

��

)
3*

��

)
3*

.
�
��
��
��
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
	�
7
	�
�
�
��

$
�
�#
�	
�
�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��#
�	
�
��
�

��
��
	

��
�
�	

�
�
��

��
��
$�
0
$

�0
�$
��
�

��
�
�
��
	

��

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

*,

�
��
��
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�0

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�

��
�	

�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�

0
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
0
$�
�$
%
�

��
��
$�
0
$

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�,
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��

�

$�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�*
,

��
�

�
�*
,

'�
�

*,

'
��

�
�*
,

'�
�

�

9
�
�
��
�	
��
$�
�

�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

��

�
	

�
�
��
��
�
�
�1
�	

�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
,
@
�

�
�
��
�1

 
 
�
�
!

�
�

�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

''
+

�'
)�
��

��
�'
��
��
'3
�

�+
�'
��
��
'-

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
�

��
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
	�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

!
2
�
!

�,
(

'�
-

�,
(�
'�

�3
'

3�
-

3'

3
�-

3'

,
'�

�(
,

�

"
�	
��
�,
�J
��
�
�
�
$

�

��?
	

�
��
�
��
�
�,
�J
�

�
�%
�

�
�A
�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�

�
�

	
�$

%
�!
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�
�
$

�

�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

,�

�
��
��
�

��
�'
��
��
'3
�

�+
�'
��
��
'-

!
�
�
�

4
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
4
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
$�
%
�

�
��

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
$�
��
$�

�
�
	�

	
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�,
'

+�
�

�,
'

�+
�

,'

�
+�

,'

�
+�

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�@�
0
��

�
��
�
	�
'�
1
'*
��.
��
0

�

�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

��
��
(�
�'

*�

�
��
��
�

'�
�

3-
)�
�)

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
�
��
*+
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�'
��
B
�'
�0

�

�'
*�

B
��
�0

�

�'
,�
B
�*
�0

�
A�

��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
��

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

��
�
��
3+
��
<
�
���
$�
��
��
'�
�
,�

�
�

��
$�
�
	�
�
��

�
��
��
�*
��
�
�
�,
�

��
�
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
$�
��
�
�

��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�	

�
	�
�
��
�
�

��

�
��
%
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

	

�

��
�

��

�
��
��
��

�

�
��
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�

�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
,*
�	

�
��

�
��
�$
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�+
�B
��
�

;
'*
�,
C
#
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

.
#
1
�(
1
�)
�*
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

*�
��
-�
'�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
	

�
$�
�

�

�
��

��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
	�
�
�

��
�
��



�0
�	

�

�	
N�
�



��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
��

�
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	

��
$�
��
	�
�
�
��

��
��
�	
��
��
$�
�
	�
$

�

$
��
�
�
�

�



��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
$

�

$

�

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
��

�
�$
��
�
��
���

?�

�
��

�
��
��

�

A
�

��
��
-�
'�

Page 185



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
�

�
��
�	
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
0



�
��
�
$�
��8
�

	
��

�

'�
-

(*
,�
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

 
 
�
�
!
�

'�
+

(�
3

�
��
*)

'
),

�
�

��
*)

'
),

��
*)

'
),

#
�%
�

�
��
	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
���

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

�
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

	
��
�
�

'�

�
��
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�

�
	�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

'�

'
'(

�
�'
�

''
(

'�

'
'(

'�

'
'(

'�
''
(

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
��
�$
��
	�
�
	�
�
�

�
��

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
9

�
7
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
$�
�

�
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

��

3
(*

�
��

3
(*

�

�
�

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

�+
,

**
-�
��

!
�
�
��
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��


�
	$
%
�%

�
	�
1
��
�$
�
��
	

�


�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�

�

��
�
�
�	
%
��
��
�
�
$�
�
$�
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�	

�
�

!
2
�
!

�+
,

**
-

�
�+
,

**
-

+,

*
*-

+,

*
*-

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
� 
��
�
��

$
�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
�

!
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

�'
,

��
��
��

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
0
$�
��
�
��
�
�
�%
�?
�
	


�
�

�
��

�
A�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�

�
��
	

��
��
��
�
�$
�
�

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�

�
��
$

�
��
�
�

�
'-
��
��
��

�
��
	


�

�
��
��

�'
,

��
�

�
�'
,

��
�

�
�

�'
,

��
�

�'
,

��
�

#
�%
�

�
��
	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�$

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

�
��
�0



�
��
�
��
��

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

�'
,

��
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
4
��
�
�
��
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
$�

�
$�
%
��
��
�$
��
�

��
��
�

7
	�
�
�
��

$
�
�#
�	
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��
	

��
�

�'
,

��
�

�
�'
,

��
�

�
�

�'
,

��
�

�'
,

��
�

#
�	
�
��
�	

�
��
�
��
�

	
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

%
�

�
�
�7
	�
�
�
��

$
�
�1
��
$�
�

�
�1
��
	�
�
��
#
�	
�
�

��
,�
��
�

�
,
5
6
�.
 
�
#�
 
�
#�
+
��
!
!

�
�
�
�

��
,�

�
�

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
,
@
�

�
�
��
�1

�
�

�
�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

��



�


��
�
��
�
	�
�4
��
�
�
�

!
�
�
�



�
�
�
�
��
��

#�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�=
�
�
�
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�#
�
�
�
��
	�
��
��


�
�

	�

�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
K�
�
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�=
�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

),

�
��
��
�

��
�	
�F
�
�$
��
%
�6
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

C
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�	
�<
�
�$
��
%
�

�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�

<
�
��
�

�
��
��
�

��

�
$�
��
$�
�%
��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�)
,

��
�

�
�)
,

�*
3

),

�
*3

�
�)
,

�*
3

�

�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�	
�<
�
�$
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�

7
�
�

�
��
�
��
�!
��
�
�
$�
��
�

��
�
��
�
��
	

��
�
�
	�
B
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
*�
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
'�
B
�)
��
0

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

0
��

�

�
��
��
�
�$
��
�
��

$
$

��
�

B
��
	�
�
��
�
�
	�

	
��
��
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�0
��
�0
$

�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�	
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

�'
',

,
+-
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

''
-

(*
,�
��

�
�
��



;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

#
��
�
�	
�
��
$�
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�

	

�

��
�
�
$

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�'
'�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�0
�$
��
�

�

�
�
�
��
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
	�
��
��

�
��
��
((
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

3

��
��
��

3

��
��
��

�

3(
*

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

.
�
�0

�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
'�
�6
�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
$�
�

�
�
�
��

�

�
�
��
1
#
��
�
�	
�
��
$�
�

��
��

#
	�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�	
��
��
��

�
��
��

�

�
��
�
	�

	
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�

��
�
$

�

�
��
	

�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

	

��
	�
��
��
�
��
�*
��"
�
�
��
�%
�

�$
�

	�
��
�
�
��
��
�#
��
�
�	
�
��
$�
�

���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�*
*�
-

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�
�	
�

�
��
;
'*
���
���
���
���
���
���
���

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	

%
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�
	�

	
%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

?�
$�
��
�9
'A
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
	�

�
$�
%
��
	

��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�0
%
�

��

�

	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�

�

�
�	
��
*�
��
�
	

%
�0
$�
��
��
��
*3
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�+
�B
�'
�0

�

�'
,�

B
��
�0

�

�3
�B
�*
�0

�

�-
�B
�)
�

0

�
A�
��
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�'
+�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
��
�

��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��



�	
�
�
��
�

		
��

�

�

0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
	�

	
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
+�
��
��
$

��

=
�%

�7
�	
�

�

��
;
)�

*'
'7
���
�
��

�
�
�
��
�

.
#
1
�(
1
�(
3(
���
���

�-
��
,�
'�

''
��
*�
�+

),

�
��
��
�

#
	�
�
�
�

�
�!
��

�
%
��
�
�
�

&�
�
	�
�

�

�
��
!
��

�

�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
�

��
�
1
�
	�
	

�$
��
�
�

�
��
�
��


B
��
��
�
�
��
�	
	�
��

�
�%
�

��
�$
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��


B
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�

	
��

�

�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

@�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
;
�
	�
�
�

�
�	
��
$�
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

7
�
�
�
�
��
�
	


�
��
�
��

�

.

$
��
	�
��
�
��
1
=
�$
�

	
�

=
�%

�7
	�
�
�
$�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	


�
��
��

�

��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��

	
�@�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�	
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
��

�
��
%
�$

�
��
��
$�
��

�

�

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
��

	
�

��
��
$$
�	
%
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�

�


�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��
?�

�
��
�
�
�
�

$�
�
�
��
�
�

�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
A�
��

�3

�
��

'(
��
(�
''

�+
��
3�
'�

Page 186



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
��

�
0



�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

	
�

7
�
�

�

'*

'
',
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

$
�
��
��

��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

�'
*

,(
3

�'
,+

3
))

',
+

3)
)

�
�'
,+

3
))

�

4'
))

)
))
��
��
��
�0

�
�	
��
��

	
	

�
��
�
�&
�
�
�
�
��

#
�	
�
��8
�
$%
�4
'*

,
(3
��
�
�0

�
�$
$�
��
�

�
��
�
�

7
�
�

�
�#
	�
�
�	
%
��
��
�
�
$�
0
��

�

�
��
�
�
	�
�

�

!
'�
3�
�
B
�

�
�
��
�
	

��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

)

**
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�)

*
*�

�)

*
*�

)

**
�

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

� 
�$
$

*�

+
--
��
�

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

$
�
��
��

��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

� 
�$
$

�,

�
��
��
�

� 
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
%
�

��
��
�
�$
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�

�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��



�
�

��
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	


�
��
%
�$

�

	�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
%
��
��

	
�

	

$�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
%
�

�

�
��
	

��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

'3
�

��
��
��

!
�
�
��
��


�
�(


�
�

��
�
��


�
�

��
�
��
	�
�
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

$
�
��
��

��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
8
6
�

�
�
��
�1

 
 
�
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

')
�

��
��
��

�#
�
0
$�
��
.
	�
�
��
�
	�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
0
$�
��

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�%
��

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
%
�

�
��
��

�
$�
�
�
��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

��
�



�
��
�
�
�
�"
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�4
�"
�
�
�
$

�
�
��
��
��


	�
��
=
�
�
�
�	



�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�)
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
)�


3
�
�

�
=
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

	�
��



�
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��

��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�


�
��
7�
�
'

��
��
�
�"
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��


�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

-�

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
	�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
�
��
��
�
�$
��
	�
�
�	
%
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
�	
%
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
	�
��
��

�
��
	�

��
�
	�
�

�

�
��
��
�
�

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
$�
��

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
��

�

�
��
��
�

�
�0
%
�

��

�
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

!
2
�
!

�+
'

(*
,

�
�+
'

(*
,

+'

(
*,

+'

(
*,

�
�

�
$$
�
��
�

�
��
�
� 
�I

$
�
�
�
�
�!
��
�
�
$�
�
B
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
$

�

��.
�
�0

�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�	
%

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�/
A
�

�
�
��
�1

�
�

�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�	
�
��
��
��
�"
�
B
��
��

�

��
�
�	

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
(�
��
�
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�+
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�*
�0

�
�

�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�'
��

�
��
�

�
�)
�

0

�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
�
	�

	
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
��

,�
%
	�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��

	

�

��
�

,-

+
--
��
�

#
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�
9
��
�0
��

�

��

�
�

�

��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
��
�
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
6
��
��

�

�
��
�9

�

$
�
�

	
�

��
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�	
�

�
��
�
�

9
��
��
��
��
�
��
�	

�
��
�
��
�
��
$�
�

��
�
��
$�

	
��
��
�
	

�

�
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�
�
�
	

��
�

�
�

��
��

1
�
�	
�
$�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
$�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
�

��

�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
!
'�
3�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�

	
�

�

�
��
$�
��
	�
�
�9
6

-�

�
��
��
�

,�
%

�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�

�

�
��

�
�
��
	

�

��
�

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
;
''
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�

��
�
�	
��
��
��
�
	

%
�0
�
�$
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�0
��

�

�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��

�
�0
$

��
�
��
�
��
$�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

��

�
��

�
��
�
$�
	�

��
�

��
��
�
�6
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

��
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�


$

�
��
��
�
��
��
'�
�=
�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�

��
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�'
��
)�
''

-+

(
)-
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*�
)

��
��
��

��
�
�#
1
"
�0
%
�;
�
�
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
���
��

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��
;
�
��*
)�
;

�
�

�
��

	
��
	

��

�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

	�
��
��
�
��
��
�$
��
��

�
��

�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
$�
�
��
*3
�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��
�
��
��

?�
�
��
	�
�
	�
��
�
�
�(
�

��
��
	�
�0
$

��
�
��
�A

�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�*
*�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�*
��
��
	

%
�0
$�
��
��

?3
�B
�'
�0

�

�'
��
B
��
�0

�

�'
*�
B
�

*�
0

�

�)
�B
�)
�0

�
A

��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��



�	

�
	�
�
�
	�

	
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
�
�
��
�

		
��

�
�

��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�

	

�	

��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

��
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�	
��

�
0
$�
��
��
�
��
�*
�B
��
�

0

�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�

	

�
��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
�0
�%
��
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
	�

	

��
�

�
��
�$
��

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�'
)�
��
�
��
��
?'
��

�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�'
*�
��
$�
��
A�

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��

�

��
	�
!
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��

�
	

��
��
�
�

C
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�

��
�	
��
�	
�
��
�
	

�?
8
�
�$
��

�

��
�
$�
��
��
�
�
��
�$
�%
�
�
�

��
��
$

�

''
��
,�
''

�3
��
+�
�-

'�
��
+�
�(
�

'(
��
*�
'�

Page 187



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

��

�
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
%
�

��
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	


�
��
%
�$

�

	�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
%
��
��

	
�

	

$�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�%
��
��

�
%
�

�

�
��
	

��

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�
�

�
�

�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

��

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
��

 
 
�
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

9
��
�0
��

�
��

�
�

�

�;
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
6
��
��

�

�
��
�

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��

�

��
�	
�

�
��
�
�
��
	

��

�
	�
��
�
�
$

��
�
�
��

��
	�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�%
�

�
��
�
��
�0



�
��
��
�

�
�

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

'

��
��
��

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�'

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

*�

-
,'
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�

'

,*
-�
,,

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

 
��

$
0
�
	%
�

,'

�
��
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�

 
��

$
0
�
	%
�

�

,�
��
��

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

''

)
�(
��
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!
�

�
�

�
�

�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
	


�

,-
�

),

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$�

�

)�
��
��

��
�	
0
�
�
�9
��
B
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�

$
��

	
%
��
��

��
	0
�
�
��
��
B
��

�

�
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
��

$
�

�
�

	

�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
0
�
	�
�
�
�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
?�

�
��
$�
��
�
�

!
'�
3A
���

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

��

)
��

�
.
�*
�,

��

)
��

�
��

)
��

��

)
��

#
�%
�

�
��
�	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�$

�
�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$�

'

��
��
��

"
�	
�
��
�
�
�*


�
�
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

.
�
�
�	
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
��
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
�

 
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��


$
�

�
�

	

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

7
�
	�
�
�
�
�	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��

��
�
�

<
�

�
�

��
��
��

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�



��
�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
 
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

�'

�
��

�
.
�*
*'

�'

�
��

�
�'

�
��

�'

�
��

#
�%
�

�
��
�	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�$

�
�
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

'-
'�
��

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�'
-'

�
.
�*
�*

�'
-'

'-
'

�
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�

*

,(
'�
��

''
�'
��
'�

*'

�
++
�,
,

	

�

��
��
�
��

�
�%
�

�
�

*�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��




�
��
�

�
$$
��
�%
�

�
��
��
	

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�7
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$�

9
��
�0
��

�
��

�
�

�

�;
�
��

�
��
$�
��
��

�
0



�
�

��
0
�
��
�

�
��
�
�9

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
6
��
��

�

�
��
�

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
�

9

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
�0



�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
�

8
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
��

�-
��
+�
'�

,*

,
��
��
�

8
�
��
�
�
�
$

��
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
$

��
��
��

�
��
B
��
��
$�
��
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�	

�
��
�

�
�
$

�
�

��
��
��
	�
��
�
�6
�%
��
�'
*�

�(
��
*�
'�

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��

�
	�
�
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
��
�*
�B
��
$�
��
�

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
��
B
'�
0

�
�

��
�
�'
�B
��
�0

�
��
$�
��
A�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�	

�
�
�
�$
��
��
��
�

�


B
�

	�
�$
��
��
�	
��
�


��

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
�
��
�$
$�
��
�
�
�

�
��
	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
�
��
�
$

�

�
�

�
�

�

	
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�

�
��
�
�

	
�

	

�M
�.
#
1
�+
1
�3
)-
��
�
	�
��

�

�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

3�
0

�
��
��
��
	

%
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

��
��



��
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��

��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
��
��

�
0
�$
��
�
%
�

��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
0
$

�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
(�
(#
K
���
��

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

0
�
�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�
�	
��
*

��
�	
��
)�
��
�
	

%
�

0
$�
��
��
��
+�
�

$�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

�$
��
��
?�
�B
�'
�0

�
��
�
�
�3
�B
��
�

0

�
A�
�
��
�
��
%
�$

�
�
�	
�
��
�

�

	

��
�

��
��
	�
�



��
�

�
��
%
�

��
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
0
�
�
�
�
�	
%
�

�

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�

��
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
��
�
�,
�B
��
�0

�
��
$�
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
�
	�

	
�

��
�
�

�
�

	
��
��
�
�

	�
��

�
��
�

�
��
%
��
	

�

��
��
�

��
	


�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
'*
�)
#
�
���
��

!
�
0
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
�


	

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�
	

%
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
�

�

?�
�
.
�
8
!
#
�
�
.
&:
�
A�

�+
��
*�
'�

��
�'
��
''

9

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	

��
��
�
��
��

��
�

�
�
��
��
�

		
��

�
)�
0

�
�

��
�
�
$

��
��
�$
%
��
�

$
$�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�

Page 188



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

7
�
�

�

*

�,
��
��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�*

�
,�

#
�%
�

�
��
	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�	

$

�
��
��

�

�
�	
��

�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��

7
�
�

�

'+
��
-�

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�'
+*

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

'�
-

+*
+�
*�

!
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

��
�

�-
)

��

�
-)

��

�
-)

�
�

6
�
�
�

��
�$
$�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�

�$
��
�

��
��
��
�

	
�$

%
��
��
�
�
$�
��
�
�
�
$

�

�

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

��

�
-*
�+
+

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!

�'
�-

+
*+

#
�%
�

�
��
	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�	

$

�
��
��

�

�
�	
��

�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��

!
�
�
��
�
��

�

-

)�
,�
,'

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�-

)
�3

-

)�
3

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

3�
*�
((

!
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

#
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��

#
�$
�

	
��
�
	


�

*�
��
�

��
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�*
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$�

'�
)

-(
*�
3�

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$�

�

*�
)�
*�

*
��
=
3
�
4
��
�



?
��

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
�
�	
�
��
�

�

�
��
	%
�

�
��
�
�
�%
��
�
	�
��
��
�$
�
�
��
�
�

0
�
��
�
�
��
$�
�
��

�
��
�
�

	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�%
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
	

�
$�
�

�

�
��
�	



��
�

�
;
:
&�
8
;
�

=
��
��
�
�
	

�

 
�$
$�

,

3(
,�
3+

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

7
�
�

�
�

�

��
��
��

�
		



�
�
�
��
�*


�
��
�
�
�

(


�
�

��
�
��


�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
�0
$

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

$
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

 
 
�
�
!

��

�
��

7
�
�

�
�

3�
*�
((

!
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

��
��
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�$
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�$
��
��
�$
��
�

��

�
��
�
��
��
�

�
7
�
	�
�
�
�
�

	

<
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

<
�

�
�

�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

!
2
�
!

�3
�)

#
�%
�

�
��
�	

�

�
�$
%
�	

�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�	

$

�
��
��

�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
�
��
��

�
��

�3
�'
'�
'�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�$
�
�
	�
�	
�
�
��
'�
��
��
*�
?'
�0

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
'*
�)
.
K
���
���
���
���
���
��

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
�
�

�

��
�
�
��
$�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�B
�'
�

0

�
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
�

��
�
�
$�
��
�
�	

�
	�
�
�
	�

	
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
��
)�
B
�*
�0

�
��

�
��

�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
$

��
��
�$
%
�

�
�

$
$�
�
�
��
��
�$
�
�
��
�
�	

�
	�

�
�
	�

	

��
	�
�
��
��
$�
	�
�
��

$
��

��
�	
�
�
�

��
��
��
�	



��
�
�	
�
��
�
�

��
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
$

�

��
�

��

��
�

�
��
%
��
�
��

�
��
�

	

�	
��
��
�
�	

�
�
�

��
�
�
��
%
�$

�

*
��
=
	�
�
��
��


�
�
�

&�
�

B
�$
��
�

�
��
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��

�

�

$
�
�
�

�
��
�=
�
	�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

��
�


��

�

$
�
�

	
��
��
��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
��
$$
��
��
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�
�	

<
�

�
��
�

$
�%

�
��
�%
�

�
��
�
��

��
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
$�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
��
*�
'�

'3
��
'�
'*

3*
)�
'(

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

''
�

-(
*�
3�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�-
��
'�
'*

',
,

,'
-�
3(

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
'*
�)
!
7
���

�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

��
	�
��
�$
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�

�
�

��
�
��
�

��
B
��

$
��
��
�
��
��

�
��
$�
��
�

?�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
'�
B
�'
�0

�
�

��
�
�'
�B
��
�0

�
�A
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�

�

I
I�
�
��

�
�$
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
')
�3
F
E
���
���
���
���
	

��
��
�
��
��
'�
B
�*
�0

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�B
�*
�0

�
�

�

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
$

�

��
�
�$
%
��
�

$
$�
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�	
��

�
��
�
�	
�
�
��

�

		
��



��
	�
�
��
�
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�

	

�	
��
�
	�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
��

�
�$
�
�

�
��

	
	�
�

��
�
�

	�
�
��
��
�
�0
�$
��
�
�

��
��
��
�	
��
�

�$
�
�
	�
	

�	

��
�
�
�
$�
��
�
�

�

�
�
$�
��
�
�
��
��

B
��
��
�
�
�

*

+*
3�
3(

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

�+
��
*�
'*

�

-,
,�
'+

;
8
�9
�
�
9
�
&;
�
�

Page 189



�
�
	�

�
�
��
�

�


��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
"
#�
!
�$
�

!
0
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�

=
��
�
�
�
	

� 
�$
$�

�
��
�

�

$
�
�
�

�
�

=
��
�
�
�
	

� 
�$
$�

'�

'
('
��
�

�
,
5
6
�.


�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

-
);
:
@
),
A
,
�:
-

$,
)5
@
<
),
:
;

6
:
A
),
:
;

8
,
:
),
8
,

$;
:
<
)@
,
8

$<
-
:
)5
5
5

$:
),
6
6
)A
,
:

8
):
-
@
)8
@
8

,
);
@
8
),
8
<

$8
)8
-
5
);
5
-

$,
)6
8
@
):
8
-

�

�
�
�
�
�
#(
�9
��
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
# 
�

�*
*

*+
,

�*
*

*+
,

�*
*

*+
,

+
!
�
!
�
�
"

�*
*

(+
,

�*
*

(+
,

�*
*

(+
,

!
�
�
(
�
�
# 
�

�'
-+

�'
-+

�'
-+

$:
)-
8
<
)<
6
8

8
):
-
@
)8
@
8

,
);
@
8
),
8
<

�*

)
,'

*
�(

-1
,7

0
6

,0
8

0

�
�	
�#
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�;
�'
�*
�
C
���
���
���
�

0
$�
��
�

��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�7
$�
��
�

�
G�)
�B
�*
�0

�
��
�
�
��
�B
��
�0

�
�

��
	�
�
�	
�
��
�

��
%
�$

�
��
�
	�
�



�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�0
�
��
�
�
��
�	

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
 
�
�
"
�#
�
(
"
�
�
#�
+
�(
 
�
�
#�
+
!
�
(
2

Page 190


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON 4 MARCH 2013
	6 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING PANEL HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2013 - NORTH CIRCULAR ROAD APPLICATIONS
	7 REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (REPORT  NO. )
	8 TP/10/0783 - HOLLY HILL FARM, 305, THE RIDGEWAY, ENFIELD, EN2 8AN
	9 P12-02750PLA - 62, VERA AVENUE, LONDON, N21 1RL
	10 P13-00338LBE - ELDON INFANT SCHOOL, ELDON ROAD, LONDON, N9 8LG
	11 P13-00435PLA - LAND SOUTH SIDE OF WHITEWEBBS LANE, INCORPORATING ROLEMILL SPORTS GROUND AND LAND REAR OF MIDDLETON HOUSE, BULLS CROSS, ENFIELD, EN2 9HA
	12 P13-00551PLA - CRAIG PARK YOUTH CENTRE, LAWRENCE ROAD, LONDON, N18 2HN
	13 P13-00552PLA - LODGE DRIVE CAR PARK, LODGE DRIVE, LONDON, N13 5LB
	14 P13-00558PLA - 18, THE GREEN, LONDON, N21 1AY
	15 P13-00581PLA - RUSSETT HOUSE SCHOOL, 11, AUTUMN CLOSE, ENFIELD, ENI 4JA
	16 P13-00316PLA - 1-16 EAGLE COURT, 35, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2TF
	17 P13-00317PLA - 101-132, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2SY
	18 P13-00318PLA - 1-32, TRINITY COURT, 33, SNELLS PARK, LONDON, N18 2TE
	19 P13-00590PLA - 1-9A, ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY
	20 P13-00591PLA - 11-15A, ANGLESEY ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 4HY
	21 P13-00592PLA - 67-105, BOWOOD ROAD, ENFIELD, EN3 7LL
	22 P13-00615LBE - 161-167, GREEN STREET, ENFIELD, EN3 7LB
	26 SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS - MONITORING INFORMATION
	Annex 1 S106 Master Spreadsheet for Members (April 2013 Planning Committee)


